
           

City of Lubbock, Texas
Regular City Council Meeting

September 24, 2024
Mark W. McBrayer, Mayor
Christy Martinez-Garcia, Mayor Pro Tem, District 1
Gordon Harris, Councilman, District 2
David Glasheen, Councilman, District 3
Brayden Rose, Councilman, District 4
Dr. Jennifer Wilson, Councilwoman, District 5
Tim Collins, Councilman, District 6

    W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager
Matt Wade, City Attorney

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

http://www.mylubbock.us

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

City of Lubbock City Council Meetings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance,
please contact the City Secretary's Office at (806)775-2061 or write to Post Office Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457 at least 48
hours in advance of the meeting.

Executive Session Disclosure Statement: The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into executive session at any time during
the course of the meeting to discuss any item listed on this agenda as authorized by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code,
including but not necessarily limited to §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), §551.072 (Deliberations regarding Real
Property), §551.073 (Deliberations regarding Gifts and Donations), §551.074 (Personnel Matters), §551.076 (Deliberations
regarding Security Devices), §551.086 (Public Power Utilities: Competitive Matters), §551.087 (Deliberations regarding
Economic Development Negotiations). 

A quorum of the City Council will be physically present in City Council Chambers located in Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K,
Lubbock, Texas, as it is the intent of the City Council to have a quorum physically present at this location. One or more members
of the City Council, however, may participate in the meeting by video-conference call as permitted under Section 551.127 of the
Texas Government Code. 

Note: On occasion the City Council may consider agenda items out of order. 

11:00 a.m. - City Council convenes in City Council Chambers and immediately recesses into
Executive Session.
           
1. Executive Session   

 

1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071,
with legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement
agreement and on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary
Rules of Professional Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

  

 

1. 1. 1. DC-2023-CV-0500 Fransisa Reyes v. City of Lubbock   

 

1. 1. 2. Article 22.03 of the Lubbock City Code and Chapter 13 of the Texas Water Code   

 

1. 1. 3. Lake 7   

http://www.mylubbock.us


 

1. 1. 4. Loop 88 Land Acquisition   

 

1. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section
551.072, to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.

  

 

1. 2. 1. Central Business District   

 

1. 2. 2. Lake 7   

 

1. 2. 3. Loop 88 Land Acquisition   

 

1. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section
551.074, to discuss personnel matters, the appointment, employment, evaluation or
reassignment of the following: 

  

 

1. 3. 1. City Attorney   

 

1. 3. 2. City Manager   

 

1. 3. 3. City Secretary   

 

1. 4. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to
discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to
the Electric Utility Board, Health/Educational Facilities Development Corporation Board,
Lubbock Central Appraisal District Board of Directors, Lubbock Emergency
Communications District Board of Managers, Planning & Zoning Commission, and the
Zoning Board of Adjustment.

 

1. 5. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.087,
to discuss or deliberate regarding commercial or financial information that the
governmental body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body
seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and
with which the governmental body is conducting economic development negotiations or to
deliberate an offer of a financial or other incentive to such business prospect.

  

 

Adjourn from Executive Session
 

2:00 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.
 



 

2. Ceremonial Items   

 

2. 1. Invocation   

 

2. 2. Pledges of Allegiance   

 

Call to Order
 

3. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided
at the meeting, no later than 2:00 p.m. on September 24, 2024. Citizen Comments
provide an opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on
agenda items. 

  

 

4. Minutes   

 

4. 1. August 27, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting
September 3, 2024 Special City Council Meeting 

 

5. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without
separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

  

 

5. 1. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Street Use License Agreement, and related documents, by and between the City of
Lubbock and Cavender Real Estate of Lubbock V, in the right-of-way on the east side of
Avenue F between 17th Street and 18th Street.

 

5. 2. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Street Use License Agreement, and related documents, by and between the City of
Lubbock and Chris and Jinna Norman, for right-of-way on the north side of 21st Street
between Aberdeen Avenue and Slide Road.

 

5. 3. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Real Estate Sales Contract, for the purchase of real property located in Lots 3A and 3B,
Block 1, Tech Gardens Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, by and between
the City of Lubbock and Jaime De La Cruz, of Lubbock, Texas.

 

5. 4. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for



5. 4. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way
Deed, and all related documents, in connection with certain real property located in
Section 10, Block JS, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 17), East of Upland Avenue, North
of 7th Street, to be utilized for the Upland Avenue, 4th Street to 19th Street, 22B Capital
Improvements Project, which is a portion of the 2022 Street Bond Project.

 

5. 5. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed,
and all related documents, in connection with certain real property (Parcel 16) located in
Section 38, Block AK, of the GC R.R. Co. Survey, Lubbock County, Texas, to be utilized
for the Upland Avenue, 34th Street to 50th Street, 22B Capital Improvements Project,
which is a portion of the 2022 Street Bond Project.

 

5. 6. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street Use and Right-of-Way Deed, and all
related documents, in connection with certain real property located in Section 6, Block E,
of the GC & SF R.R. Co. Survey, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 10), on the north side of
East 82nd Street, and west of King Avenue, to be utilized for the 82nd Street, I-27 to
Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd - 22B Capital Improvements Project, which is a portion of the
2022 Street Bond Project.  

 

5. 7. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution receiving the Semi-Annual Report from
the Capital Improvements Advisory Committee, regarding the progress and
implementation of the Impact Fee Program.

 

5. 8. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Public
Works Contract 18263, and all related documents, with Deerwood Construction, Inc., for
waterline construction along East 4th Street.

 

5. 9. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Public
Works Contract 18195, with Trifecta Services Company, for the demolition and removal of
a water tower at 74th Street and Genoa Avenue.

 

5. 10. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning:
Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0130, and take action on the City of Lubbock Planning
and Zoning Commission's final report of September 5, 2024, to the Lubbock City Council
on proposed amendments to the Unified Development Code (Ordinance No.
2023-O0054) recommended for adoption, limited to the following: 

Table 39.03.023-2 (related to Base Public and Nonresidential Districts Sign Standards)1.
Section 39.02.004.a.7, Section 39.02.004.b.7, Section 39.02.004.c.7, Section
39.02.004.d.7, Section 39.02.004.e.7 (related to Signs in Residential Districts for
Non-Residential Uses)

2.

Section 39.03.023.b.8 (related to Monument Signs)3.
 

5. 11. Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute



5. 11. Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Professional Services Contract 17872, with SAFEbuilt, LLC, for the completion of
a Zoning Map Analysis.

 

5. 12. Resolution - Water Utilities: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an
Interlocal Contract with the City of Shallowater for the continued purchase of wholesale
water from the City’s potable water system.

 

5. 13. Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider two resolutions authorizing the Mayor to
execute a Lease Agreement Extension with Wilkerson Investment Company for 401 and
405 34th Street, and 530 36th Street, currently being used by several City departments for
operations.

 

5. 14. Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute an Interlocal Agreement, and all related documents, by and between the City of
Lubbock Public Health Department and StarCare Specialty Health System, to assist in a
behavioral health response to a disaster or emergency event.

 

5. 15. Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Amendment No. 1 to the Department of State Health Services (DSHS) Contract
No. HHS001439500038, and all related documents, under the Center for Health
Emergency Preparedness and Response Grant Program, by and between the City of
Lubbock and the State of Texas, acting by and through DSHS.

 

5. 16. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute a Consultant Contract for Transit Services, by and between the Lubbock
Metropolitan Planning Organization (LMPO) and the City of Lubbock/Citibus, to
produce reports for LMPO that satisfy standards required by federal agencies.

 

5. 17. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute an amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding among the Lubbock
Metropolitan Planning Organization, the Texas Department of Transportation, and Citibus,
to add reference to the Transit Asset Management Plan and the Public Transportation
Agency Safety Plan to satisfy Federal Transit Administration guidance.

 

5. 18. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute a Transportation Development Credit Agreement, TxDOT Project # TDC 2501
(05), with the Texas Department of Transportation, to reallocate Transportation
Development Credits (TDCs), and to extend the grant time period the TDCs can be used as
a local match.

 

5. 19. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to



5. 19. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute a FY 2025 Section 5304 Planning Grant, TxDOT PLN 2504 (05) 039_22, Project
ID 51008040525, with the Texas Department of Transportation, for preliminary
engineering, initial design and environmental work for the administrative/maintenance
facility, downtown transfer facility, and mobility hubs. 

 

5. 19. 1. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute a Professional Services Agreement, Contract 17678, with HDR Architecture, Inc.,
for Architectural and Engineering Services for the Citibus Administrative and Bus Fleet
Maintenance Facility. 

 

5. 20. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Amendment No. 2 to Contract 16537, with Swiftly, Inc., to add Operator Reports,
Onboard Application, and the Automatic Passenger Counter Connector modules, to
provide real-time updates on schedule adherence, routing, and detours along each route.

 

5. 21. Resolution - Parks & Recreation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
a Subrecipient Agreement, and all related documents, with the South Plains Association of
Governments, related to funds passed through the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services to the Texas Department on Aging and Disability Services, for an Area Agency
on Aging Direct Purchase of Services Program, to provide meals and transportation
services for the City of Lubbock Senior Program.

 

5. 22. Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Purchase Order 33001896, with Microsoft Corporation, for a 3-year renewal of the
Microsoft Enterprise Support Services Agreement.

 

5. 23. Resolution - GIS and Data Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute a Consultant Contract between the City of Lubbock and the Lubbock Metropolitan
Planning Organization (LMPO), to provide Geographic Information System services to
LMPO, for FY 2024-25 and FY 2025-26.

 

5. 24. Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Lease and Maintenance Agreement, and all related documents, with Wild West
Harley-Davidson, for Police Motorcycles for the Lubbock Police Department.

 

5. 25. Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase
Order 10027796, with North American Rescue, LLC, for the purchase of Medical Supply
Kits for the Lubbock Police Department.

 

5. 26. Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an
agreement, by and between the City of Lubbock and the State of Texas, acting through the
Texas Department of Transportation, for the temporary closure of state right-of-way
during the 2024 United Supermarkets Lubbock Marathon.

 



5. 27. Resolution - City Council: Consider a resolution approving a contract amendment to
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Agreement No. 17174, between the City of Lubbock
and YWCA of Lubbock, for job training services.

 

6. Regular Agenda   

 

6. 1. Resolution - City Secretary: Consider a resolution to nominate board members to serve as
Appraisal District Directors for the Lubbock Central Appraisal District.

 

6. 2. Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution amending the Gateway Street Projects Fund
to define the scope of revenues from franchise fees to be included in the Fund.

 

6. 3. Public Hearing - Planning (District 2): Consider a request for Zone Case 1531-B, a
request of Judith Struggs for a Historic Preservation Overlay District (HPO) to designate a
property with a Local Historic Designation, on property zoned Low Density Single-Family
District (SF-2) per Sections 39.02.009 and 2.03.662, at 2002 Cedar Avenue, located south
of East 20th Street and west of Cedar Avenue, T.E. Wheelock’s Second Addition, Block
15, Lots 11 and 12, and consider an ordinance.

 

6. 4. Public Hearing - Planning (District 4): Consider a request for Zone Case 2161-M, a
request of HFA for Lubbock Commercial Buildings, for a zone change from Neighborhood
Commercial District (NC) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at 2731 82nd Street,
located south of 82nd Street and east of Elgin Avenue, on approximately 1.25 acres of
unplatted land out of Block E-2, Section 13, and consider an ordinance.

 

6. 5. Public Hearing - Planning (District 4): Consider a request for Zone Case 3267-A, a
request of Spindlebock Properties, LLC for a zone change from Neighborhood
Commercial District (NC) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 3202, 3204, 3206, 3208,
3210, and 3212 118th Street and 3215, and 3217 116th Street, located between 116th Street
and 118th Street and east of Indiana Avenue, Triple C Business Park Addition, Tracts A
through H, and consider an ordinance.

 

6. 6. Ordinance 1st Reading - Wastewater Utility: Consider an ordinance amending the City
of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, Chapter 22, "UTILITIES", to provide for establishing
new definitions, delineating sewer line repair and maintenance responsibilities, amending
the regulation for City-participation for large mains, and repealing certain inapplicable
provisions. 

 

6. 7. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution making findings that the
Highland Oaks Public Improvement District (PID) meets the requirements of Chapter 372
of the Texas Local Government Code; accepting the Highland Oaks PID petition, which
covers a portion of an area in Lubbock County, Texas, generally bounded by 146th Street
to the north, Slide Road to the east, Woodrow Road to the south, and Frankford Avenue to
the west; and calling for a public hearing to receive public comment on the formation of a
public improvement district in the area depicted and described. 



 

6. 8. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution accepting a petition to create a
tax increment reinvestment zone pursuant to Texas Tax Code Sec.311.005(a)(4) to be
called Tax Increment Financing District No. 4, located in the North Park Development
area, approximately described as the area east of Frankford Avenue, south of Erskine
Street, north of West Loop 289 and west of N. Winston Avenue and set a public hearing
regarding same. 

 



 AI# 12839 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 1. 4. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to discuss
personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the Electric Utility
Board, Health/Educational Facilities Development Corporation Board, Lubbock Central Appraisal
District Board of Directors, Lubbock Emergency Communications District Board of Managers, Planning
& Zoning Commission, and the Zoning Board of Adjustment.

Item Summary
Discuss personnel matters regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the Electric
Utility Board, Health/Educational Facilities Development Corporation Board, Lubbock Central
Appraisal District Board of Directors, Lubbock Emergency Communications District Board of
Managers, Planning & Zoning Commission, and the Zoning Board of Adjustment.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



 AI# 12859 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 4. 1. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
August 27, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting
September 3, 2024 Special City Council Meeting 

Item Summary
August 27, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting
September 3, 2024 Special City Council Meeting 

Fiscal Impact
None 

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary 

Attachments
8.27.2024 
9.3.2024 S 



CITY OF LUBBOCK
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

August 27, 2024
12:30 P. M.

The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in regular session on the 27th of August, 2024, in
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 12:30 p.m.

12:30 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer; Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia; Council Member Tim
Collins; Council Member David Glasheen; Council Member Gordon Harris; Council Member
Dr. Jennifer Wilson; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary Courtney Paz; City
Attorney Matt Wade 

Absent:  Council Member Brayden Rose 

Note:       City Council addressed agenda items in the following order:
Executive Session; 2.1; 3.1-3.2; Citizen Comments 4; 5.1; 6.1-6.31; and 7.1-7.18.

1. Executive Session

The meeting recessed at 12:30 p.m. and reconvened in Executive Session under the
provisions of Section 551, Texas Government Code. City Council reconvened in open
session at 1:54 p.m., and the meeting was called to order at 3:35 p.m.

1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, with
legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement agreement and on
matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

1. 1. 1. North Park Tax Increment Financing District (TIF)

1. 1. 2. Chapter 1, Art. IX, Section 14 of the Lubbock City Charter

1. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.074, to
discuss personnel matters, the appointment, employment, evaluation, or reassignment of the
following:

1. 2. 1. City Attorney

1. 2. 2. City Manager



1. 2. 3. City Secretary

1. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to
discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to
the Electric Utility Board, Health/Educational Facilities Development Corporation Board,
Lubbock Emergency Communications District Board of Managers, Planning & Zoning
Commission, and Zoning Board of Adjustment.

Immediately following Executive Session, the City Council reconvenes in Work Session in City
Council Chambers.

City Council reconvened at 1:54 p.m.

2. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as
appropriate.

2. 1. Presentation and discussion of the Proposed FY 2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital Program,
and discuss all funds of the City, including but not limited to General Fund, Debt Service Fund,
Internal Services, Enterprise Funds, Special Revenue Funds, Component Units, Related Entities,
Debt and Debt Obligations, Capital Improvement Program, current and proposed American
Rescue Plan Act Funds and uses, and related and associated items and use of such funds; and take
action to direct the City Manager to make changes to said Budget.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave a presentation on the Proposed FY 2024-25 Operating
Budget and Capital Program and answered questions from City Council. Discussion included, but
was not limited to: sewer lateral proposal, proposed personnel changes - wastewater fund,
wastewater capital proposed change, airport passenger facility charge (PFC) debt, LP&L, FY
2025-26, Mayor Mark W. McBrayer's budget proposal, Council Member David Glasheen's
budget proposal, and Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson's budget proposal.

3:33 p.m. - The City Council continues in Open Session in City Council Chambers.

3. Ceremonial Items

3. 1. Invocation

Reverend Jeff Fisher, Grace Lubbock United Methodist Church, led the invocation.

3. 2. Pledges of Allegiance

Pledges of Allegiance, to the United States and Texas Flags, were led by Mayor Pro Tem Christy
Martinez-Garcia.

Call to Order

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 27, 2024 Page 2 of 16



Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 3:35 p.m. 

4. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter posted
on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the meeting,
no later than 2:00 p.m. on August 27, 2024. Citizen Comments provide an opportunity for
citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items.

No one appeared to speak.

5. Minutes

5. 1. July 23, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting
July 25, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Joint Planning & Zoning Commission

Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Dr.
Jennifer Wilson, to approve the July 23, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting minutes and
the July 25, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Joint Planning & Zoning Commission
minutes. 

Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

Other:  Council Member Brayden Rose (ABSENT) 

6. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without
separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed from
the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member David
Glasheen, to approve items 6.1-6.31. 

Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

Other:  Council Member Brayden Rose (ABSENT) 

6. 1.

6. 2.

Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0106, 
Amendment 45, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the 
Information Technology Capital Project Fund and the Health Benefits Operating Fund; 
providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause. 

Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0111, 
Amendment 44, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the 
Community Development Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause. 

6. 3. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2024-R0376 approving the Lubbock Emergency

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 27, 2024 Page 3 of 16



6. 3. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2024-R0376 approving the Lubbock Emergency
Communications District Budget for Fiscal Year 2024-25. 

6. 4. Resolution - Planning: Resolution No. 2024-R0377, pursuant to Chapter 42, Subchapter D, of
the Texas Local Government Code, releasing the area described as Property I.D. R47350 by the
Lubbock County Appraisal District, otherwise known as 5710 East FM 835, from the
Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction of the City of Lubbock. 

6. 5. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2024-O0107, abandoning and closing
portions of an Underground Streetlight Cable Easement located in Lot 334, Lincoln 16 Addition,
City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, south of Princeton Street and east of North Clinton
Avenue. 

6. 6. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2024-R0378 authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Water Line Easement Agreement, and related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock
and the Veterans Land Board of the State of Texas. 

6. 7. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2024-R0379 authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and all
related documents, in connection with certain real property located in Section 1, Block D-6,
Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 12), to be utilized for the Upland Avenue:  4th Street to 19th
Street 2022 Road Bond Project.   

6. 8. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2024-R0380 authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and all
related documents, in connection with certain real property located in Section 2, Block JS,
Lubbock County, Texas, (Parcel 3) to be utilized for the Milwaukee Avenue: 4th Street to North
City Limits 2022 Road Bond Project. 

6. 9. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2024-R0381 authorizing the Mayor to accept,
for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and
all related documents, in connection with certain real property located in Section 2, Block JS,
Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 7), to be utilized for the Milwaukee Avenue: 4th Street to North
City Limits 2022 Road Bond Project. 

6. 10. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2024-R0382 authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Street and Alley Use License Agreement, and related documents, by and between the City of
Lubbock and Trinity Church, Inc., in the right-of-way and alley, between Canton Avenue and
University Avenue. 

6. 11. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Engineering: Ordinance No. 2024-O0108, amending Articles 39.04
and 39.07 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock, by adding Articles 39.07.046, and
amending Sections 39.04.012, 39.04.013, and 39.07.020, to allow for certain building permits to
be approved while required infrastructure is constructed in parallel with other building activities. 

6. 12. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2024-R0383 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 27, 2024 Page 4 of 16



6. 12. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2024-R0383 authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Agreement Contract 17130, with Kimley-Horn and
Associates, Inc., for engineering services for the reconstruction of the 34th Street: Upland Avenue
to Milwaukee Avenue 2022 Road Bond Project. 

  

 
6. 13. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2024-R0384 authorizing the Mayor to execute Public

Works Contract 18185, with Rink's Lease Services, Inc., for water line relocation ahead of Loop
88 segment 3D, Milwaukee Avenue to Frankford Avenue. 

  

 
6. 14. Resolution - Public Works Water Utilities: Resolution No. 2024-R0385 authorizing the Mayor

to execute Contract 18032, with Blue Sky Plumbing, Corp., for installation of water
Advanced Meter Infrastructure (AMI) and meter boxes. 

  

 
6. 15. Resolution - Public Works Water Utilities: Resolution No. 2024-R0386 rejecting all bids for

the Single Phase Pole-Mounted Transformers, for the Bailey County Well Field, as advertised in
ITB 24-18114-LV. 

  

 
6. 16. Resolution - Public Works: Resolution No. 2024-R0387 authorizing the Mayor to execute an

amendment to the Interlocal Wholesale Water Sales Contract, with the Texas Department of
Criminal Justice, for the continued purchase of potable water supplying the John Montford Unit
Correctional Facility. 

  

 
6. 17. Resolution - Facilities Management: Resolution No. 2024-R0388 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 18047, with King Consultant, Inc. for mold consulting services in various City
of Lubbock buildings. 

  

 
6. 18. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2024-R0389 authorizing the Mayor to

execute an Interlocal Cooperation Agreement, and all related documents, for Intermediary Care
Clinic funding, by and between the City of Lubbock and Lubbock County. 

  

 
6. 19. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2024-R0390 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Amendment No. 3 to the Administration Substance Use Disorder Services Grant
Agreement Health and Human Services Contract No. HHS000779500001, and all related
documents, by and between the City of Lubbock, and the State of Texas Health and Human
Services Commission. 

  

 
6. 20. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2024-R0391 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Amendment No. 3 to the Health and Human Services Commission Contract No.
HHS000780500002, and all related documents, under the Substance Use Prevention, Treatment
and Recovery Services Block Grant Program, to provide funding for Community Health Workers,
by and between the City of Lubbock, and the State of Texas Health and Human Services
Commission. 

  

 
6. 21. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2024-R0392 authorizing the Mayor to   

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 27, 2024 Page 5 of 16



6. 21. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2024-R0392 authorizing the Mayor to
execute Amendment No. 4 to the Health and Human Services Commission Contract No.
HHS00108140001, and all related documents, under the Substance Abuse Prevention and
Behavioral Health Promotion Grant Program, by and between the City of Lubbock and the State
of Texas Health and Human Services Commission. 

  

 
6. 22. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2024-R0393 authorizing the Mayor to

execute the Health and Human Services Commission Grant Agreement Contract No.
HHS001081400002, and all related documents, under the Prevention and Behavioral Health
Promotion Grant Program (PBHP), by and between the City of Lubbock, and the State of Texas
Health and Human Services Commission. 

  

 
6. 23. Resolution - Community Development: Resolution No. 2024-R0394 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Emergency Solutions Grant Funding Agreement 18276, and all related documents, by
and between the City of Lubbock and Family Promise of Lubbock, Inc., for homeless prevention
and rapid rehousing for homeless individuals and families in Lubbock. 

  

 
6. 24. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Resolution No. 2024-R0395 authorizing the Mayor to

execute FY 2025 Section 5307 Grant, TxDOT URB 2503 (05), Project ID 51309030525, with the
Texas Department of Transportation, for operating assistance to Citibus. 

  

 
6. 25. Ordinance 1st Reading - Business Development: Ordinance No. 2024-O0112 approving the

seventeenth supplemental ordinance updating the Vintage Township Public Improvement District
Service and Assessment Plan and Assessment Roll. 

  

 
6. 26. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2024-R0396 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 18219, with West Infrastructure Construction, LLC, for repairs to various streets
in the North Overton Tax Increment Financing District Boundary. 

  

 
6. 27. Resolution - Civic Center: Resolution No. 2024-R0397 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Contract 18134, with Armstrong Mechanical Co. Inc., to provide procurement and installation of
new heating water piping from the Civic Center Physical Plant to the Lubbock Memorial Civic
Center. 

  

 
6. 28. Resolution - Information Technology: Resolution No. 2024-R0398 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Purchase Order 33001883, with CDW Government, Inc., for a three-year VMware
Enterprise Software Licensing and Support Agreement. 

  

 
6. 29. Resolution - Information Technology: Resolution No. 2024-R0399 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Purchase Order 33001884, with Vertosoft, LLC, for a three-year renewal of the OpenGov
Cloud Budgeting and Planning Solution Software and Support Services. 

  

 
6. 30. Resolution - Lubbock Fire Rescue: Resolution No. 2024-R0400 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Service Contract 18122, with PesTex Pest Control, for professional pest control services
in all Lubbock Fire Rescue facilities. 

  

 
6. 31. Resolution - City Secretary: Resolution No. 2024-R0401 authorizing a joint election(s) with   

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 27, 2024 Page 6 of 16



6. 31. Resolution - City Secretary: Resolution No. 2024-R0401 authorizing a joint election(s) with
other eligible governmental units in Lubbock County, and authorizing the Mayor to execute a
contract for services with Lubbock County and the eligible governmental units, for said joint
election(s), through September 30, 2025. 

  

 
7. Regular Agenda
 
7. 1. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider and take action on the appointment of the

Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson for the Lubbock Water Advisory Commission.
 
Courtney Paz, city secretary, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member David

Glasheen, to appoint Ted Cleveland as chair and Jay House as vice chair of the Lubbock
Water Advisory Commission. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Brayden Rose (ABSENT) 

 
7. 2. Board Appointment - City Secretary: Consider and take action on the appointment of the

Chairperson for the Veterans Advisory Committee.
 
Courtney Paz, city secretary, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to appoint Benny Guererro as chair of the Veterans Advisory Committee. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Brayden Rose (ABSENT) 

 
7. 3. Public Hearing - Planning (District 4): Ordinance No. 2024-O0113, for Zone Case 1067-G, a

request of Helmos Interests LTD, for a zone change from Neighborhood Commercial District
(NC) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) Specific Use for a smoke shop, at 6909, 6911,
6913, 6917, 6923, 6925, 6931, and 6951 Indiana Avenue, located east of Indiana Avenue and
north of 70th Street, Liberty Village Addition, Lots 1 - 55 of Tract A.
 
Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

Mayor McBrayer opened the public hearing at 3:40 p.m.
 
Abdula Alihair, the proponent, appeared to speak in favor.

No one appeared to speak in opposition.

Mayor McBrayer closed the public hearing at 3:53 p.m.

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 27, 2024 Page 7 of 16



 
  Motion by Council Member David Glasheen, seconded by Council Member Dr. Jennifer

Wilson, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0113.  
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Brayden Rose (ABSENT) 

 
7. 4. Public Hearing - Planning (District 5): Ordinance No. 2024-O0114, for Zone Case 3303-D, a

request of Steen Realty Group of Keller Williams for SE4NS Properties, LLC, for a zone change
from Industrial Park District (IP) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at 11919 and 11923
Frankford Avenue, located east of Frankford Avenue and south of 119th Street, Stonewood
Industrial Park Addition, Tracts B-1 and B-2.
 
Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.
 
Mayor McBrayer opened the public hearing at 3:40 p.m.
 
No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.
 
Mayor McBrayer closed the public hearing at 3:53 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member David Glasheen, seconded by Council Member Dr. Jennifer

Wilson, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0114. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Brayden Rose (ABSENT) 

 
7. 5. Public Hearing - Planning (District 5): Ordinance No. 2024-O0115, for Zone Case 3506, a

request of Brian and Chad Carter, for a zone change from Low Density Single-Family District
(SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 5834 and 5836 146th Street, west of Frankford
Avenue and north of 146th Street, on approximately 4.978 acres of unplatted land out of Block
AK, Section 9.
 
Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.
 
Mayor McBrayer opened the public hearing at 3:40 p.m.
 
No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.
 
Mayor McBrayer closed the public hearing at 3:53 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member David Glasheen, seconded by Council Member Dr. Jennifer

Wilson, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0115. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 27, 2024 Page 8 of 16



  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Brayden Rose (ABSENT) 

 
7. 6. Public Hearing - Planning (District 5): Ordinance No. 2024-O0116, for Zone Case 3507, a

request of Mountain Top Engineering for CTJ Diamond Investments, LLC, for a zone change
from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at
7108 82nd Street, located north of 82nd Street and east of Upland Avenue, on 1.01 acres of
unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 30.
 
Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.
 
Mayor McBrayer opened the public hearing at 3:40 p.m.
 
Tommy Harms, with Mountain Top Engineering, appeared to speak in favor.
 
No one appeared to speak in opposition.
 
Mayor McBrayer closed the public hearing at 3:53 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member David Glasheen, seconded by Council Member Dr. Jennifer

Wilson, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0116. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Brayden Rose (ABSENT) 

 
7. 7. Public Hearing - Planning (District 6): Ordinance No. 2024-O0117, for Zone Case 3505, a

request of Seventeen Services, LLC for Scarlet River, LLC, for a zone change from Low Density
Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 2909 and 2911 North
Frankford Avenue, located west of North Frankford Avenue and north of Ursuline Street, on
5.023 acres of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 12.
 
Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.
 
Mayor McBrayer opened the public hearing at 3:40 p.m.
 
No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.
 
Mayor McBrayer closed the public hearing at 3:53 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member David Glasheen, seconded by Council Member Dr. Jennifer

Wilson, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0117. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Brayden Rose (ABSENT) 

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 27, 2024 Page 9 of 16



  Other:  Council Member Brayden Rose (ABSENT) 

 
7. 8. Public Hearing - Business Development: Ordinance No. 2024-O0118 approving the proposed

2024 Assessment Rate for the Bell Farms Public Improvement District (PID), reviewing
classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of
property in the Bell Farms PID; approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the
assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements to be
provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the property in the
district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment. 
 
Brianna Brown, director of business development, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council. 
 
Mayor McBrayer opened the public hearing at 3:54 p.m.
 
No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.
 
Mayor McBrayer closed the public hearing at 4:03 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Council Member Gordon

Harris, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0118. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Brayden Rose (ABSENT) 

 
7. 9. Public Hearing - Business Development: Ordinance No. 2024-O0119 approving the proposed

2024 Assessment Rate for the Northwest Passage Public Improvement District (PID), reviewing
classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of
property in the Northwest Passage PID; approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary
the assessment roll; levying the 2024 assessments for the cost of certain services and
improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and liens against
the property in the district and the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the
assessments. 
 
Brianna Brown, director of business development, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council. 
 
Mayor McBrayer opened the public hearing at 3:54 p.m.
 
No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.
 
Mayor McBrayer closed the public hearing at 4:03 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Council Member Gordon

Harris, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0119. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 27, 2024 Page 10 of 16



  Other:  Council Member Brayden Rose (ABSENT) 

 
7. 10. Public Hearing - Business Development: Ordinance No. 2024-O0120 approving the proposed

2024 Assessment Rate for the Upland Crossing Public Improvement District (PID), reviewing
classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of
property in the Upland Crossing PID; approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the
assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements to be
provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the property in the
district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.
 
Brianna Brown, director of business development, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council.
 
Mayor McBrayer opened the public hearing at 3:54 p.m.
 
No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.
 
Mayor McBrayer closed the public hearing at 4:03 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Council Member Gordon

Harris, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0120. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Brayden Rose (ABSENT) 

 
7. 11. Public Hearing - Business Development: Ordinance No. 2024-O0121 approving the proposed

2024 Assessment Rate for the Upland Crossing 2 Public Improvement District (PID), reviewing
classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of
property in the Upland Crossing 2 PID; approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary
the assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements
to be provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the property in
the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.
 
Brianna Brown, director of business development, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council.
 
Mayor McBrayer opened the public hearing at 3:54 p.m.
 
No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.
 
Mayor McBrayer closed the public hearing at 4:03 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Council Member Gordon

Harris, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0121. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 27, 2024 Page 11 of 16



  Other:  Council Member Brayden Rose (ABSENT) 

 
7. 12. Public Hearing - Business Development: Ordinance No. 2024-O0122 approving the proposed

2024 Assessment Rate for the Upland Crossing 3 Public Improvement District (PID), reviewing
classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of
property in the Upland Crossing 3 PID; approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary
the assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements
to be provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the property in
the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.
 
Brianna Brown, director of business development, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council.
 
Mayor McBrayer opened the public hearing at 3:54 p.m.
 
No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.
 
Mayor McBrayer closed the public hearing at 4:03 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Council Member Gordon

Harris, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0122. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Brayden Rose (ABSENT) 

 
7. 13. Public Hearing - Business Development: Ordinance No. 2024-O0123 approving the proposed

2024 Assessment Rate for the North Overton Public Improvement District (PID), reviewing
classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of
property in the North Overton PID; approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the
assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements to be
provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the property in the
district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.
 
Brianna Brown, director of business development, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council.
 
Mayor McBrayer opened the public hearing at 3:54 p.m.
 
No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.
 
Mayor McBrayer closed the public hearing at 4:03 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Council Member Gordon

Harris, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0123. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 27, 2024 Page 12 of 16



  Other:  Council Member Brayden Rose (ABSENT) 

 
7. 14. Public Hearing - Business Development: Ordinance No. 2024-O0124 approving the proposed

2024 Assessment Rate for the Quincy Park Public Improvement District (PID), reviewing
classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of
property in the Quincy Park PID; approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the
assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements to be
provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the property in the
district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.
 
Brianna Brown, director of business development, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council.
 
Mayor McBrayer opened the public hearing at 3:54 p.m.
 
No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.
 
Mayor McBrayer closed the public hearing at 4:03 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Council Member Gordon

Harris, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0124. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Brayden Rose (ABSENT) 

 
7. 15. Public Hearing - Business Development: Ordinance No. 2024-O0125 approving the proposed

2024 Assessment Rate for the Valencia Public Improvement District (PID), reviewing
classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of
property in the Valencia PID; approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the
assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements to be
provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the property in the
district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.
 
Brianna Brown, director of business development, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council.
 
Mayor McBrayer opened the public hearing at 3:54 p.m.
 
No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.
 
Mayor McBrayer closed the public hearing at 4:03 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Council Member Gordon

Harris, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0125. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 27, 2024 Page 13 of 16



  Other:  Council Member Brayden Rose (ABSENT) 

 
7. 16. Public Hearing - Business Development: Ordinance No. 2024-O0126 approving the proposed

2024 Assessment Rate for the North Point Public Improvement District (PID), reviewing
classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of
property in the North Point PID; approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the
assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements to be
provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the property in the
district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.
 
Brianna Brown, director of business development, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council. 
 
Mayor McBrayer opened the public hearing at 3:54 p.m.
 
No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.
 
Mayor McBrayer closed the public hearing at 4:03 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Council Member Gordon

Harris, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0126. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Brayden Rose (ABSENT) 

 
7. 17. Public Hearing - Business Development: Ordinance No. 2024-O0127 approving the proposed

2024 Assessment Rate for the Willow Bend Villas Public Improvement District (PID), reviewing
classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of
property in the Willow Bend Villas PID; approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary
the assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements
to be provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and liens against the property in
the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.
 
Brianna Brown, director of business development, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council.
 
Mayor McBrayer opened the public hearing at 3:54 p.m.
 
No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.
 
Mayor McBrayer closed the public hearing at 4:03 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Council Member Gordon

Harris, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0127. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 27, 2024 Page 14 of 16



  Other:  Council Member Brayden Rose (ABSENT) 

 
7. 18. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning:

A. Ordinance No. 2024-O0110, action on proposed amendments to the Unified Development
Code (Ordinance No. 2023-O0054) recommended for adoption, limited to the following: 

Section 39.02.018.c.1.A (related to Residential Uses in the SF-2, MDR, and HDR Districts)1.
Table 39.02.004.c-2 (related to SF-2 Lot Density and Dimensions)2.
Table 39.02.004.d-2 (related to MDR Lot Density and Dimensions)3.
Table 39.03.023-2 (related to Base Public and Nonresidential Districts Sign Standards)4.
Section 39.07.041 and the Final Plat Submission Checklist (related to Final Plat Document
Requirements and Applicant Responsibilities)

5.

Section 39.07.040 and the Preliminary Plat Submission Checklist (related to Preliminary
Plat Document Requirements and Applicant Responsibilities)

6.

Section 39.10.002 (related to Definitions)7.
Section 39.02.016, Table 39.02.004.c-1, Table 39.02.004.d-1, Table 39.02.004.d-3, Table
39.02.004.e-1, Table 39.02.004.e-3, Table 39.03.009-1 (related to the Land Use Matrix)

8.

Section 39.07.041.j (related to Final Plat Recording)9.
Section 39.07.041.k.3 (related to Final Plat and Preliminary Plat Renewal and Expiration)10.
Section 39.07.040.b (related to Preliminary Plat Purpose)11.
Table 39.02.004.e-2 (related to HDR Lot Density and Dimensions)12.
Table 39.02.016-1 (related to Outdoor Storage in the Industrial Park District (IP))13.
Section 39.02.020.d.7.C (related to Nonresidential and Mixed-Use Accessory Uses and
Structures)

14.

Section 39.02.020.c (related to Residential Accessory Uses and Structures)15.
Section 39.07.044.b (related to Waiver of Improvements)16.
Section 39.07.045.b (related to Delay of Improvements)17.
Section 39.02.018.e (related to Limited Use Standards)18.
Table 39.03.002-1 (related to Building and Site Design Applicability)19.
Table 39.02.004.c-3 (related to SF-2 Off-Street Parking and Loading Schedule)20.
Table 39.04.005-3 (related to Minimum Driveway Throat Length)21.
Section 39.04.021.b (related to Recording of Plat and Dedication of Improvements)22.
Table 39.03.016-1 (related to District Bufferyard Standards)23.
Section 39.02.020.b.6 (related to Nonresidential and Mixed-Use Fences)24.
Section 39.04.012 (related to Public Water Systems)25.
Section 39.04.013 (related to Public Wastewater Systems)26.
Section 39.02.023.b.3 (related to Specific Allowances for Height Requirements)27.
Table 39.02.022-1 (related to setback measurements)28.
Section 39.02.023.d.3 (related to Contextual Rear Setbacks)29.
Section 39.02.004.a.4.A, Section 39.02.004.b.4.A, Section 39.02.004.c.4.A, Section
39.02.004.d.4.A, and Section 39.02.004.e.4.A (related to Lot Density and Dimensions)

30.

Table 39.02.006.b-2 (related to Office (OF) Lot Intensity and Dimensions)31.
Section 39.07.004.f (related to Plat Filing)32.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; and Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave comments and
answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Christy

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 27, 2024 Page 15 of 16



  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Christy
Martinez-Garcia, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0110. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Brayden Rose (ABSENT) 

 

4:05 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor McBrayer adjourned the meeting.

 
The August 27, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the
24th  day of September, 2024.

  
  ____________________________________

MARK W. McBRAYER, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 27, 2024 Page 16 of 16



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

September 3, 2024
2:00 P.M.

The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 3rd of September, 2024, in
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 2:00 p.m.

2:00 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer; Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia; Council Member Tim
Collins; Council Member David Glasheen; Council Member Gordon Harris; Council Member
Brayden Rose; Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City
Secretary Courtney Paz; City Attorney Matt Wade 

Note:      City Council addressed agenda items in the following order: 
1.1-1.4.

1. Regular Agenda

1. 1. Public Hearing - Finance: Hold a public hearing on the Proposed FY 2024-25 Operating Budget
and Capital Program.

Public Hearing only.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave a presentation on the Proposed FY 2024-25 Operating Budget
and Capital Program and answered questions from City Council.

Mayor McBrayer opened the public hearing at 2:00 p.m.

Ron Ader; Susan Cherry; Randy Christian; Mikel Ward; and Besty Bloechl appeared to speak on
this item. 

Mayor McBrayer closed the public hearing at 2:51 p.m.

1. 2. Public Hearing - Finance: Hold a public hearing on a proposal to adopt a tax rate of
0.477402 cents per $100 valuation, which is effectively a 2.28 percent increase in the tax
rate (percentage the proposed tax rate exceeds the no-new-revenue tax rate).

Public Hearing only. 

Mayor McBrayer opened the public hearing at 2:52 p.m.



Mikel Ward; and Robert Rogers appeared to speak on this item.

Mayor McBrayer closed the public hearing at 2:59 p.m.

1. 3. Ordinance 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0128 approving and adopting a budget
for Fiscal Year 2024-25; approving summary of estimated and forecasted revenues, appropriations,
and use of excess reserves for all funds of the city; providing for necessary transfers of funds
between accounts and departments, if required; authorizing reduction of spending by City Manager
if necessary; re-appropriation of balances which support authorized obligations or encumbrances;
providing for filing of Adopted Budget; establishing civil service classifications and positions;
appropriating funds for the Fiscal Year 2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital Program of the City
of Lubbock; providing for continuation of appropriations for projects in capital program; approving
all permit, license, fees, and charges for service recommended to be adjusted; approving the pay
plan and positions; approving personnel; amending subsections (a), (b), (c), and (d) of section
4.02.041 of the Code of Ordinances by revising animal service fees as contained therein; amending
subsection (a) of section 22.04.041 of the Code of Ordinances by revising the wastewater base
charge as contained therein; amending subsection (a) of section 22.04.133 of the Code of
Ordinances by revising the sewage disposal permit fee as contained therein; amending subsections
(h), (i), (j), and (k) of section 22.04.174 of the Code of Ordinances by revising the septic load fees
as contained therein; amending subsections (b) and (c) of section 22.06.051 of the Code of
Ordinances of the City of Lubbock by revising the solid waste landfill service fees as contained
therein; amending subsection (a) of section 22.06.185 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of
Lubbock by revising the solid waste collections service fees as contained therein; providing for the
reconciliation of the transfer of funds from the General Fund to Enterprise Funds; accepting the
budgets for Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, Market Lubbock, Inc., Civic Lubbock, Inc.,
and Vintage Township Public Facilities Corporation; finding that proper notice of meeting provided
by law and ratifying such; providing for publication; and providing for a savings clause.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from City Council.
Discussion included, but was not limited to: sewer lateral proposal, proposed personnel changes -
wastewater fund, wastewater capital proposed change, Exhibit G changes, Mayor Mark W.
McBrayer's budget proposal, and Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson's budget proposal. 

Discussion ensued among City Council after this item was re-opened for discussion and
consideration during consideration of item 1.4. Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; Matt Wade, city
attorney; and Seth Herman, chief of police, gave comments and answered questions from City
Council. 

Motion by Council Member Tim Collins, seconded by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,
to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0128, adopting a budget as proposed by Council Member
Dr. Jennifer Wilson, including the changes presented in Exhibit G.  

Vote: 4 - 3 Motion carried

NAY:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer 
Council Member David Glasheen 
Council Member Brayden Rose 

Special City Council Meeting 
September 3, 2024 Page 2 of 4



The following motions were considered after the motion to re-open item 1.3 for discussion and
consideration was approved during consideration of item 1.4. 

Motion by Council Member David Glasheen, seconded by Council Member Gordon Harris, to
approve this item with the following amendment: 

Amendment No. 1: to approve a substitute ordinance to adopt a budget as proposed by
Council Member David Glasheen, which includes the changes made in Exhibit G as
presented, a projected increase in revenue of $125,000, and removes the deletion of the
Lake 6 fountain.

Vote: 1 - 6 Failed

NAY:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer 
Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia 
Council Member Tim Collins 
Council Member Gordon Harris 
Council Member Brayden Rose 
Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson 

Motion by Council Member Tim Collins, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Christy
Martinez-Garcia, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0128, adopting a budget as proposed by
Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson, including the changes presented in Exhibit G. 

Vote: 5 - 2 Motion carried

NAY:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer 
Council Member David Glasheen 

1. 4. Ordinance 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0129 setting the tax rate and levying a
tax upon all property subject to taxation within the City of Lubbock for 2024; apportioning said
levy among the various funds and items for which revenue must be raised; fixing the times in which
said taxes shall be paid and assessing penalty and interest for nonpayment of such taxes within the
time provided.

Matt Wade, city attorney; and Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered
questions from City Council. 

Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Christy
Martinez-Garcia, to approve a property tax rate to be increased by the adoption of a tax
rate of 0.470120, which is effectively a 0.72% increase in the tax rate, that would support the
budget that was adopted by item 1.3.

Vote: 4 - 3 Failed

Special City Council Meeting 
September 3, 2024 Page 3 of 4



NAY:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer
         Council Member David Glasheen
         Council Member Brayden Rose
 
*State law requires a supermajority of 60%, which is 5 votes, to approve a tax rate that
is greater than the no-new-revenue tax rate. 

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Council Member David

Glasheen, to re-open discussion and consideration of item 1.3. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0129, to approve a property tax rate to be
increased by the adoption of a tax rate of 0.470120, which is effectively a 0.72% increase in
the tax rate.  

  Vote: 5 - 2 Motion carried

  NAY:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer 
  Council Member David Glasheen 

 

4:37 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor McBrayer adjourned the meeting.

 
The September 3, 2024 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 24th
day of September, 2024.

  
  ____________________________________

MARK W. McBRAYER, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

 

Special City Council Meeting 
September 3, 2024 Page 4 of 4



 AI# 12852 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 1. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Street Use
License Agreement, and related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and Cavender Real
Estate of Lubbock V, in the right-of-way on the east side of Avenue F between 17th Street and 18th
Street.

Item Summary
Cavender Real Estate of Lubbock V is requesting a Street Use License for the purpose of installing a 250
square foot awning in the right-of-way on the east side of Avenue F between 17th Street and 18th Street.
 
The term of the license is for 20 years, payable every 5 years in advance, and each successive 5-year
term not to exceed 20 years, unless either party provides written notice of termination to the other party.
The license fee for each 5-year period is $500 paid in advance, pursuant to current City policy.

Fiscal Impact
$500 to the General Fund

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Bailey Ratcliffe, P.E., Interim Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution - Cavender RE of Lubbock V 
Street use License - Cavender RE of Lubbock V 
GIS Map - Cavender RE of Lubbock V 













11

2
1

15
16
17
18
19
20

6
5
4
3

10

15
16
17
18
19
20

11

217216
As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Street Use License
Located within Section 1, Block O

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

A
V

E 
F

IN
TE

RS
TA

TE
 2

7 
 U

S 
87

16TH ST

ORIG
IN

AL TOWN

OF LUBBOCK

C
RI

C
K

ET
S 

A
V

E

SPRIN
GFIELD

APARTMENTS

0 50 10025
Feet

BU
D

D
Y

 H
O

LL
Y

 A
V

E

A
V

E 
F

18TH AVE

17TH ST

17TH ST

Proposed Street Use License
~250 sq ft

IN
TE

RS
TA

TE
 2

7 
 U

S 
87



 AI# 12853 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 2. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Street Use
License Agreement, and related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and Chris and Jinna
Norman, for right-of-way on the north side of 21st Street between Aberdeen Avenue and Slide Road.

Item Summary
Chris and Jinna Norman are requesting a Street Use License for the purpose of a 209 square foot brick,
stone, and wood fence in the right-of-way on the north side of 21st Street, between Aberdeen Avenue
and Slide Road.
 
The term of the license is for 20 years payable every 5 years in advance, and each successive 5-year term
not to exceed 20 years, unless either party provides written notice of termination to the other party. The
license fee for each 5-year period is $500 paid in advance, pursuant to current City policy.

Fiscal Impact
$500 to the General Fund

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Bailey Ratcliffe, P.E., Interim Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution - Norman 21st & Slide 
SUL - Norman 21st & Slide 
GIS Map - Norman 21st & Slide 

















UNSUBDIVIDED

UNSUBDIVIDED

3

4

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Street Use License
Located within Section 5, Block E2

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

Proposed Street Use License
~209 sq ft

BOBALET

HEIG
HTS

22ND ST

MEGHAN AND

KATHLEEN

McWHORTER

WIN
DWIC

K

130TH ST  FM 1585

LEWIS

ESTATES

SPRIN
GFIELD

APARTMENTS

0 100 20050
Feet

LEWIS

ESTATES

W
A

Y
N

E 
A

V
E

A
BE

RD
EE

N
 A

V
E

SISCO

A
BE

RD
EE

N
 A

V
E

WATTS

McGEE

FM
 1

73
0

SL
ID

E 
RD

146TH ST

21ST ST

SL
ID

E 
RD

THE

GABLES
BOBALET

HEIG
HTS

23RD ST

23RD ST

A
LB

A
N

Y
 A

V
E

21ST ST

21ST ST

20TH ST



 AI# 12854 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 3. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Real Estate Sales
Contract, for the purchase of real property located in Lots 3A and 3B, Block 1, Tech Gardens Addition
to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, by and between the City of Lubbock and Jaime De La Cruz, of
Lubbock, Texas.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock is acquiring land to be utilized for expansion of the LP&L sub-station on Erskine
Street, west of Detroit Avenue.
 
The proponents will dedicate 2 lots totaling 14,047 square feet, subject to final approval by the City
Council and approval of title.

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the land acquisition is $34,000 plus closing costs. This acquisition is funded by Capital
Improvements Project 92834 - Erskine: Land Acquisition.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Bailey Ratcliffe, P.E., Interim Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Resolution Tech Gardens Lot 3a & 3b 
Real Estate Sales Contract Signed 
GIS Map Tech Gardens Lot 3a & 3b 
CIP 92834 Budget Detail 





































1110 1211 912 13 14 1410 1513 16

3

2 13 154 2

86

3A

10

161

108 126

1

9 87

14

9

5 3B

7

3

11

15

98

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
Located in Section 6, Block E

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

N
 E

LG
IN

 A
V

E

CLOVIS RD

N
 D

ET
RO

IT
 A

V
E

TECH GARDENS

N
 G

A
RY

 A
V

E

CITY PLACE

Proposed Warranty Deed
~14,097 sq ft

0 250 500125
Feet

MARLIN
 PARK

ERSKINE ST

BURLESON &
 OSBORN

N
 B

O
ST

O
N

 A
V

E

GRINNELL ST

HARVARD ST

DUKE ST

TECH GARDENS

TECH GARDENS

TJ W
AGES

HIC
KORY

EVA M

RIC
E

LONESTAR

MARLIN
 PARK

BURLESON-O
SBORN

HEIG
HTS

MARLIN
 PARK

FORDHAM ST

ERNSKINE ST

EMORY ST

DUKE ST

DARTMOUTH ST

N
 E

LG
IN

 A
V

E

N
 D

ET
RO

IT
 A

V
E

N
 C

A
N

TO
N

 A
V

E



Lubbock Power and Light
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
September 9, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92834
Capital Project Name: Substation Capacity Upgrade - Erskine

Budget

Total Appropriation  $         5,270,000

Expended Contract or PO Number

Expended to Date  $                        -

Encumbered Contract or PO Number
Land Acquisition - Parcels 2909 & 2911                  34,000

Encumbered to Date  $              34,000

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation  $                        -

Remaining Appropriation  $         5,236,000



 AI# 12855 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 4. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf of
the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and all related documents, in
connection with certain real property located in Section 10, Block JS, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel
17), East of Upland Avenue, North of 7th Street, to be utilized for the Upland Avenue, 4th Street to 19th
Street, 22B Capital Improvements Project, which is a portion of the 2022 Street Bond Project.

Item Summary
806 Land Development Group LLC is dedicating right-of-way to the City of Lubbock to be utilized for
roadway improvements on the Upland Avenue: 4th Street to 19th Street Capital Improvements
Project on the east side of Upland Avenue, north of 7th Street.
 
The proponents will dedicate a 12,484 square feet tract of land for street right-of-way purpose, subject to
final approval by the City Council and approval of title.

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the land acquisition is $96,875.84 plus closing costs. This acquisition is funded in Capital
Improvements Project 92812, Upland Avenue: 4th Street to 19th Street – 22B, which is in the 2022
Street Bond Project.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Bailey Ratcliffe, P.E., Interim Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Parcel 17 - Resolution 
Parcel 17 - Dedication Deed 
Parcel 17 - GIS Map 
CIP 92812 Budget Detail 
CIP 92812 Project Detail 















UNSUBDIVIDED

1

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
Located in Section 10, Block JS

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

4TH ST

HID
EAWAY

APARTMENTS

TOWN &
 COUNTRY

MOBILE ESTATES

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

TERRA

ESTATES

NORTH

TOW
N& C

OUNTRY

M
OBIL

E E
STATES

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
12,484 sq ft

0 250 500125
Feet

GEORGE'S

RENTALS

7TH ST

BURGAMY

PARK NORTH

FRIENDSHIP

ESTATES

8TH ST

TERRA V
IS

TA

FRIE
NDSHIP

M
ID

DLE SCHOOL

12TH ST

9TH ST

PR
IM

RR
O

SE
 A

V
E



Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget

City of Lubbock Staff Time 12,163                      

Contract 17113 with Half Associates, Inc. for Design Services 949,700                    

Parcel 6 - Land Acquisition 24,740                      

Parcel 7 - Land Acquisition 13,633                      

Parcel 8 - Land Acquisition 54,487                      

Parcel 13 - Land Acquisition 51,018                      

Parcel 16 - Land Acquisition 63,785                      

Parcel 21 - Land Acquisition 36,621                      

Parcel 20 - Land Acquisition 28,350                      

Parcel 12 - Land Acquisition 32,422                      

Agenda Item September 24, 2024

Parcel 17 - Land Acquisition 96,876                      

Encumbered/Expended To Date 1,363,795                 

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation

Upland Avenue: 4th St to 19th St - 22B Construction 1,836,205                 

Remaining Appropriation -                                

Total Appropriation 3,200,000$               

City of Lubbock

92812

Upland Avenue: 4th St to 19th St - 22B

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

September 24, 2024



Project Scope

Upland Avenue from 4th Street to 19th Street is currently  a two-lane paved road and is designated in the  2018
Thoroughfare  Master Plan to become a five - lane modified principal ar terial roadway.  Continued growth in northwest
Lubbock has increased traffic demands along the  north Upland Avenue street corridor from 4th Street to 19th Street.  The
roadway contract will design and build three-lanes at  the  ult imate  configurat ion of the  fully  designed five  lane
thoroughfare .

Project Justi�cation

On November 8, 2022, Lubbock voters approved issuance of a $200 million street improvements bond
package for the purpose of providing permanent public improvements. The funding will acquire,
construct and reconstruct street improvements, including but not limited to sidewalks, utility line
relocations and traffic signalization, necessary and related storm drainage facilities, and the
acquisition of land and rights-of-way for the full width dedication.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Public Safety
Community Improvement
Growth and Development

FY 2022-23 $3,200,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2022-O0169

Project Dates Project Location

Design Start Date: 02/2023
Design Completion: 08/2025
Bid for Constuction:10/2025
Award Construction: 12/2025
Project Completion: 06/2027

Upland Ave - 4th Street to 19th Street

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $3,200,000 $11,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $3,200,000 $11,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Obligation Bonds $3,200,000 $11,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $3,200,000 $11,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92812CIP 92812 Upland Avenue from 4th Street to Upland Avenue from 4th Street to
19th Street - 22B19th Street - 22B

New Roadway InfrastructureNew Roadway Infrastructure

Project Manager: Project Manager: Bailey RatcliffeBailey Ratcliffe - Engineering - Engineering



 AI# 12856 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 5. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf of
the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and all related documents, in
connection with certain real property (Parcel 16) located in Section 38, Block AK, of the GC R.R. Co.
Survey, Lubbock County, Texas, to be utilized for the Upland Avenue, 34th Street to 50th Street, 22B
Capital Improvements Project, which is a portion of the 2022 Street Bond Project.

Item Summary
Pat Murden is dedicating right-of-way to the City of Lubbock to be utilized for roadway improvements
on the Upland Avenue: 34th Street to 50th Street Capital Improvements Bond Project on the northeast
corner of Upland Avenue and 50th Street.
 
The proponents will dedicate one 9,270 square feet tract of land and one 2,841 square feet tract of land
for street right-of-way purpose, subject to final approval by the City Council and approval of title.

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the land acquisition is $138,997 plus closing costs. This acquisition is funded in Capital
Improvements Project 92815, Upland Avenue: 34th Street to 50th Street – 22B, which is a portion of the
2022 Street Bond Project.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Bailey Ratcliffe, P.E., Interim Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Parcel 16 - Resolution 
Parcel 16 - Dedication Deed 
Parcel 16 - GIS Map 
9.24.24 CIP Spreadsheet 92815 
92815 - Upland Ave from 34th St to 50th St - 22B (1) 



























City of Lubbock
Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail
September 24, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92815
Capital Project Name: Upland Ave: 34th to 50th Street - 22B

Encumbered/Expended Budget
Staff time $ 31,621
Contract 17074 with Freese and Nichols for Design Services 1,639,143
Contract 17074 Amendment 1 with Freese and Nichols 393,388
Contract 17074 Amendment 2 with Freese and Nichols 620,141
Parcel 1 - ROW Acquisition 13,874
Parcel 2 - ROW Acquisition 13,121
Parcel 3 - ROW Acquisition 10,347
Parcel 4 - ROW Acquisition 15,482
Parcel 6 - ROW Acquisition 12,360
Parcel 7 - ROW Acquisition 95,666
Parcel 8 - ROW Acquisition 37,497
Parcel 9 - ROW Acquisition 83,938
Parcel 10 - ROW Acquisition 123,890
Parcel 11 - ROW Acquisition 23,025
Parcel 12 - ROW Acquisition 101,422
Parcel 13 - ROW Acquisition 74,031
Parcel 14 - ROW Acquisition 25,911
Parcel 15 - ROW Acquisition 3,984
Parcel 17 - ROW Acquisition 1,997
Parcel 18 - ROW Acquisition 29,303
Parcel 19 - ROW Acquisition 44,250
Parcel 20 - ROW Acquisition 1,722
Parcel 21 - ROW Acquisition 45,114
Parcel 22 - ROW Acquisition 56,457

Agenda Item September 24, 2024
Parcel 16 - ROW Acquisition 138,997

Encumbered/Expended To Date 3,636,681

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
Construction Upland Ave 34th to 50th 13,863,319

Remaining Appropriation -

Total Appropriation $ 17,500,000



Project Scope

Upland Avenue from 34th Street to 50th Street is currently  a two-lane paved road and is designated in the  2018
Thoroughfare  Master Plan to become a five - lane Principal Arterial (Modified).  Continued growth in west Lubbock has
increased traffic demands along the  Upland Avenue corridor from 34th Street to 50th Street.  This thoroughfare  will include
the ult imate  design of a five - lane undiv ided thoroughfare  with curb and gutter,  drainage ,  streetlights,  sidewalk
improvements,  ut ility  adjustment and right of way  acquisit ion services.

Project Justi�cation

On November 8, 2022, Lubbock voters approved issuance of a $200 million street improvements bond
package for the purpose of providing permanent public improvements. The funding will acquire,
construct and reconstruct street improvements, including but not limited to sidewalks, utility line
relocations and traffic signalization, necessary and related storm drainage facilities, and the
acquisition of land and rights-of-way for the full width dedication.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Public Safety
Community Improvement
Growth and Development

FY 2022-23 $4,000,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2022-O0169
FY 2023-24 $13,500,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2023-O0108

Project Dates Project Location

Design Start Date: 01/2023
Design Completion: 01/2024
Bid for Constuction:10/2024
Award Construction: 12/2024
Project Completion: 06/2026

Upland Ave - 34th to 50th St

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $17,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $17,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Obligation Bonds $17,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $17,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92815CIP 92815 Upland Ave from 34th Street to Upland Ave from 34th Street to
50th Street - 22B50th Street - 22B

New Roadway InfrastructureNew Roadway Infrastructure

Project Manager: Project Manager: Bailey RatcliffeBailey Ratcliffe - Engineering - Engineering



 AI# 12865 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 6. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf of
the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street Use and Right-of-Way Deed, and all related documents, in
connection with certain real property located in Section 6, Block E, of the GC & SF R.R. Co. Survey,
Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 10), on the north side of East 82nd Street, and west of King Avenue, to
be utilized for the 82nd Street, I-27 to Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd - 22B Capital Improvements Project,
which is a portion of the 2022 Street Bond Project.  

Item Summary
With the widening of 82nd Street from I-27 to Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd., the following street
dedication will allow for the construction of the arterial. Dee K Murdock and Bethany J. Keller are
dedicating right-of-way to the City of Lubbock.
 
The proponents will dedicate 1,185 square feet of land for street right-of-way purposes, for $2,707.50
plus closing costs.

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the land acquisition is $2,707.50, plus closing costs and is funded by Capital Improvements
Project 92825, Street Bond 82nd and MLK – 22 B, which is a portion of the 2022 Street Bond Project.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Bailey Ratcliffe, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Resolution - 82nd St. Parcel 10 
P10_Deed_Signed 
GIS map - 82nd St. Parcel 10 
CIP 92825 Budget Detail 
CIP Project Detail 

















4 22

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
Located in Section 6, Block E

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

K
IN

G
 A

V
E

E 80TH ST

TRIG
GS HEIG

HTS
K

IN
G

 A
V

E

TERRA

ESTATES

NORTH

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
1,195 sq ft

0 250 500125
Feet

E 82ND ST

ROBBIE

MARIO
N HEIG

HTS

O
A

K
 S

T

E 8ND ST

E 79TH ST

M
A

G
N

O
LI

A
 A

V
E



City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
September 24, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92825
Capital Project Name: Street Bond 82nd and MLK - 22B

Encumbered/Expended Budget
City of Lubbock Staff Time  $                                 13,356
Contract 17088 with LAN for Design Services on 82nd and MLK                                3,424,877
Playa Lake 82 Land Purchase                                   700,000

Agenda Items, September 24th 2024
Parcel 10 Land Purchase                                       1,892

Encumbered/Expended To Date                                4,140,125

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Purchase of Land and Roadway Construction                                1,559,875

Remaining Appropriation                                1,559,875

Total Appropriation  $                            5,700,000



Project Scope

82nd Street from I -27 to MLK Blvd and MLK BLVD from 74th Street to 82nd Street are  currently  a two-lane paved road and
are  designated in the  2018 Thoroughfare  Master Plan to become a seven-lane Principal Arterial and a five - land Principal
Arterial (Modified).  Continued growth in east Lubbock has increased traffic demands along the  82nd Street and MLK BLVD
corridors.  This thoroughfare  will include the  ult imate  design of a seven-lane and five - lane undiv ided thoroughfares with
curb and gutter,  drainage ,  streetlights,  sidewalk improvements,  ut ility  adjustment and right of way  acquisit ion services.

Project Justi�cation

On November 8, 2022, Lubbock voters approved issuance of a $200 million street improvements bond
package for the purpose of providing permanent public improvements. The funding will acquire,
construct and reconstruct street improvements, including but not limited to sidewalks, utility line
relocations and traffic signalization, necessary and related storm drainage facilities, and the
acquisition of land and rights-of-way for the full width dedication.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Public Safety
Community Improvement
Growth and Development

FY 2022-23 $5,700,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2022-O0169

Project Dates Project Location

Design Start Date: 01/2023
Design Completion: 01/2025
Bid for Constuction: 09/2025
Award Construction: 11/2025
Project Completion: 04/2029

82nd St and Martin Luther King Boulevard

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $5,700,000 $0 $14,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $5,700,000 $0 $14,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Obligation Bonds $5,700,000 $0 $14,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $5,700,000 $0 $14,100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92825 82nd Street and MLK Blvd- 22B
New Roadway Infrastructure

Project Manager: Bailey Ratcliffe - Engineering

FY 2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital Program - 300



 AI# 12837 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 7. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution receiving the Semi-Annual Report from the Capital
Improvements Advisory Committee, regarding the progress and implementation of the Impact Fee
Program.

Item Summary
On October 27, 2020, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 2020-O0136, amending Title II
Buildings; Development; Property Maintenance, of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, by adding
Chapter 41, Impact Fees.

In accordance with Texas Local Government Code Chapter 395.058, the Capital Improvements
Advisory Committee (CIAC) is required to file a semi-annual report with the City Council, with respect
to the progress of the capital improvements plan and any perceived inequities in implementing the plan
or imposing the impact fee.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager 
Bailey Ratcliffe, P.E., Interim Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer
Capital Improvements Advisory Committee

Attachments
Resolution 
CIAC Semi-Annual Report Fall 2024 







 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Capital Improvements Advisory Committee 

Impact Fee Program Semi-Annual Progress Report 

August 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by the City of Lubbock Engineering Department 

 

  



CIAC Semi-Annual Report  August 2024 
 

Page 2 of 6 

 

Introduction 

This report was prepared by the City of Lubbock Engineering staff and adopted by the Capital 

Improvements Advisory Committee for Roadway Impact Fees (“CIAC”). The purpose of this 

report is to advise the City Council, in accordance with Chapter 395 of the Texas Local 

Government Code of the status of the Impact Fee Program. This report should include 

information with respect to the progress of the capital improvements plan (or capacity plan) 

and any perceived inequities in implementing the plan or imposing the impact fee. The 

report must be restudied every five years according to Chapter 395 of the Texas Local 

Government Code. 

  

  

Program Overview and Status  

On October 27, 2020, Lubbock City Council adopted the impact fee ordinance (Ord. #2020-

O0136). Impact fees are charges assessed by local governments on new development 

projects in order to partially fund roadway, wastewater, and water improvements that are 

necessitated by new development. These funds are offset by City of Lubbock funds to build 

the infrastructure as detailed in the capacity plans. 

 

The effective date set for implementation of Roadway Impact Fees was June 1, 2021. On April 

26, 2022, Lubbock City Council amended the impact fee ordinance (Ord. #2022-O0068). This 

ordinance approved the updated impact fee study dated December 2021 that added newly 

annexed areas into the appropriate roadway service areas, updated the Roadway Service Area 

map, and recalculated the maximum fees per service area as shown below: 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Service Area 

Maximum Fee 

Per Service Unit  

(per Vehicle-

Mile) 

Collection Rate 

Effective before 

10/01/2022 

Collection Rate 

Effective on or 

after 10/01/2022 

A $855 $439 $427.50 

B $655 $327.50 $327.50 

C $825 $412.50 $412.50 

D $623 $319.50 $311.50 

E $1,011 $497.50 $505.50 

F $1,188 $589 $594 

G $22 $0 $0 

H $77 $0 $0 



CIAC Semi-Annual Report  August 2024 
 

Page 3 of 6 

 

The effective date for the implementation of wastewater and water impact fees was June 1, 

2022. The Wastewater Impact Fees were set at a discounted rate by City Council as shown 

below: 

 

Meter Size 

(Based on Water Meter) 

Maximum 

Impact Fee 
Collection Rate 

1” $562 $0 

1.5” $1,124 $0 

2” $1,798 $0 

3” $3,934 $0 

4” $6,744 $0 

6” $14,050 $0 

8” $26,976 $0 

10” $42,712 $0 

 

 

The Water Impact Fees were set at a discounted rate by City Council as shown below: 

 

Water Meter Size 
Maximum 

Impact Fee 
Collection Rate 

1” $576 $0 

1.5” $1,152 $0 

2” $1,843 $0 

3” $4,032 $0 

4” $6,912 $0 

6” $14,400 $0 

8” $27,648 $0 

10” $43,776 $0 

 

 

  



CIAC Semi-Annual Report  August 2024 
 

Page 4 of 6 

 

The status of various program elements are as follows:  

 

Land use assumptions 

Land use assumptions were adopted by City Council on June 23, 2020 (Resolution No. 2020-

R0211) and have not changed.  

 

Roadway Impact Fee Revenues 

A summary of roadway fee activity as of July 31, 2024 by service areas is provided below: 

 
Service Area Revenue Received Fees Distributed Remaining Funds 

A  $           2,539,487.21   $                    1,270,000.00   $                    1,269,487.21  

B  $              575,387.28   $                                        -     $                        575,387.28  

C  $              269,360.31   $                                        -     $                        269,360.31  

D  $              995,408.17   $                                        -     $                        995,408.17  

E  $           3,651,365.20   $                                        -     $                    3,651,365.20  

F  $           2,218,061.96   $                    1,600,000.00   $                        618,061.96  

G  $                               -     $                                        -     $                                        -    

H  $                               -     $                                        -     $                                        -    

Total  $      10,249,070.13   $                  2,870,000.00   $                  7,379,070.13  

 

Roadway Impact Fee Expenditures 
The total expenditures distributed through June 30, 2024 are detailed below: 

 

Service Area Amount Distributed Project Number Project Name 

A $                        1,270,000.00 92510 Upland Avenue 66th Street to 82nd Street 

F $                        1,600,000.00  92510 Upland Avenue 66th Street to 82nd Street 

 
Roadway Impact Fee Revenue Aging 

In accordance with Texas Local Government Code Chapter 395, the City tracks the age of each 

impact fee collected. If revenues are not distributed within five years, the payee may request a 

refund of the fee. If the revenues are not distributed within ten years, the City must refund the 

fee to the payee with or without a request from the payee.  

 

An aging report for the revenue collected by each service area is provided below. 

 

  Service Area A 

  Revenue Received Fees Distributed Funds Remaining 

2021  $                         3,911.49   $                                     -     $                                     -    

2022  $                    614,052.10   $                                     -     $                                     -    

2023  $                 1,294,004.00   $                                     -     $                    641,967.59  

2024  $                    627,519.62   $                 1,270,000.00   $                    627,519.62  

Total  $              2,539,487.21   $              1,270,000.00   $              1,269,487.21  



CIAC Semi-Annual Report  August 2024 
 

Page 5 of 6 

 

  Service Area B 

  Revenue Received Fees Distributed Funds Remaining 

2021  $                                     -     $                                     -     $                                     -    

2022  $                    218,973.60   $                                     -     $                    218,973.60  

2023  $                    198,767.34   $                                     -     $                    198,767.34  

2024  $                    157,646.34   $                                     -     $                    157,646.34  

Total  $                  575,387.28   $                                    -     $                  575,387.28  

 

  Service Area C 

  Revenue Received Fees Distributed Funds Remaining 

2021  $                                     -     $                                     -     $                                     -    

2022  $                      28,101.93   $                                     -     $                      28,101.93  

2023  $                    218,079.99   $                                     -     $                    218,079.99  

2024  $                      23,178.39   $                                     -     $                      23,178.39  

Total  $                  269,360.31   $                                    -     $                  269,360.31  

 

  Service Area D 

  Revenue Received Fees Distributed Funds Remaining 

2021  $                                     -     $                                     -     $                                     -    

2022  $                    809,244.55   $                                     -     $                    809,244.55  

2023  $                    144,811.31   $                                     -     $                    144,811.31  

2024  $                      41,352.31   $                                     -     $                      41,352.31  

Total  $                  995,408.17   $                                    -     $                  995,408.17  

 

  Service Area E 

  Revenue Received Fees Distributed Funds Remaining 

2021  $                      11,808.73   $                                     -     $                      11,808.73  

2022  $                    858,136.35   $                                     -     $                    858,136.35  

2023  $                 1,910,725.11   $                                     -     $                 1,910,725.11  

2024  $                    870,695.01   $                                     -     $                    870,695.01  

Total  $              3,651,365.20   $                                    -     $              3,651,365.20  

 

  Service Area F 

  Revenue Received Fees Distributed Funds Remaining 

2021  $                                     -     $                                     -     $                                     -    

2022  $                 1,275,363.72   $                                     -     $                                     -    

2023  $                    665,153.31   $                                     -     $                    340,517.03  

2024  $                    277,544.93   $                 1,600,000.00   $                    277,544.93  

2025  $                                     -     $                                     -     $                                     -    

Total  $              2,218,061.96   $              1,600,000.00   $                  618,061.96  

 

 

Credit Agreements  

No credit agreements are in place at this time.  



CIAC Semi-Annual Report  August 2024 
 

Page 6 of 6 

 

Recommendations 

The CIAC submits the following recommendations for consideration by the City of Lubbock 

City Council: 

• The Roadway Impact Fee is being collected and maintained in accordance with state 

law and City code. 

• Continue distributing available funds within five years of fee collection.  

• Conduct an Impact Fee Restudy, including land use assumptions and capital project 

plans, in accordance with state law. 

 

The committee endorses this report and its recommendations and will discuss such with the 

City Council at their request. 

 

_____________________________    ____________________________ 

Chris Berry       Bailey Ratcliffe, P.E. 

Capital Improvements Advisory Board   Interim City Engineer 

Chair        Staff Liaison  

  

 

Capital Improvements Advisory Committee Members 

Position 1 – Thomas Parker 

Position 2 – Chris Berry, Chair 

Position 3 – Vacant 

Position 4 – Thomas Payne 

Position 5 – Jonathan Hill 

Position 6 – Andy Bean, Vice Chair 

Position 7 – Marciano Morales 

 



 AI# 12843 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 8. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Public Works
Contract 18263, and all related documents, with Deerwood Construction, Inc., for waterline construction
along East 4th Street.

Item Summary
The City issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for this project to install 3,635 linear feet of 12-inch
water line along East 4th Street to provide water services to the area, and an additional 1,621 linear feet
of 12-inch water line, as an additive alternate to accommodate future expansion.
 
In response to RFQ 24-18263-TF, the following proposals were opened on September 10, 2024.
  

Contractor Amount
Deerwood Construction, Inc., Lubbock, Texas $749,216.47
Utility Contractors of America, Inc., Lubbock, Texas $826,765.00
RUTS Construction, LLC, Haslet, Texas $957,037.00
MH Civil Constructors, Inc. Amarillo, Texas $1,016,080.00
LA Fuller and Sons Construction, LTD. Amarillo, Texas $1,042,909.75

The proposals were evaluated using the following criteria: 60 points for price, 30 points for contractor
qualifications, and 10 points for construction time, for a maximum value of 100 points. After the
proposals were evaluated by the RFP committee, the following ranking was obtained.
  

Contractor Total/100 pts
Deerwood Construction, Inc., Lubbock, Texas 93.00
Utility Contractors of America, Inc., Lubbock, Texas 91.12
MH Civil Constructors, Inc. Amarillo, Texas 77.74
RUTS Construction, LLC, Haslet, Texas 75.97
LA Fuller and Sons Construction, LTD. Amarillo, Texas 75.60

Staff recommends award to the highest ranked proposer, Deerwood Construction Inc., of Lubbock,
Texas, for the contract amount of $749,216.74.  Included in the contract amount is an alternate requested
by the Lubbock Economic Development Alliance (LEDA).  The alternate is in the amount of
$199,305.50 and calls for additional water infrastructure to support PLANT Agricultural Systems, a
LEDA economic development project.  LEDA has agreed to fully fund the alternate.  Following this
memo is a letter from LEDA outlining their commitment.  The funding for this project is scheduled to be



ratified by the LEDA Board at their September 26th Council meeting.  Upon receiving the funds from
LEDA a budget amendment to accept the funds will follow.

Time for substantial completion is 90 calendar days from Notice to Proceed.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 18263 for $749,216.74 is funded as follows: 

• CIP 92702 East Lubbock Future Expansion will fund the base bid in the amount of $549,910.97. 
• LEDA will fund the additive alternate bid in the amount of $199,305.50.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Bailey Ratcliffe, P.E. Interim Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 18263 
LEDA Commitment 
LocationMap 
CIP 92702 Budget Detail 
CIP 92702 Project Detail 
Project Summary Sheet 



RESOLUTION 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL or THE CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute 
for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Public Works Contract No. 18263 for waterline 
construction along East 4th Street as per RFP 24-18263-TF, by and between the City of 
Lubbock and Deerwood Construction , Inc. of Lubbock, Texas, and related documents. Said 
Contract is attached hereto and incorporated in this resolution as if fully set forth herein and 
shall be included in the minutes of the City Council. 

Passed by the City Council on _____________ _ 

MARK W. MCBRAYER, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

Courtney Paz, City Secretary 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

·~ 
elli Leisure, Senior Assistant City Attorney 

ccdocs/RES.Public Works Contract 18263 Waterline const. E 4th 
9.16.24 





City of Lubbock, TX

Public Works

RFP 24-18263-TF 

Waterline Construction Along East 4th Street 

# Items

QTY

+/- U/M

Unit

Cost

Extended

Cost

#1-1 Mobilization - Contractor mobilization including move-in and move-out cost from each site location. 1 LS    35,676.97            35,676.97 

#1-2
Provide and maintain a Traffic Control Plan - Preparation, approval from COL Traffic Engineering to all 

sites, and all other work considered incidental to this item.
1 LS    20,000.00            20,000.00 

#1-3
Provide and maintain a SWPPP - Including preparation, NOI, NOT, and all other work considered 

incidental to this item.
1 LS      1,800.00              1,800.00 

#1-4 Trench Safety - Complete and in place. 3500 LF             4.85            16,975.00 

#2-1

Furnish and install C900 12" PVC approved water pipe in open cut trench, backfilled to 95% compaction, 

and tested as herein specified, including all fittings, equipment, tools, and labor to perform work. 3380 LF         100.00          338,000.00 

#2-2

Furnish and install C900 12" PVC approved water pipe by means other than open cut, backfilled to 95% 

modified compaction, and tested as herein specified, including all fittings, equipment, tools, and labor to 

perform work.

128 LF         123.00            15,744.00 

#2-3

Furnish and install C900 8" PVC approved water pipe in open cut trench, backfilled to 95% modified 

compaction, and tested as herein specified, including all fittings, equipment, tools, and labor to perform 

work.

120 LF           88.00            10,560.00 

#2-4

Furnish and install 20" steel encasement with 12" C-900 DR-18 pvc pipe by method other than open cut, 

provide all casing spacers  and backfilled to 95% modified compaction, and tested as herein specified, 

including all fittings, equipment, tools, and labor to perform work, as herein specified.

125 LF         168.00            21,000.00 

#2-5

Furnish and install 16" steel encasement with 8" C-900 DR-18 pvc pipe by method other than open cut, 

provide all casing spacers  and backfilled to 95% modified compaction, and tested as herein specified, 

including all fittings, equipment, tools, and labor to perform work, as herein specified.

86 LF         145.00            12,470.00 

#2-6
Furnish and install 12" gate valve and box as herein specified, including all equipment, tools, and labor to 

perform work.
3 EA      4,900.00            14,700.00 

#2-7
Furnish and install 8" gate valve and box as herein specified, including all equipment, tools, and labor to 

perform work.
1 EA      3,800.00              3,800.00 

#2-8
Furnish and install 12" Air Release Valve, as herein specified, including all equipment, tools, and labor to 

perform work.
1 EA      3,600.00              3,600.00 

#2-9
Furnish and install Fire Hydrant, as herein specified, including all equipment, tools, and labor to perform 

work.
2 EA      7,000.00            14,000.00 

#2-10 Tie in to to existing water Line, complete and in place per Specifications. 3 LS      4,500.00            13,500.00 

#3-1 Trench Safety - Complete and in place. 1630 LF             4.85              7,905.50 

#3-2

Furnish and install C900 12" PVC approved water pipe in open cut trench, backfilled to 95% compaction, 

and tested as herein specified, including all fittings, equipment, tools, and labor to perform work. 1630 LF         100.00          163,000.00 

#3-3
Furnish and install 12" gate valve and box as herein specified, including all equipment, tools, and labor to 

perform work.
3 EA      4,800.00            14,400.00 

#3-4
Furnish and install Fire Hydrant, as herein specified, including all equipment, tools, and labor to perform 

work.
2 EA      7,000.00            14,000.00 

#4-1 Flowable backfill as approved, complete and in place per Specifications. 141 CY         185.00            26,085.00 

#4-2

Remove and Repair asphalt paving, including all material, equipment and labor to perform sub grade 

compaction and testing. Concrete installation per COL Specifications and all other work considered 

incidental to this item.

20 SY         100.00              2,000.00 

 $        74,451.97 

 $      447,374.00 

 $      199,305.50 

 $        28,085.00 

 $      749,216.47 

Deerwood Construction, Inc. of Lubbock, TX

General

Total (Item 1-1 through 4-2):

Water Improvements

Water Improvements - Alternate

Paving Repair

Total (Item 1-1 through 1-4):

Total (Item 2-1 through 2-10):

Total (Item 3-1 through 3-4):

Total (Item 4-1 through 4-2):







0 500 1,000250
Feet

E 
LO

O
P 

28
9

N
IT

ER
 A

V
E

E 4TH ST

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the
Government Code, this product is for informational purposes and may not
have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying
purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and represents
only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Existing Water Main
Proposed Water Main
Lot-Block Lines
Lubbock City Limits

CIP 92702 – Waterline Construction Along
East 4th Street

O
LI

V
E 

A
V

E

Q
U

ET
ZE

L 
A

V
E

PE
A

C
H

 A
V

E

RE
D

W
O

O
D

 A
V

E

Ü



Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget
92702

City of Lubbock Staff Time 25,444$                              
Water System Improvements 583,120
Sewer System Improvements 166,763
Contract 17639 with Cobb Fendley 15,642
Advertising 436

Agenda Items, September 24th, 2024
Contract 18263 - Waterline Construction along East 4th Street 749,216

Encumbered/Expended To Date 1,540,622                           

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Water System Improvements (140,622)                             

Remaining Appropriation (140,622)                             

Total Appropriation 1,400,000$                         

City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail
September 24, 2024

East Lubbock Future Expansion
92702



Project Scope

The Capital Improvement Project is for both water and sewer service  extension for the  proposed Lubbock Economic
Development Alliance project Basil.

Project Justi�cation

The project is currently proposed to be located near East Loop 289 and 19th Street adjacent to the
Lubbock Land Application Site and will require water and waste water main extension to provide
potable water service, wastewater service, and fire protection.
 
This project will also provide loop in the water distribution system to an existing system on East 4th
Street. This loop will help prevent service and quality problems that can exist on "dead end" water
mains.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Growth and Development, Community
Improvement

FY 2020-21 $500,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2020-O0123
FY 2021-22 $500,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2021-O0126
FY 2023-24 $400,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2023-O0108

Project Dates Project Location

Construction July 2024 thru December 2024 East Loop 289 and 19th Street

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Design $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Construction $400,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $1,400,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Water/Wastewater Fund Cash $1,400,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $1,400,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92702 East Lubbock Future Expansion
Upgrade/Major Maintenance

Project Manager: Wood Franklin - Wastewater Collection

FY 2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital Program - 122



Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

FY 2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital Program - 123



Project Scope

Engineering and construction of water distribution system infrastructure  to adequate ly  service  areas in South and
Southeast Lubbock as recommended by  the  Water Distribution System Master Plan

Project Justi�cation

The project provides water service to newly annexed areas in South and Southeast Lubbock. With
recent annexations in South and Southeast Lubbock, the water distribution system needs to be
extended to provide service.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Community Improvement
Growth and Development

FY 2022-23 $1,500,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2022-O0136

Project Dates Project Location

Design: Completed in-house by City Staff
Award Date for Bid – Construction:06/2023
Project Start Date – Construction:08/2023
Project End Date – Construction:08/2024

South and Southeast Lubbock

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $1,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $1,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Water/Wastewater Fund Revenue Bonds $1,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $1,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92805CIP 92805 Southeast Lubbock Water Southeast Lubbock Water
System ExpansionSystem Expansion

Infrastructure ImprovementsInfrastructure Improvements

Project Manager: Bailey RatcliffeProject Manager: Bailey Ratcliffe  - Engineering- Engineering

FY 2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital Program - 73



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
RFP 24-18263-TF  

Waterline Construction Along East 4th Street 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on August 18 & August 25, 2024. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from August 18 to September 10, 2024. 

6 individuals attended the pre-proposal meeting. 

52 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 

31 vendors were notified separately.  

5 vendors submitted proposals. 

 



 AI# 12844 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 9. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Public Works
Contract 18195, with Trifecta Services Company, for the demolition and removal of a water tower at
74th Street and Genoa Avenue.

Item Summary
This project’s purpose is to de-commission and dismantle elevated and ground storage tanks that were
replaced by newly constructed elevated and ground storage tanks.

In response to ITB 24-18195-KM, the following bids were received and opened on August 12, 2024.
  

Contractor Amount
Trifecta Services Company, Pflugerville, Texas $135,000
Hunter Demolition & Wrecking Corp, Bexar, Texas $156,500
Veit National Corporation, Hennepin, Minnesota $281,510
Intercon Demolition, Lubbock, Texas $305,000

Staff recommends award to the lowest bidder, Trifecta Services Company of Pflugerville, Texas, for
$135,000.

The contract will be for a term of 210 calendar days from the date of the Notice to Proceed,
with liquidated damages of $300 per day for each day that substantial completion exceeds the 180-day
limit, and $100 per day of liquidated damages for each day that final completion exceeds the 210-day
limit.

Fiscal Impact
Contract No. 18195 for $135,000 is funded in Capital Improvements Project 8687, Demo of Elevated
and Ground Storage Tanks.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager 
Bailey Ratcliffe, P.E., Interim Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 



Location Exhibit 
CIP Spreadsheet 
Budget Detail 
Project Summary 





REVISED

BID SUBMITTAL FORM

UNIT PRICE BID CONTRACT

DATE: 08/12/2024

PROJECT NUMBER: ITB 24-18195-KM Demolition and Removal of Water Tower at 74th and Genoa

Bid of Trifecta Services Company

Bidder)

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council City of Lubbock, Texas (hereinafter called Owner)

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The Bidder, in compliance with your Invitation to Bid for the construction of the referenced project, having
carefully examined the plans, specifications, instructions to bidders, notice to bidders and all other related
contract documents and the site of the intended work, and being familiar with all of the conditions surrounding
the construction of the intended project including the availability of materials and labor, hereby intends to

furnish all labor, materials, and supplies; and to construct the project in accordance with the plans, specifications
and contract documents, within the time set forth therein and at the price stated.

The bidder binds himself on acceptance of his bid to execute a contract and any required bonds, according to

the accompanying forms, for performing and completing the said work within the time stated and for the prices
stated.

(hereinafter called

Bidder hereby agrees to commence the work on the above project on a date to be specified in a written
"Notice to Proceed" of the Owner and to substantially complete the project within 180 consecutive calendar
days with final completion of the project within 210 consecutive calendar days as stipulated in the
specification and other contract documents. Bidder hereby further agrees to pay to Owner as liquidated
damages in the sum of $300 for each consecutive calendar day after substantial completion and liquidated
damages in the sum of $100 for each consecutive calendar day after final completion set forth herein above
for completion of this project, all as more fully set forth in the General Conditions of the Agreement.

Bidder understands and agrees that this bid submittal shall be completed and submitted in accordance with
instruction number 29 of the General Instructions to Bidders.

Bidder understands that the Owner reserves the right to reject any or all bids and to waive any formality in the
bidding.

The Bidder agrees that this bid shall be good and may not be withdrawn for a period of 60 calendar days after
the scheduled closing time for receiving bids.

The undersigned Bidder hereby declares that he has visited the site of the work and has carefully examined the
plans, specifications and contract documents pertaining to the work covered by this bid, and he further agrees
to commence work on or before the date specified in the written notice to proceed, and to substantially complete
the work on which he has bid; as provided in the contract documents.

Bidders are required, whether or not a payment or performance bond is required, to submit a cashier's check or
certified check issued by a bank satisfactory to the City of Lubbock, or a bid bond from a reliable surety
company, payable without recourse to the order of the City of Lubbock in an amount not less than five percent
(5%) of the total amount of the bid submitted as a guarantee that bidder will enter into a contract, obtain all
required insurance policies, and execute all necessary bonds (if required) within 10 business days after notice
of award of the contract to him.



City of Lubbock, TX

Public Works

ITB 24-18195-KM

Demolition and Removal of Water Tower at 74th and Genoa

# Items

QTY

+/-
U/M

Unit

Price

Extended

Cost

#0-1 Mobilization - Contractor mobilization including move-in and 

move-out cost from each site location.

1 LS $10,000.00 $10,000.00

#0-2 Demolition - Demolition and complete removal of 1,000,000 

gallon storage tank, on 74th and Genoa Avenue in Lubbock, TX 

including all equipment, labor, and materials needed.

1 LS $109,300.00 $109,300.00

#0-3 Foundation Removal to 4' Depth - Foundation Removal includes 

all equipment, labor, and materials needed- Foundation removal 

including tank foundation piers, concrete slab, concrete piers, and 

concrete overflow drainage. Existing surface feastures such as the 

concrete slab and piers are also to be removed. Removal of phone 

company equipment must be completed by phone company.

1 LS $5,500.00 $5,500.00

#0-4 Fence Removal - Fence Removal including all equipment, labor, 

and materials needed - Fence on the East side of the tank is to be 

removed. Fence materials include wood and gate. Fence posts with 

concrete are to be removed if applicable.

1 LS $1,700.00 $1,700.00

#0-5 24" SCRC Water Line Removal - includes all equipment, labor, 

and materials needed - A removal of a 24-inch diameter Steel 

Cylinder Reinforced Concrete water line; Length of approximately 

65 feet.

1 LS $1,500.00 $1,500.00

#0-6 24" SCRC Water Line Cut & Plug - includes all equipment, labor, 

and materials needed - A cut and plug of a 24-inch diameter Steel 

Cylinder Reinforced Concrete water line.

1 LS $4,500.00 $4,500.00

#0-7 Concrete Valve Vault Removal - includes all equipment, labor, 

hauling, and materials needed - A demolition/removal of a large 

and heavy concrete vault vault including the valve and equipment 

inside.

1 LS $2,500.00 $2,500.00

$135,000.00 Total (Items 0-1 through 0-7): 

Trifecta Services Company of Plfugerville, TX

Base Bid



Enclosed with this bid is a Cashier's Check or Certified Check for

NA Dollars ($ N/A

Dollars {$	
) or a Bid Bond in the sum of

), which it is agreed shall be collected and
retained by the Owner as liquidated damages in the event the bid is accepted by the Owner and the
undersigned fails to execute the necessary contract documents, insurance certificates, and the required
bond (if any) with the Owner within 10 business days after the date of receipt of written notification of
acceptance of said bid; otherwise, said check or bond shall be returned to the undersigned upon
demand.

Bidder understands and agrees that the contract to be executed by Bidder shall be bound and include all contract

documents made available to him for his inspection in accordance with the Notice to Bidders.

Date:
Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code 252.043(g), a

competitive scaled bid that has been opened may not be

changed for the purpose of correcting an error in the bid price.
THEREFORE, ANY CORRECTIONS TO THE BID PRICE
MUST BE MADE ON THE BID SUBMITTAL FORM PRIOR

TO BID OPENING.

Mill.
:natureAuthorized Sign.

Karan Sam Shah

(Printed or Typed Name)

Trifecta Services Company

Company
13505 Immanuel Road

(Seal if Bidder is a Corporation)

ATTEST:

Address

TravisPflugerville

City,
Texas

County
. 78660

Zip CodeState

Telephone:
Fax: 704

704 _ 900-1977

. 900-1975

Bidder acknowledges receipt of the following addenda:
FEDERAL TAX ID or SOCIAL SECURITY No.

Addenda No. J_
Addenda No.

Addenda No. _5.
Addenda No. 4

Date July 24, 2024

Date August 4, 2024

Date August 5, 2024

Date August 7, 2024

47-2426047

EMAIL; ragonzalez@trifectainc.com

WomanM/WBE
Firm:

Black American Native American

Tlispanic
American

Asian Eacitic
American

Other (Specify)
X

Six Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty 6,750.00

08/12/2024



73RD ST

G
E

N
O

A
 A

V
E

74TH ST 74TH ST

0 100 200 300
Feet

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the
Government Code, this product is for informational purposes and may not
have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying
purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and represents
only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Location Map for 74th Street and Genoa Ave
Water Tank Demo

Ü

1,015,000 Gallon Elevated Storage
Tank to be removed.



City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
September 5, 2024

Capital Project Number: 8687
Capital Project Name: Demolition and Removal of Water Tower at 74th and Genoa

Encumbered/Expended Budget
City of Lubbock Staff Time  $                                   2,095

Agenda Items, September 24th, 2024
Contract 18195 - Demolition and Removal of Water Tower at 74th and Genoa 135,000

Encumbered/Expended To Date                                   137,095

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Water System Equipment Demolition and Removal                                   137,905

Remaining Appropriation                                               -

Total Appropriation  $                               275,000



Project Scope

This project is intended to de-commission and dismantle  e levated and ground storage tanks that were  replaced by  newly
constructed e levated (EST's) and ground storage tanks (GST's).

Project Justi�cation

The EST's that will be demolished are located at 35th & Ave. W and at 74th & Genoa Ave. The GST is
located at the North Water Treatment Plant (NWTP). Recent construction of four EST's eliminate the
need for the two existing EST's which had become non-compliant with the Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality requirements for water storage and firefighting capabilities. The existing six
million gallon (MG) GST located at the NWTP became structurally unsafe during a severe winter icing
event. This tank has been replaced with a larger eight million gallon tank.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Redevelopment

FY 2023-24 $275,000 was appropriated by
Ord.2023-O0108

Project Dates Project Location

Demo of 74th & Genoa: Summer 2024
Demo of 35th & Ave W: Summer 2025
Demo of 6 MG GST: Summer 2026

74th & Genoa Ave, 35th & Ave W, North Water
Treatment plant

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $275,000 $275,000 $550,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $275,000 $275,000 $550,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Water/Wastewater Fund Cash $275,000 $275,000 $550,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $275,000 $275,000 $550,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 8687 Demo Elevated and Ground
Storage Tanks

Infrastructure Improvements

Project Manager: Bailey Ratcliffe - Engineering

FY 2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital Program - 42



 
 
 
 

Purchasing and Contract Management  
 

Project Summary 
 

ITB 24-18195-KM Demolition and Removal Water Tower at 74th and Genoa 
 
 
Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on July 17 & July 24, 2024. 
Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 
Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  
Notice was published on Bonfire.com from July 16, 2024 thru August 12, 2024 
50 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 
10 vendors were notified separately.  
4 vendors submitted bids. 

 



 AI# 12767 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 10. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning:
Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0130, and take action on the City of Lubbock Planning and Zoning
Commission's final report of September 5, 2024, to the Lubbock City Council on proposed amendments
to the Unified Development Code (Ordinance No. 2023-O0054) recommended for adoption, limited to
the following: 

Table 39.03.023-2 (related to Base Public and Nonresidential Districts Sign Standards)1.
Section 39.02.004.a.7, Section 39.02.004.b.7, Section 39.02.004.c.7, Section 39.02.004.d.7, Section
39.02.004.e.7 (related to Signs in Residential Districts for Non-Residential Uses)

2.

Section 39.03.023.b.8 (related to Monument Signs)3.

Item Summary
On September 10, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

On July 25, 2024, the Planning and Zoning Commission (PZC) and the City Council held a joint public
hearing to discuss amending the Unified Development Code (Ordinance No. 2023-O0054).
On August 13, 2024, the City Council tabled the amendments related to sign regulations, until the
September 10, 2024 City Council meeting.
On September 5, 2024, the PZC reviewed sign-related amendments to the Unified Development Code.
The recommendation from the PZC will be presented at the City Council meeting on September 10,
2024.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
UDC Amendments Ordinance 
Amendments 









UDC Amendments  

Remove Amendments #4 and #5 and replace with the following amendment: 

4. Table 39.03.023-2 – Base Public and Nonresidential Districts Sign Standards – Canopy Signs 

 

a. Add a new definition for Sign, Freestanding Canopy:    

i. Sign, Freestanding Canopy means any sign painted, printed, attached, or otherwise applied to 

the surface of a freestanding canopy. 

 

b. Add a new definition for Freestanding Canopy: 

i. Freestanding Canopy means any structure that is not attached to the wall of a building which 

was built and designed for the purpose of covering or shading an area. Freestanding canopies 

are comprised of a roof and posts and are open on all sides. 

 

c. Add the Freestanding Canopy Sign Type to Table 39.03.023-2: 

 

 

19. Section 39.02.004(a)(7), (b)(7), (c)(7), (d)(7), (e)(7) – Signs in Residential Districts for Non-Residential Uses 

 

a. Current Language: Signs. Table 39.02.004.a-5, RE Permitted Sign Types, denotes sign types permitted 

in the RE district. For more details and specific standards, refer to Division 3.5, Signs. Signs not listed in 

this table are prohibited in this zoning district. In case of a conflict between Table 39.02.004.a-5 and the 

provisions of Division 3.5, Signs, the latter shall control. 

  

b. Proposed Revision: Signs. 

 

A. Table 39.02.004.a-5, RE Permitted Sign Types, denotes sign types permitted in the RE district. For more 

details and specific standards, refer to Division 3.5, Signs. Signs not listed in this table are prohibited in this 

zoning district. In case of a conflict between Table 39.02.004.a-5 and the provisions of Division 3.5, Signs, the 

latter shall control. 

A. Table 39.02.004.b-5, SF-1 Permitted Sign Types, denotes sign types permitted in the SF-1 district. For 

more details and specific standards, refer to Division 3.5, Signs. Signs not listed in this table are prohibited in 

this zoning district. In case of a conflict between Table 39.02.004.b-5 and the provisions of Division 

3.5, Signs, the latter shall control. 

 

A. Table 39.02.004.c-5, SF-2 Permitted Sign Types, denotes sign types permitted in the SF-2 district. For more 

details and specific standards, refer to Division 3.5, Signs. Signs not listed in this table are prohibited in this 

zoning district. In case of a conflict between Table 39.02.004.c-5 and the provisions of Division 3.5, Signs, the 

latter shall control. 

A. Table 39.02.004.d-5, MDR Permitted Sign Types, denotes sign types permitted in the MDR district. For 

more details and specific standards, refer to Division 3.5, Signs. Signs not listed in this table are prohibited in 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629


this zoning district. In case of a conflict between Table 39.02.004.d-5 and the provisions of Division 

3.5, Signs, the latter shall control. 

 

A. Table 39.02.004.e-5, HDR Permitted Sign Types, denotes sign types permitted in the HDR district. For 

more details and specific standards, refer to Division 3.5, Signs. Signs not listed in this table are prohibited in 

this zoning district. In case of a conflict between Table 39.02.004.e-5 and the provisions of Division 

3.5, Signs, the latter shall control. 

B. Nonresidential. For nonresidential developments, refer to Subsection 39.02.006.a, Neighborhood 

Commercial (NC). 
 

33. Section 39.03.023.b.8 – Monuments Signs 

 

a. Current Language: Separation. Monument or pole signs are permitted on one street frontage when 400 

feet of frontage is provided.  The total area of both signs shall not exceed the maximum sign area listed 

in the table below and the minimum separation between signs is 200 feet. 

 

b. Proposed Revision: Separation. Two monument or pole signs are permitted on one street frontage 

when 400 feet of frontage is provided.  The total area of both signs shall not exceed the maximum sign 

area listed in the table below and the minimum separation between signs is 200 feet. 

 

47. Table 39.03.023-2 Base Public and Nonresidential Districts Sign Standards - Murals  

 

a. Current Language: Murals are limited to 50% of façade area/10% of façade area per tenant and 75% of 

façade or tenant space width in MU Districts.  

 

b. Proposed Revision: Add to Sign Area (max) and Sign Width (max): No max, when located on a side or 

rear facing wall. 

 

c. Proposed Revision: Remove MU-4 and MU-6 from list. 

 

 

 

 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-579
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1748
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1748


 AI# 12596 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 11. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Professional Services
Contract 17872, with SAFEbuilt, LLC, for the completion of a Zoning Map Analysis.

Item Summary
On June 25, 2024, the City Council postponed this item to September 24, 2024, in order to allow staff to
revise the scope of work and reduce the overall cost. The scope of work has been revised so that City
staff will conduct all public input sessions with citizens, which reduced the overall cost of the contract
from $90,000 to $80,560.

Plan Lubbock 2040, the City's Comprehensive Plan, was adopted by the City Council in December
2018. This plan contains a framework of goals, actions, and time frames for the City of Lubbock to
implement, in order to support the vision expressed in the document.

Included in Plan Lubbock 2040 is the Future Land Use Map and Future Land Use Plan, which utilized
existing conditions, fiscal impact modeling, and community visioning, to provide guidance for
Lubbock’s future land development.

Since then, it has been determined that the current zoning of certain properties, when compared to
existing development, are inconsistent with the Future Land Use Map and Future Land Use Plan.
Allowing these to continue in their current manner could allow for development patterns that would be
inconsistent with the Future Land Use Map, goals of the Future Land Use Plan, and the Comprehensive
Plan for the City of Lubbock.

This project supports and furthers the City Council goals of Community Improvement, Growth and
Development, and Economic Development and Redevelopment.

The Planning Department issued a Request for Qualifications (RFQ), which outlined the City's
expectations for communication, scope of work, and project approach. RFQ 24-17872-KM was
published on January 24, 2024, with a deadline for submissions on March 26, 2024.

In response to RFQ 24-17872-KM, four submittals were received and reviewed on April 12, 2024, and
were evaluated using the following criteria:
  

• 30 Points for Project Team Organization and Qualifications;
• 30 Points for Experience on Similar Projects;
• 30 Points for Project Approach;
• 10 Points for Overall Responsiveness to the RFQ; and
• Pass/Fail for the Required Documents Submitted. 

After the proposals were evaluated by a 4-person committee, using a maximum point value of 100 points



After the proposals were evaluated by a 4-person committee, using a maximum point value of 100 points
per evaluator, the following ranking was obtained.
 

Consultants  Points
SAFEbuilt, LLC, Houston, Texas 90.75
ENKI Development Solutions, Colleyville, Texas 78.75
MIG, Inc., San Antonio, Texas 76.00
Kaart, Grand Junction, Colorado 66.25

The Evaluation Committee recommends the award to the highest ranked consultant, SAFEbuilt, LLC, of
Houston, Texas, for $80,560. The time for completion is 6 months, with the option to extend the contract
up to an additional 6 months, at no additional cost.

Fiscal Impact
The cost of this contract, $80,560, is funded in two Capital Improvement Projects: 

Capital Improvement Project 8664, FY 2021-22 Comprehensive Zone Map Analysis
Capital Improvement Project 92706, Neighborhood Plan Development and Implementation

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning

Attachments
Resolution - Zoning Map Analysis 
Contract - Zoning Map Analysis 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 



























 
PROJECT APPROACH 
First and foremost, SAFEbuilt’s approach to providing professional planning services is based on understanding the needs 
of citizens, city staff, and stakeholders. The team we’ve assembled for this project brings decades of multidisciplinary 
experience, having worked with municipal and local governments, quasi-governmental entities, private sector clients, 
developers, and community and neighborhood-based organizations. This expertise includes serving in such capacities as 
planning department directors, zoning administrators, and managers within local government. Additionally, our team has 
drafted and implemented Comprehensive Plans, Unified Development Codes, Zoning and Land Use Regulations in Texas 
and nationally.  

Having worked extensively in the public sector, we understand how crucial it is to come up with practical solutions that are 
in line with local rules and budgetary realities. We also recognize that successful implementation of any project depends 
not only on what is desirable, but also on what is politically achievable. Our team will work closely with City staff, city 
residents, and stakeholders to obtain input and feedback on our findings to achieve consensus for a course of action. 

We will review the recent updates to the City’s Unified Development Code and the 2040 Comprehensive Plan (adopted in 
2018) to find where there are inconsistencies between the Future Land Use Map and Zoning Map. We will include 
recommendations for areas that will see potential growth and new development occur, while maintaining or preserving 
areas that are already stable or thriving. The update will be consistent with the latest requirements of State Law, and a 
final product that will support positive and sustainable growth for the City in the future. 

 

1. PROJECT INITIATION AND PROJECT ADMINISTRATION   
• TIMELINE – MONTHS 1-6 

Key members from the SAFEbuilt team will meet with City staff to kick off the project, gather data and information, finalize 
protocols and communications, discuss the stakeholder process and outline overall expectations and desired project 
outcomes. This will include refining the scope of work (if needed), discussing a detailed project schedule, and reviewing 
the management structure that will ensure the program is completed on time and on budget.  

Additionally, we will coordinate and regularly consult with City Staff throughout the length of the project to review progress 
and ensure that necessary inputs and documentation are received and incorporated into the work product in a timely 
manner.  This task includes on-going monitoring of the schedule and budget. Project Coordination Meetings will include a 
combination of in-person and virtual consultation.   

 
• DELIVERABLES: 

o Kickoff meeting agenda (PDF file) 
o Kickoff meeting summary (PDF file) 
o Updated project schedule (Excel/PDF files) 

 

2. EXISTING CONDITIONS AND FUTURE LAND USE/ZONING ANALYSIS    
• TIMELINE - MONTHS 1-3 

City staff will provide the most current existing land use data in the City, current and planned infrastructure, economic 
data, and other pertinent information for SAFEbuilt to analyze the information. We will review parcels within the City limits 
and conduct a survey using the latest aerial photography and do field visits to confirm uses as they exist today.  

We will then compare and analyze current and future land uses (from the Future Land Use Map adopted with Plan 
Lubbock 2040) to find where discrepancies may be occurring with existing zoning. We will also review and analyze areas 
facing development pressure and where changes to the Future Land Use Map would be recommended. We will also 
review where the CIP has proposed infrastructure improvements that would increase development opportunities and 
intensities.  

97171
Text Box
Exhibit "A"



 
 

3. DRAFT LAND USE AND ZONING ANALYSIS FINDINGS REPORT  
• TIMELINE - MONTHS 3-5 

Based on the evaluation in Task 2, the project team will summarize the land use and zoning analysis into a finding report 
that outlines potential changes to the Future Land Use Map and Comprehensive Zoning Map. We will communicate 
technical and policy issues in a straightforward manner that is easily understood by City staff, community members, and 
decision-makers. SAFEbuilt will present findings and recommendations for City staff review and input. Based on our 
discussion with the City, this will likely include changes to industrial zoned properties and transitional residential in key 
areas of the City.  

After feedback is provided by City staff, we will create a prioritized action plan for implementing the actions the City 
would like to move forward and to assist in the decision making process of future rezonings. This will be included in the  
draft report and presented to City staff before preparing a final draft for Planning and Zoning Commission review.   

• DELIVERABLES: 
o Draft Comprehensive Zoning and Land Use Analysis Report (Word and PDF files) 

 
 

4. FINAL LAND USE AND ZONING ANALYSIS REPORT AND ADOPTION HEARINGS  
• MONTH 6 

The final draft of the Land Use and Zoning Analysis Report will be presented to the Planning and Zoning Commission in a 
work session for review and recommendations before going to City Council for adoption. Once adopted, the final 
documents will be provided to the City for placement on the City’s website. 
 

• DELIVERABLES: 
o Study Session Agenda and Meeting Notes (Word and PDF documents) 
o Final Comprehensive Zoning and Land Use Analysis Report (Word and PDF documents) 
o Presentation Materials for Adoption Hearings 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Ian Knox Nick Pergakes Kurt Nagle Jordan Cruz Bailey  Sullivan

Total 
Number of 

Hours
Labor Cost Per 

Task

Role
Project 
Director

Project 
Manager

Principal 
Planner

Associate  
Planner

Assistant 
Planner

Hourly Rate 175$           170$           165$           130$             110$              
Hours Per Task   
Task 1. Project Initiation and Project 
Administration 

Subtotal 24 30 24 22 22 122 18,540$          
Task 2. Existing Conditions and Future Land 
Use/Zoning Analysis 

Subtotal 16 16 20 50 50 152 20,820$          
Task 3. Draft Land Use and Zoning Analysis 
Findings Report  
Subtotal 16 20 20 40 50 146 20,200$          
Task 4. Final Land Use Analysis Report and 
Adoption Hearings

Subtotal 20 12 16 20 30 98 14,080$          
Grand Total Hours 76 78 80 132 152 518
Fee Total 13,300$      13,260$      13,200$      17,160$        16,720$         73,640$          

Reimbursable Expenses* 6,920$            
Grand Fee Total 80,560$          
* Rei mbur sabl e expenses i nc l ude mi l eage,  pr i nt i ng,  or  ot her  assoc i at ed cost s  wi t h t he pr oj ec t .   

City of Lubbock Zoning Map Analysis

97171
Text Box
Exhibit "B"



Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended 8664 92706 Total
Advantage Courts Co. 25,300           25,300$         
Professional Services 13,149           13,149           
Mission Exteriors, LLC 10,000           10,000           
Social PinPoint 6,867             6,867             
Print Shop Charge 66                  66                  

Agenda Item  September 24, 2024
SAFEbuilt - Contract 17872 75,000           5,560             80,560           

Encumbered/Expended To Date 75,000           60,942           135,942         

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
439,058         439,058         

Remaining Appropriation -                    439,058         439,058         

Total Appropriation 75,000$         500,000         575,000$       

Neighborhood Plan Development and Implementation

Construction

City of Lubbock

Budget

92706

FY 2021-22 Comprehensive Zone Map Analysis
8664

September 24, 2024
Project Cost Detail

Capital Project 



Project Scope

The purpose of the Comprehensive Zoning Map and Land Use Analysis  is  to compare exist ing land uses,
current zon ing designations, and the Future Land Use Map to help gu ide future land use decisions.  Step
One: Data collect ion  and analysis.  Obtain  land use codes for all  parcels with in  the city l imits and conduct
surveys using exist ing aerial photography and field survey methodology.  Compare current land uses with
exist ing zoning and Future Land Use Map.  Step Two: Create a report  showing discrepancies between
current land uses, exist ing zoning, and the Future Land Use Map.  Step Three: Seek gu idance from the
Planning and Zoning Commission  and City Council  on  act ions to take with  report  findings.  Develop a
priorit ized act ion  plan  to be included in  the report .  Step Four: Discuss, present to, and obtain  adoption  from
the Planning and Zoning Commission  and City Council.  Prepare and publish  the Comprehensive Zoning Map
and Land Use Analysis  Report  for p lacement on  the City ’s  website.  Use the report  to assist  in  rezoning
analysis  and decisions.

Project Justi�cation

In December 2018, the City Council adopted an updated Comprehensive Plan, known as Plan Lubbock
2040. Included in Plan Lubbock 2040 is the Future Land Use Map and Future Land Use Plan, which
utilized existing conditions, fiscal impact modeling, and community visioning to provide guidance on
Lubbock’s future land development. Since then, it has been determined that the current zoning of
certain properties, when compared to existing development, are inconsistent with the Future Land Use
Map and Future Land Use Plan. Allowing these to continue in their current manner could allow for
development patterns that would be inconsistent with the Future Land Use Map and goals of the
Future Land Use Plan and the Comprehensive Plan for the City of Lubbock. This project supports and
furthers the City Council goals of: Community Improvement, Growth and Development, and Economic
Development and Redevelopment.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Community Improvement
Growth and Development
Economic Development and Redevelopment

The Comprehensive Plan update was undertaken
in 2016-2018. This item is a byproduct of the
adopted Future Land Use Map and Future Land
Use Plan.
 

FY 2021-22 $75,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2021-O0126

Project Dates Project Location

Project Start Date: May 14, 2024
Project Completion Date: November 30, 2024

City-wide

CIP 8664CIP 8664 FY 2021-22 Comprehensive FY 2021-22 Comprehensive
Zoning Map AnalysisZoning Map Analysis

Master Plans/StudiesMaster Plans/Studies

Project Manager: Kristen SagerProject Manager: Kristen Sager  - Planning- Planning



Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Design $75,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $75,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Fund Cash $75,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $75,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

https://opengov.com/


Project Scope

This funding is  to support  the first  year development of the new Neighborhood Planning Program as
identified and recommended in  PlanLubbock2040.  The Neighborhood Planning Program will  include robust
public vis ion ing, stakeholder input ,  and partnersh ip bu ild ing; demographic analysis ; land use and zoning
analysis , including coordination  with  city-wide housing study; area market study and economic
development recommendations to support  exist ing businesses, attract  new businesses, and adapt to
changing retail  t rends; review of funding and incentive strategies for desired development; identificat ion  of
catalyst  project  development opportun it ies ; t ransportat ion  and circu lat ion  analysis , including safety,
congestion , access, and smart  mobil ity  tools ; corridor aesthetics enhancement recommendations; creat ion
of a detailed implementat ion  strategy to gu ide recommended act ions; and recommended changes to the
Future Land Use Map.  Potential uses of th is  funding include: research  and analysis  funding, professional
services, p lan  development expenses, brownfield location  and database development , environmental s ite
location  and database development , development incentives, capital expense for approved identified needs
resu lt ing from completed plan(s).  In tended to serve as a mult i-year CIP to support  Neighborhood Planning
Process.  See PlanLubbock 2040 (pages 178-183).

Project Justi�cation

PlanLubbock2040, adopted in December of 2018, identifies neighborhood planning in its
implementation plan as a priority that should begin within one to two years of the adoption of the
comprehensive plan. The first neighborhood plans undertaken should focus on East and North
Lubbock neighborhoods. This also supports and furthers the City Council goals of: Communication,
Community Improvement, Growth & Development, and Economic Development & Redevelopment. The
guidelines created by the first neighborhood plan will continue to be influential as staff continues their
ongoing neighborhood and small area planning efforts.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Community Improvement
Growth & Development
Economic Development & Redevelopment

FY 2020-21 $250,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2020-O0123
FY 2022-23 $250,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2022-O0136

Project Dates Project Location

Project Start Date: October 1, 2022
Project Completion Date: Ongoing

City-wide

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92706CIP 92706 Neighborhood Plan Neighborhood Plan
Development and ImplementationDevelopment and Implementation

AdministrativeAdministrative

Project Manager: Kristen Sager - PlanningProject Manager: Kristen Sager - Planning



Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Fund Cash $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

https://opengov.com/


 AI# 12850 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 12. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Water Utilities: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an Interlocal
Contract with the City of Shallowater for the continued purchase of wholesale water from the City’s
potable water system.

Item Summary
In October 1994, the City of Lubbock entered into a 15-year water supply contract with the City of
Shallowater.  Shallowater’s request for water was based on their need to blend their well water with
Lubbock’s water supply, in order to meet federal and state water quality standards. 
 
In July 2009, Lubbock continued providing water to Shallowater by entering into a 5-year wholesale
water supply contract, which included a provision for Shallowater to provide annual updates regarding
their efforts to decrease reliance on Lubbock as a supplemental water provider.    
 
In January 2014, the City of Lubbock entered into another 5-year contract to continue supplying water to
Shallowater.  During this contract period, Shallowater began design and construction of additional well
field and treatment facilities that would reduce their reliance on Lubbock’s water supply, limiting their
need for Lubbock’s water supply to emergencies only.  

In September 2019, the City of Lubbock entered into another 5-year contract to continue supplying
water to Shallowater. This contract updated the terms and conditions of the existing contract,
limiting the amount of water that could be purchased to 85 million gallons per year.  In addition, the
City of Shallowater began to be required to enact water conservation and/or drought restrictions that are
at least as stringent as the City of Lubbock’s restrictions. The City of Shallowater was also given the
ability to move the current Point of Delivery to another location along the Bailey County Well Field
transmission pipeline, as soon as their new water project is completed.

This new contract proposes to renew the contract with an additional 3 years of wholesale water supply
service, with two additional 1-year option periods.  Certain new limiting provisions will apply.  Under
this new contract, the City of Shallowater will be allowed to take a maximum of 60 million gallons of
wholesale water per year (down from 85 million) and only 1.0 million gallons per 24-hour day (down
from 1.5 million gallons per 24-hour period in the previous 5-year contract).

The City of Shallowater anticipates undergoing substantial infrastructure upgrades in the next 5 years.
Shallowater has requested from the City of Lubbock, approval of a temporary allowance for additional
maximum wholesale water delivery during the period of construction, up to 85 million gallons per year,
which is the allotment in the current contract.  Shallowater is still permitted to change the point of
delivery, should constructed facilities require it. 

Wholesale customers are required by ordinance to pay wholesale water rates adopted by the City
Council in Section 22.03.085(6) of the City’s Code of Ordinances.



This contract includes a provision that the City of Shallowater will continue to pay the standard
wholesale water rates. Wholesale customers pay a 1.5x multiplier more than commercial customers
within the city limits, since Lubbock citizens have paid for expensive water supply projects necessary to
continue meeting Lubbock’s water demand. 
 
The City used a total of 12.8 billion gallons of water in Fiscal Year 2022-23.  The amount of water
Lubbock supplies to Shallowater on an annual basis represents less than 0.7% of Lubbock’s total usage.

The Lubbock Water Advisory Commission met on September 16, 2024, and is recommending the
contract as referenced above.  

Fiscal Impact
This contract will generate approximately as much as $580,000 annually in metered water revenue for
the next 5 years.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works
Lubbock Water Advisory Commission

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 



































 AI# 12862 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 13. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider two resolutions authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Lease Agreement Extension with Wilkerson Investment Company for 401 and 405 34th Street, and 530
36th Street, currently being used by several City departments for operations.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock entered into a lease agreement with Wilkerson Investment Company to utilize the
properties and structures located at 401 and 405 34th Street and at 530 36th Street. The departments that
utilize these properties are Facilities Management, Engineering, Pavement Management, Radio Shop,
and the Lubbock Police Department.

The original date of both leases was April 1, 2010, through March 31, 2020.
The original monthly amount of the 401 and 405 34th Street lease was $6,848.00 per month, and the 530
36th Street lease amount was $5,286.00 per month.

The current date of both 5-year-lease extensions is April 1, 2021, through March 31, 2025.
The current monthly amount of the 401 and 405 34th Street lease is $7,532.92 per month, and the 530
36th Street lease amount is $5,815.00 per month.

The new lease terms will have a 5-year term of April 1, 2025, through March 31, 2030.
The lease at 401 and 405 34th Street will be $8,286.21 per month, and the lease at 530 36th Street will
be $6,400.00 per month.

Below is a summary of the Contract Term, Monthly, Annual Term Cost, and change in costs vs.
prior contract terms.
  

Contract Term Address SQ FT
Area 

Monthly
Rent

Annual
Rent

Annual Change/
Prior Contract

2025–2030
(New 5-Year)

530 36th St 15,306 $6,400.00 $76,800.00 $7,020.00
401-405 34th
St 14,355 $8,286.21 $99,434.52 $9,039.48

2020-2025 (Current
5-Year)

530 36th St 15,306 $5,815.00 $69,780.00 $6,348.00
401-405 34th
St 14,355 $7,532.92 $90,395.04 $8,219.04

2010-2020 (Previous
10-Year)

530 36th St 15,306 $5,286.00 $63,432.00  
401-405 34th
St 14,355 $6,848.00 $82,176.00  

Fiscal Impact



Fiscal Impact
The lease at 401 and 405 34th Street will be $8,286.21 per month, with an annual cost of $99,434.52.
The lease at 530 36th Street will be $6,400.00 per month, with an annual cost of $76,800.00.
The total annual cost of the lease at both locations will be $176,234.52, and is funded in the operating
budgets for the various department users.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino Assistant City Manager
Mark Zavicar Director Facilities Management

Attachments
Resolution Lease Extension 34th St 
Lease Extension Contract 34th St 
Lease Agreement 401-405 34th St. 
Resolution Lease Extension 36th St 
Lease Extension 36th St 
Lease Agreement 530 36th St. 



























































 AI# 12851 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 14. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an
Interlocal Agreement, and all related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock Public Health
Department and StarCare Specialty Health System, to assist in a behavioral health response to a disaster
or emergency event.

Item Summary
In the event of an emergency, the City of Lubbock may find it necessary to coordinate disaster
behavioral health services or provide medical countermeasures to large numbers of people in the area
served by the Department. 

This agreement allows for the following services.
  

• StarCare Specialty Health System will be allowed to coordinate the recruitment, credentialing,
and assignment of mental health professionals in order to provide disaster behavioral health
services.  This agreement will go into effect upon the official request from the Department.

• StarCare Specialty Health System will be allowed to dispense medical countermeasures to their
staff, staff’s families, and their clientele, in order to prevent the spread of an infectious disease. 
This agreement will go into effect only if the State Commissioner of Health or the Lubbock Health
Authority declares that large scale immunizations or treatment is necessary as a control measure,
for an outbreak of communicable disease or if mass prophylaxis against a bioterrorism agent or
other infectious disease is required.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Katherine Wells, Director of Public Health

Attachments
Resolution 
Interlocal Agreement 

















 AI# 12864 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 15. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 1 to the Department of State Health Services (DSHS) Contract No.
HHS001439500038, and all related documents, under the Center for Health Emergency Preparedness
and Response Grant Program, by and between the City of Lubbock and the State of Texas, acting by and
through DSHS.

Item Summary
This is an existing grant through the Department of State Health Services (DSHS). The Public Health
Emergency Preparedness Contract (PHEP) was initially awarded to the Public Health Department in
2003, from the Department of State Health Services. The purpose of this Grant Agreement is to perform
activities in support of the PHEP Cooperative Agreement from the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention (CDC), in support of public health emergency preparedness. 

Amendment No. 1 revises Section X, Federal Award Information and revises Attachment A, Project
2025 Statement of Work. These revisions are outlined in the contract. 

The contract term is July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2025. This document requires an electronic signature

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Katherine Wells, Director of Public Health

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 





 

P.O. Box 149347 • Austin, Texas 78714-9347 • Phone: 888-963-7111 • TTY: 800-735-2989 • dshs.texas.gov 

 
 

 
The Honorable Tray Payne, Mayor 
City of Lubbock 
PO Box 2000 

Lubbock, Texas 79401 
 

Subject:  Public Health Emergency Preparedness Contract 
  DSHS Contract Number: HHS001439500038 

Contract Amendment No.: 1 

  Contract Amount: $288,016.00 
  Contract Term: July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2025 

 
Dear Mayor Payne: 
 

Enclosed is the Public Health Emergency Preparedness grant agreement amendment 
(A.1) between the Department of State Health Services and City of Lubbock 

(“Grantee”). 
 
The purpose of this amendment is to revise Section X, Federal Award Information 

and revise Attachment A, Project FY2025 Statement of Work, to perform activities in 
support of the Public Health Emergency Preparedness (“PHEP”) Cooperative 

Agreement from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (“CDC”) in support 
of public health emergency preparedness. 

 
Please let me know if you have any questions or need additional information. 
 

Sincerely,  
 

 
 
Jennifer Silva, CTCM 

Contract Manager 
512-776-6567 

Jennifer.Silva@dshs.texas.gov 

 
 

 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: B023553D-6630-458E-B190-01786D789DF8

mailto:Jennifer.Silva@dshs.texas.gov


Attachment A.1 - Project FY2025 Statement of Work 
DSHS Contract No. HHS001439500038  

 
 

Page 1 of 9 

 

        ATTACHMENT A.1 

PROJECT FY2025 STATEMENT OF WORK 

 

I. GRANTEE RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

Grantee shall: 

   

A. Perform activities in support of the Public Health Emergency Preparedness (“PHEP”) 

Cooperative Agreement between the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (“CDC”) and 

the Department of State Health Services (“System Agency”) to advance public health 

emergency preparedness. 

 

B. Perform the activities required under this Contract in the following cities, counties, or groups 

of counties (cumulatively, Grantee’s “Jurisdiction”): Lubbock County. 

 

C. Provide System Agency with situational awareness data generated through interoperable 

networks of electronic data systems. 

 

D. Coordinate with System Agency program staff to develop a preparedness activity plan for the 

Grantee’s Jurisdiction. At minimum, the Grantee shall ensure at least three (3) of the following 

public health emergency preparedness capabilities are addressed on an annual basis: 

  

1. Capability 1 – Community preparedness is the ability of communities to prepare for, 

withstand, and recover from public health incidents in both the short-term and long-term. 

2. Capability 2 – Community recovery is the ability of communities to identify critical assets, 

facilities, and other services within public health, emergency management, health care, 

human services, mental/behavioral health, and environmental health sectors that can guide 

and prioritize recovery operations. 

3. Capability 3 – Emergency operations coordination is the ability to coordinate with 

emergency management and to direct and support an incident or event with public health 

or health care implications by establishing a standardized, scalable system of oversight, 

organization, and supervision that is consistent with jurisdictional standards and practices 

and the National Incident Management System (“NIMS”). 

4. Capability 4 – Emergency public information and warning is the ability to develop, 

coordinate, and disseminate information, alerts, warnings, and notifications to the public 

and incident management personnel. 

5. Capability 5 – Fatality management is the ability to coordinate with partner organizations 

and agencies to provide fatality management services to ensure the proper recovery and 

preservation of remains; identification of the deceased; determination of cause and manner 

of death; release of remains to an authorized individual; and provision of mental/behavioral 

health assistance for the grieving. The role also may include supporting activities for the 

identification, collection, documentation, retrieval, and transportation of human remains, 

personal effects, and evidence to the examination location or incident morgue. 

6. Capability 6 – Information sharing is the ability to conduct multijurisdictional and 

multidisciplinary exchange of health-related information and situational awareness data 

among federal, state, local, tribal, and territorial levels of government and the private 

Docusign Envelope ID: B023553D-6630-458E-B190-01786D789DF8



Attachment A.1 - Project FY2025 Statement of Work 
DSHS Contract No. HHS001439500038  

 
 

Page 2 of 9 

 

sector. This capability includes the routine sharing of information, as well as the issuing of 

public health alerts to all levels of government and the private sector in preparation for, 

and in response to, events or incidents of public health significance. 

7. Capability 7 – Mass care is the ability of public health agencies to coordinate with and 

support partner agencies to address, within a congregate location (excluding shelter-in-

place locations), the public health, health care, mental/behavioral health, and human 

services needs of those impacted by an incident. This capability includes coordinating 

ongoing surveillance and public health assessments to ensure that health needs continue to 

be met as the incident evolves. 

8. Capability 8 – Medical countermeasure dispensing and administration is the ability to 

provide medical countermeasures to targeted population(s) to prevent, mitigate, or treat the 

adverse health effects of a public health incident, according to public health guidelines. 

This capability focuses on dispensing and administering medical countermeasures, such as 

vaccines, antiviral drugs, antibiotics, and antitoxins. 

9. Capability 9 – Medical materiel management and distribution is the ability to acquire, 

manage, transport, and track medical materiel during a public health incident or event and 

the ability to recover and account for unused medical materiel, such as pharmaceuticals, 

vaccines, gloves, masks, ventilators, or medical equipment after an incident. 

10. Capability 10 – Medical surge is the ability to provide adequate medical evaluation and 

care during events that exceed the limits of the normal medical infrastructure of an affected 

community. It encompasses the ability of the health care system to endure a hazard impact, 

maintain or rapidly recover operations that were compromised, and support the delivery of 

medical care and associated public health services, including disease surveillance, 

epidemiological inquiry, laboratory diagnostic services, and environmental health 

assessments. 

11. Capability 11 – Non-pharmaceutical interventions are actions that people and communities 

can take to help slow the spread of illness or reduce the adverse impact of public health 

emergencies. This capability focuses on communities, community partners, and 

stakeholders recommending and implementing non-pharmaceutical interventions in 

response to the needs of an incident, event, or threat. Non-pharmaceutical interventions 

may include isolation; quarantine; restrictions on movement and travel advisories or 

warnings; social distancing; external decontamination; hygiene; and precautionary 

protective behaviors. 

12. Capability 12 – Public health laboratory testing is the ability to implement and perform 

methods to detect, characterize, and confirm public health threats. It also includes the 

ability to report timely data, provide investigative support, and use partnerships to address 

actual or potential exposure to threat agents in multiple matrices, including clinical 

specimens, and food, water, and other environmental samples. This capability supports 

passive and active surveillance when preparing for, responding to, and recovering from 

biological, chemical, and radiological (if a Radiological Laboratory Response Network is 

established) public health threats and emergencies. 

13. Capability 13 – Public health surveillance and epidemiological investigation is the ability 

to create, maintain, support, and strengthen routine surveillance and detection systems and 

epidemiological investigation processes. It also includes the ability to expand these systems 

and processes in response to incidents of public health significance. 

14. Capability 14 – Responder safety and health is the ability to protect public health and other 

Docusign Envelope ID: B023553D-6630-458E-B190-01786D789DF8



Attachment A.1 - Project FY2025 Statement of Work 
DSHS Contract No. HHS001439500038  

 
 

Page 3 of 9 

 

emergency responders during pre-deployment, deployment, and post-deployment. 

15. Capability 15 – Volunteer management is the ability to coordinate with emergency 

management and partner agencies to identify, recruit, register, verify, train, and engage 

volunteers to support the jurisdictional public health agency’s preparedness, response, and 

recovery activities during pre-deployment, deployment, and post-deployment. 

 

E. Match funds awarded under this Grant Agreement with costs or third-party contributions that 

are not paid by the federal government under another award, except where authorized by 

federal statute to be used for cost-sharing or matching. The non-federal contributions (“match”) 

may be provided directly or through donations from public or private entities and may be in 

cash or in-kind donations, fairly evaluated, including plant, equipment, or services. The costs 

that the Grantee incurs in fulfilling the matching or cost-sharing requirement are subject to the 

same requirements, including the cost principles, that apply to the use of federal funds, 

including prior approval requirements and other rules for allowable costs as described in 45 

Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 74.23 and 45 CFR 92.24, as amended. 

 

Grantee shall provide matching funds in the amount of ten percent (10%) of the DSHS Direct 

Costs and Indirect Costs amount as outlined in ATTACHMENT B, PROJECT FY2025 BUDGET. 

“Cash match” is defined as an expenditure of cash by the Grantee on allowable costs under 

this Grant Agreement that are borne by the Grantee. “In-kind match” is defined as the dollar 

value of non-cash contributions by a third party given in goods, commodities, or services that 

are used in activities that benefit this Grant Agreement’s project, and that are contributed by 

non-federal third parties without charge to the Grantee. The criteria for a match must: 

 

1. Be an allowable cost under the applicable federal cost principle; 

2. Be necessary and reasonable for the efficient accomplishment of project or program 

objectives; 

3. Be verifiable within the Grantee’s (or subgrantee’s) records; 

4. Be documented, including methods and sources, in the approved budget (applies only to 

cost reimbursement contracts); 

5. Not be included as contributions toward any other federally assisted project or program 

(match can count only once); 

6. Not be paid by the federal government under another award, except where authorized by 

federal statute to be used for cost-sharing or match; 

7. Conform to other provisions of governing circulars/statutes/regulations as applicable for 

the Contract; 

8. Be adequately documented; 

9. Follow procedures for generally accepted accounting practices as well as meet audit 

requirements; and 

10. Value the in-kind contributions reported and be supported by documentation reflecting the 

use of goods and/or services during the Grant Agreement term. 

 

F. In the event of a local, state, or federal emergency, System Agency will reimburse Grantee up 

to five percent (5%) of the total Grant Agreement award for its personnel costs in responding 

to an emergency event. Grantee shall maintain records to document the personnel time spent 

on response efforts for audit purposes. Within five (5) calendar days of the onset of the 

Docusign Envelope ID: B023553D-6630-458E-B190-01786D789DF8



Attachment A.1 - Project FY2025 Statement of Work 
DSHS Contract No. HHS001439500038  

 
 

Page 4 of 9 

 

emergency, Grantee shall notify the System Agency Contract Representative identified in 

SECTION VIII, CONTRACT REPRESENTATIVES, of this Grant Agreement, in writing of its 

implementation of this provision. The preapproval is required to ensure the emergency meets 

the conditions of the funding is the best course of action. 

G. In the event of a public health emergency involving a portion of the state, mobilize and dispatch 

staff or equipment purchased with funds from previous PHEP cooperative agreements, and not 

currently performing critical duties in the Grantee’s Jurisdiction, to the affected area of the 

state upon receipt of a written request from System Agency. 

 

H. Coordinate activities and response plans within Grantee’s Jurisdiction with the state, regional, 

and other local jurisdictions, among local agencies, and with hospitals and major health care 

entities, jurisdictional Metropolitan Medical Response Systems, and Councils of Government. 

 

I. Inform System Agency in writing if Grantee will not continue performance under this Grant 

Agreement within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of System Agency’s notification of an 

amended standard(s) or guideline(s). In such event, System Agency may terminate this Grant 

Agreement immediately or within a reasonable period of time, as determined by System 

Agency. 

 

J. Develop, implement, and maintain a timekeeping system for accurately documenting staff time 

and salary expenditures for all staff funded through this Grant Agreement, including partial 

full-time employees and temporary staff. 

 

K. Have plans, processes, and training in place to meet NIMS compliance requirements. 

 

L. When using volunteers during the Grant Agreement term, designate a Texas Disaster Volunteer 

Registry (“TDVR”) State Emergency System for the Advanced Registration of Volunteer 

Health Professionals (“ESAR-VHP”) System Administrator, participate in required 

administrator trainings, and utilize the system to identify volunteers. 

 

M. Coordinate all planning, training, and exercises performed under this Grant Agreement with 

other Local Health Entities, the Texas Division of Emergency Management (“TDEM”), or 

other points of contact at the discretion of System Agency, to ensure consistency and 

coordination of requirements at the local level and eliminate duplication of effort between the 

various domestic preparedness funding sources in the state. 

 

N. Coordinate all risk communication activities with the System Agency Communications Unit by 

using System Agency’s core messages posted on the System Agency website and submitting 

copies of draft risk communication materials to System Agency for coordination prior to 

dissemination. 

 

O. Work with the Regional Health Care Coalition to develop comprehensive preparedness 

strategies by participating in all regional healthcare coalition meetings.  

 

Docusign Envelope ID: B023553D-6630-458E-B190-01786D789DF8



Attachment A.1 - Project FY2025 Statement of Work 
DSHS Contract No. HHS001439500038  

 
 

Page 5 of 9 

 

P. Fill any vacant positions within ninety (90) calendar days. Vacant positions existing after 

ninety (90) days may result in a decrease in funds. Grantee must report all position vacancies 

to their assigned System Agency Contract Representative each month until all positions are 

filled. 

 

Q. Comply with all state and System Agency guidance and standards, including the following: 

 

Texas Grant Management Standards, located at the following URL, 

https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/grant-management/. 

 

R. Comply with all applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations, as amended, 

including, but not limited to, the following: 

 

1. Texas Government Code Chapter 418; 

2. Public Law 116-22, Pandemic and All-Hazards Preparedness and Advancing Innovation 

Act (“PAHPAI”); 

3. Public Law 109-417 Pandemic and All-Hazards Preparedness Act (“PAHPA”); 

4. Texas Health and Safety Code Chapter 81;  

5. Section 319 C-1 of the Public Health Service (PHS) Act (47 USC § 247d-3a), as amended; 

and 

6. 2 CFR Part 200. 

 

S. Comply with all requirements related to purchases made with grant funds and uses of grant 

funds under this Grant Agreement. The requirements regarding purchases made with grant 

funds and uses of grant funds under this Grant Agreement include the following: 

 

1. Grantee may not use funds for research, clinical care, fundraising activities or lobbying, 

construction or major renovations, reimbursement of pre-award costs, to supplant existing 

state or federal funds for activities, payment or reimbursement of backfilling costs for staff, 

purchase of vehicles of any kind, uniforms, buildings or real property, or funding an award 

to another party or provider who is ineligible. 

2. Grantee may not use funds made available under this Contract to promote or advocate the 

legalization or practice of prostitution or sex trafficking. Nothing in the preceding sentence 

shall be construed to preclude the provision to individuals of palliative care, treatment, or 

post-exposure pharmaceutical prophylaxis, and necessary pharmaceuticals and 

commodities, including test kits, condoms, and, when proven effective, microbicides. 

3. Grantee must initiate the purchase of all equipment approved in writing by System Agency, 

as applicable. Failure to timely initiate the purchase of equipment may result in the loss of 

availability of funds for the purchase of equipment. Requests to purchase equipment must 

be submitted to the assigned System Agency Contract Representative. 

4. At the expiration or termination of this Grant Agreement for any reason, title to any 

remaining equipment and supplies purchased with funds under this Grant Agreement 

reverts to System Agency. Title may be transferred to another party at the sole discretion 

of System Agency. System Agency may, at its option and to the extent allowed by law, 

transfer the reversionary interest to such property to Grantee. 

Docusign Envelope ID: B023553D-6630-458E-B190-01786D789DF8

https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/grant-management/


Attachment A.1 - Project FY2025 Statement of Work 
DSHS Contract No. HHS001439500038  

 
 

Page 6 of 9 

 

5. Grantee shall not use System Agency funds to lease buildings or real property without prior 

written approval from System Agency. Further, Grantee shall not use System Agency funds 

for the purchase of buildings or real property under any circumstance. 

6. System Agency reserves the right, where allowed by legal authority, to redirect funds in 

the event of financial shortfalls. 

7. System Agency will monitor Grantee’s expenditures on a monthly basis. If expenditures 

are below the amount projected in Grantee’s total Project FY amount, Grantee’s budget 

may be subject to a decrease for the remainder of the Project FY.  

 

T. Comply with requirements related to the cost reimbursement budget under this Grant 

Agreement. The cost reimbursement budget requirements include the following: 

 

1. Grantee’s approved cost reimbursement budget must document all approved and allowable 

expenditures. 

2. Grantee shall only utilize funding under this Grant Agreement for approved and allowable 

costs. If Grantee requests to utilize funds for an expense not documented in the approved 

cost reimbursement budget, Grantee shall notify the System Agency Contract 

Representative, in writing, and request approval prior to utilizing the funds. System Agency 

shall provide written notification whether the requested expense is approved or denied. 

3. If needed, Grantee may revise the System Agency-approved cost reimbursement budget. 

The following requirements apply to budget transfers across budget categories: 

a. Transferring funds between budget categories, other than the “Equipment” and 

“Indirect Cost” categories, is allowable with System Agency’s written approval, but 

cannot exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the total allotted amount during a Project 

FY.  If the budget transfer(s) does exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the total allotted 

amount during a Project FY, alone or cumulatively, in addition to System Agency’s 

written approval, a formal Grant Agreement amendment is required;  

b. Grantee may revise the “Equipment” and “Indirect Cost” budget categories, however 

any such revision requires System Agency’s written approval and a formal Grant 

Agreement amendment; and  

c. As stated in Section I(T)(3)(a) and I(T)(3)(b), if Grantee requests revisions to the cost 

reimbursement budget, it shall provide an email notification to the System Agency 

Contract Representative. The request must include a draft of the revised categorical 

budget, a summary of revisions being requested with the total percentage of funds being 

moved, and a justification of such revisions. System Agency will notify Grantee if its 

revision request is approved. Thereafter, System Agency will amend the Grant 

Agreement, if necessary, based on the criteria established in this Section I(T)(3). 

Grantee’s proposed budget revision is not authorized, and funds cannot be utilized, 

until the Grant Agreement amendment is executed.  

 

U. Comply with the reporting requirements and due dates established in this ATTACHMENT A.1, 

PROJECT FY2025 STATEMENT OF WORK and SECTION VII, REPORTING REQUIREMENTS, 

of the Contract Signature Document. Unless stated otherwise in this Grant Agreement, 

Grantee must submit the reports via Qualtrics, a web-based system, according to instructions 

provided by System Agency. Programmatic reports satisfy the information-sharing 

Docusign Envelope ID: B023553D-6630-458E-B190-01786D789DF8



Attachment A.1 - Project FY2025 Statement of Work 
DSHS Contract No. HHS001439500038  

 
 

Page 7 of 9 

 

requirements set forth in Texas Government Code, Sections 421.071 and 421.072(b) and (c). 

The reporting requirements include the following:  

 

1. Grantee must prepare and submit an Initial Work Plan each Project FY and submit it to 

System Agency via Qualtrics, using a URL provided by System Agency. For Project 

FY2025, Grantee must submit the Initial Work Plan to System Agency by January 1, 

2025. 

2. Grantee must prepare and submit a Jurisdictional Risk Assessment (JRA) to System 

Agency via Qualtrics, using a URL provided by System Agency. For Project FY2025, 

Grantee must submit a Jurisdictional Risk Assessment to System Agency by June 15, 

2025.  Must include disproportionately impacted populations or access and functional 

needs. For FY24, previously completed JRAs can be submitted if they are not more than 5 

years old. The next JRA will be due within the next 5 years from the submitted JRA date. 

3. Grantee must prepare and submit a self-assessment on Capacity Indicators each Project 

FY via Qualtrics. For Project FY2025, Grantee must submit the Capacity Indicators Form 

to System Agency by January 1, 2025. System Agency will provide a template to Grantee, 

which will identify the information that Grantee must provide in its Capacity Indicators 

Form. 

4. Grantee must prepare and submit a current Multi-Year Integrated Preparedness Plan 

(“MYIPP”) each Project FY, which must include at least five (5) years of progressive 

exercise, planning and training, to System Agency via Qualtrics.  For Project FY2025, 

Grantee must submit the MYIPP to System Agency by May 1, 2025. The MYIPP must be 

based on the results of the Grantee’s training needs assessment and the evaluations of 

previous exercises and responses, including the After-Action Review/Improvement Plan. 

The MYIPP must include a description of: 

a) Summary of the MYIPP Workshop; 

b) The proposed location, month(s), and year(s) of future exercise(s); 

c) The type(s) of future exercise(s) that will take place; and 

d) The partnering entities. 

MYIPP must include one access and functional needs or underserved populations (FEMA 

Definition), training to support a ready responder workforce (WHF-B, AHA-G, LOC-B), 

and recovery operations (REC-A). 

5. Grantee must implement an exercise program to include three (3) discussion-based 

workshops or Tabletop exercises and one (1) Functional or Full-Scale Operational Exercise 

over the five (5) year Performance Period. This includes completing After Action Reports 

(AAR), Corrective Action and Improvement Plans. The exercises should utilize scenarios 

that meet your priority jurisdictional risks identified in the JRA. Submit the After-Action 

Review/Improvement Plan (“AAR/IP”) for each exercise no later than 120 days after the 

exercise or by June 30, 2029, via Qualtrics.  

6. For Project FY2025, the Grantee must submit the Programmatic Mid-Year Performance 

Report to the System Agency by January 31, 2025, via Qualtrics. The System Agency 

will provide a template to the Grantee, which will identify the information that the Grantee 

must provide in its Programmatic Mid-Year Performance Report.  

7. For Project FY2025, the Grantee must submit the Programmatic End-of-Year 

Performance Report to the System Agency by July 30, 2025. The System Agency will 

Docusign Envelope ID: B023553D-6630-458E-B190-01786D789DF8



Attachment A.1 - Project FY2025 Statement of Work 
DSHS Contract No. HHS001439500038  

 
 

Page 8 of 9 

 

provide a template to the Grantee to identify the information that the Grantee must provide 

in its Programmatic End-of-Year Performance Report. 

8. Grantee must submit biannual Financial Status Reports (FSRs). Grantee’s FSRs are due 

the last business day of the month following the end of each second Project FY quarter, 

and thirty (30) calendar days after each fourth Project FY quarter. The first FSR, for the 

period July 1, 2024, through December 31, 2024, is due by January 31, 2025. The second 

FSR, for the period January 1, 2025, through June 30, 2025, is due by July 30, 2025. 

Grantee shall electronically submit FSRs to invoices@dshs.texas.gov and 

fsrgrants@dshs.texas.gov, with a copy to the System Agency Contract Representative 

identified in SECTION VIII, CONTRACT REPRESENTATIVES, of this Grant Agreement. If 

the System Agency determines Grantee needs to submit FSR reports by mail or fax, 

Grantee must send the required information as follows: 

 

a.  For submission by mail, use address below: 

Department of State Health Services 

Claims Processing Unit 

P.O. Box 149347, MC 1940 

Austin, TX 78714-9347 

 

b. For submission by fax, use the number below: 

 (512) 458-7442 

 

9. Grantee must maintain an inventory of equipment, supplies defined as “Controlled Assets” 

(see definition in the form titled, “DSHS Contractor’s Property Inventory Report (Form 

GC-11),” link below), and real property. Grantee shall submit an annual cumulative report 

of the above stated items on Form GC-11, located at the following URL: 

https://www.dshs.texas.gov/hiv-std-program/dshs-tb-hiv-std-section-thisis/contract-

management-section-prevention. Grantee will submit the Form GC-11, via email, to 

FSOequip@dshs.texas.gov, with a copy to the System Agency Contract Representative 

identified in SECTION VIII, CONTRACT REPRESENTATIVES, of this Grant Agreement, no 

later than October 15th  of each calendar year. 

10. Grantee shall provide System Agency with other reports, including financial reports, that 

System Agency determines necessary to accomplish the objectives of this Contract and to 

monitor compliance. 

11. The Grantee must immediately notify the System Agency in writing if the Grantee is 

legally prohibited from providing any report required under this Grant Agreement. 

 

II. PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

 

A. System Agency will monitor the Grantee’s performance of this Statement of Work 

requirements and compliance with the Grant Agreement’s terms and conditions. 

B. Grantee must adhere to PHEP reporting deadlines and the capability to receive, stage, store, 

distribute, and dispense materiel during a public health emergency. Failure to meet these 

requirements may result in the System Agency withholding a portion of the current Project 

Docusign Envelope ID: B023553D-6630-458E-B190-01786D789DF8

mailto:invoices@dshs.texas.gov
mailto:fsrgrants@dshs.texas.gov
https://www.dshs.texas.gov/hiv-std-program/dshs-tb-hiv-std-section-thisis/contract-management-section-prevention
https://www.dshs.texas.gov/hiv-std-program/dshs-tb-hiv-std-section-thisis/contract-management-section-prevention
mailto:FSOequip@dshs.texas.gov


Attachment A.1 - Project FY2025 Statement of Work 
DSHS Contract No. HHS001439500038  

 
 

Page 9 of 9 

 

Fiscal Year PHEP base award. 

C. Upon request by the System Agency, the Grantee shall reasonably revise any performance 

measure to the System Agency’s satisfaction and with the requirements outlined in this Grant 

Agreement. 

III.  INVOICE AND PAYMENT 

 

A. Grantee shall request monthly payments by the last business day of the month following the 

month in which expenses were incurred and shall use the State of Texas Purchase Vouchers 

(Form B-13 and Form B-13A) located at http://www.dshs.texas.gov/grants/forms.shtm. 

Grantee’s final invoice will be due thirty (30) calendar days following the expiration date of 

the Grant Agreement. The System Agency will issue reimbursement payments to the Grantee 

monthly for reported actual cash disbursements supported by adequate documentation.  

 

Invoice approval and payment is contingent upon receipt of adequate supporting 

documentation and submittal of acceptable supporting documentation by electronic mail to 

invoices@dshs.texas.gov and CMSInvoices@dshs.texas.gov, with a copy to the assigned 

System Agency Contract Representative identified in the Signature Document. 

 

 At a minimum, every invoice should include: 

1. Grantee name, address, email address, vendor identification number, and telephone 

number; 

2. DSHS Contract or Purchase Order number; 

3. Identification of service(s) provided; 

4. The total invoice amount; and 

5. Any additional supporting documentation that is required by this Statement of Work or as 

requested by System Agency. 

 

B. System Agency will pay Grantee monthly on a cost reimbursement basis and in accordance 

with ATTACHMENT B, PROJECT FY2025 BUDGET, of this Grant Agreement. System Agency 

will reimburse Grantee only for allowable and reported expenses incurred within the Project 

FY.  

 

C. Grantee may request a one-time working capital advance not to exceed twelve percent (12%) 

of the total funds allotted per Project FY. All advances must be expended by the end of the 

Project FY. Advances not expended by the end of the Grant Agreement term must be refunded 

to the System Agency. System Agency may require the Grantee to repay all or part of advance 

funds at any time during the Grant Agreement term. However, if the advance has not been 

repaid before the last three (3) months of the Grant Agreement term, the Grantee must deduct 

at least one-third (1/3rd) of the remaining advance from each of the last three (3) months’ 

reimbursement requests. If the advance is not repaid prior to the last three (3) months of the 

Grant Agreement term, System Agency will reduce the reimbursement request by one-third 

(1/3rd) of the remaining balance of the advance.  
 

Docusign Envelope ID: B023553D-6630-458E-B190-01786D789DF8

http://www.dshs.texas.gov/grants/forms.shtm
mailto:invoices@dshs.texas.gov
mailto:CMSInvoices@dshs.texas.gov


v.1.2 

3.1.17 1  
 

DEPARTMENT OF STATE HEALTH SERVICES  

CONTRACT NO. HHS001439500038 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 

 

 
The Department of State Health Services (“System Agency” or “DSHS”) and City of Lubbock 

(“Grantee”), who are collectively referred to as the "Parties," to that certain Public Health 

Emergency Preparedness (“PHEP”) grant contract, effective July 1, 2024, and denominated DSHS 

Contract No. HHS001439500038 “Contract”, now desire to amend the Contract.  

  

WHEREAS, the System Agency wants to revise federal award information, reporting 

requirements and the statement of work. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties amend and modify the Contract as follows: 

 

1. SECTION X. Federal Award Information, of the Contract is deleted in entirety and 

replaced with the following: 

 

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): NU90TU000053 

 

A. Assistance Listings Title, Number, and Dollar Amount: Centers for Disease Control 

and Prevention, Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) Cooperative 

Agreement, 93.069, $47,206,790.00 

B. Federal Award Date: 06/11/2024 

C. Federal Award Period:  July 1, 2024 – June 30, 2029 

D. Name of Federal Awarding Agency:  Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 

E. Federal Award Project Description: Texas DSHS Public Health Emergency 

Preparedness (PHEP) Cooperative Agreement. 

F. Awarding Official Contact Information:   

Ms. Kimberly Champion  

Grants Management Specialist  

(404) 498-4229  

qrf9@cdc.gov  

G. Total Amount of Federal Funds Awarded to System Agency: $47,206,790.00 

H. Amount of Funds Awarded to Grantee:  $261,833.00 

I. Identification of Whether the Award is for Research and Development:  No 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Docusign Envelope ID: B023553D-6630-458E-B190-01786D789DF8



v.1.2 

3.1.17 2  
 

2. SECTION VII. Reporting Requirements, of the Contract, is amended to add the following 

reports: 

 

Report Frequency 
Project FY 2025  

Due Date(s) 

DSHS Email or System to 

Submit Report  

Financial Status Report 

(See SECTION I(U)(8) of 

ATTACHMENT A.1, PROJECT 

FY2025 STATEMENT OF 

WORK) 

 

The last business day of 

the month following the 

end of the second 

Project FY quarter 

AND thirty (30) 

calendar days after the 

fourth Project FY 

quarter.   

January 31, 2025 

July 30, 2025 

invoices@dshs.texas.gov; 

fsrgrants@dshs.texas.gov; copy 

to the System Agency 

representative identified in 

SECTION VIII, CONTRACT 

REPRESENTATIVES, of the 

Grant Agreement 

Invoices/Requests for 

Reimbursement  

(See SECTION III(A) of 

ATTACHMENT A.1, PROJECT 

FY2025 STATEMENT OF 

WORK) 

 

The last business day of 

the month following the 

month in which 

expenses were incurred 

AND thirty (30) 

calendar days following 

the expiration date of 

the Grant Agreement. 

August 30, 2024 

September 30, 2024 

October 31, 2024 

November 29, 2024 

December 31, 2024 

January 31, 2025 

February 28, 2025 

March 31, 2025 

April 30, 2025 

May 30, 2025 

June 30, 2025 

July 30, 2025 

invoices@dshs.texas.gov; 

CMSinvoices@dshs.texas.gov; 

copy to the System Agency 

representative identified in 

SECTION VIII, CONTRACT 

REPRESENTATIVES, of the 

Grant Agreement 

Property Inventory Report 

(Form GC-11)  

 

(See SECTION I(U)(9) of 

ATTACHMENT A.1, PROJECT 

FY2025 STATEMENT OF 

WORK) 

 

Once per Project FY  October 15, 2024 

FSOequip@dshs.texas.gov;  

copy to the System Agency 

representative identified in 

SECTION VIII, CONTRACT 

REPRESENTATIVES, of the 

Grant Agreement 

Initial Work Plan 

(See SECTION I(U)(1) of 

ATTACHMENT A.1, PROJECT 

FY2025 STATEMENT OF 

WORK) 

 

Once per Project FY  January 1, 2025 Qualtrics System  

Capacity Indicators               

(See Section I(U)(3) of 

Attachment A.1, Project 

FY2025 Statement of 

Work) 

Once per Project FY  January 1, 2025 Qualtrics System  

Programmatic Mid-Year 

Performance Report  

(See SECTION I(U)(6) of 

ATTACHMENT A.1, PROJECT 

FY2025 STATEMENT OF 

WORK) 

 

Once per Project FY  January 31, 2025 Qualtrics System 

Docusign Envelope ID: B023553D-6630-458E-B190-01786D789DF8

mailto:invoices@dshs.texas.gov
mailto:fsrgrants@dshs.texas.gov
mailto:invoices@dshs.texas.gov
mailto:CMSinvoices@dshs.texas.gov
mailto:FSOequip@dshs.texas.gov


v.1.2 

3.1.17 3  
 

Multi-Year Integrated 

Preparedness Plan 

(“MYIPP”)  

(See SECTION I(U)(4) of 

ATTACHMENT A.1, PROJECT 

FY2025 STATEMENT OF 

WORK) 

Once per Project FY  May 1, 2025 Qualtrics System  

Jurisdictional Risk 

Assessment (JRA)  

(See SECTION I(U)(2) of 

ATTACHMENT A.1, PROJECT 

FY2025 STATEMENT OF 

WORK) 

 

Once per Project FY June 15, 2025 Qualtrics System 

After-Action 

Review/Improvement Plan 

(“AAR/IP”)   

(See SECTION I(U)(5) of 

ATTACHMENT A.1, PROJECT 

FY2025 STATEMENT OF 

WORK)  

 

Once per Project FY  

No later than 120 days 

after the exercise or by 

June 30, 2029 

Qualtrics System 

Programmatic End-of-

Year Performance Report  

(See SECTION I(U)(7) of 

ATTACHMENT A.1, PROJECT 

FY2025 STATEMENT OF 

WORK) 

 

Once per Project FY  July 30, 2025 Qualtrics System 

 

3. ATTACHMENT A PROJECT FY2025 STATEMENT OF WORK is deleted in its entirety and 

is replaced with ATTACHMENT A-1 PROJECT FY2025 STATEMENT OF WORK. 

 

4. This Amendment No. 1 shall be effective as of the date last signed below. 

 

5. Except as amended and modified by this Amendment No. 1, all terms and conditions of 

the Contract, shall remain in full force and effect.  

 

6. Each Party represents and warrants that the person executing this Amendment on its behalf 

has full power and authority to enter into this Amendment. 

 

7. Any further revisions to the Contract shall be by written agreement of the Parties. 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 

  

Docusign Envelope ID: B023553D-6630-458E-B190-01786D789DF8



v.1.2 

3.1.17 4  
 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOR AMENDMENT NO. 1 

DEPARTMENT OF STATE HEALTH SERVICES CONTRACT NO. HHS001439500038 

 

 

DEPARTMENT OF STATE HEALTH SERVICES CITY OF LUBBOCK 

 

By:__________________________ 

Name:_______________________ 

Title:________________________ 

 

By:__________________________ 

Name:_______________________ 

Title:________________________ 

 

Date of Execution: ______________ 

 

 

Date of Execution:______________ 

 

 

THE FOLLOWING ATTACHMENT IS ATTACHED TO THIS AMENDMENT AND INCORPORATED AND 

MADE A PART OF THE CONTRACT FOR ALL PURPOSES: 

 

ATTACHMENT A-1 PROJECT FY2025 STATEMENT OF WORK 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: B023553D-6630-458E-B190-01786D789DF8



 AI# 12847 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 16. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Consultant Contract for Transit Services, by and between the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning
Organization (LMPO) and the City of Lubbock/Citibus, to produce reports for LMPO that
satisfy standards required by federal agencies.

Item Summary
This Consultant Contract for Transit Services is between the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning
Organization (MPO) and the City of Lubbock/Citibus. The contract is for $60,700 for services to be
provided by Citibus for the Lubbock MPO. Citibus will produce reports based on the collection of new
data or update existing reports to satisfy “maintenance of eligibility” standards as required by federal
agencies. Named reports include but are not limited to:
  

Technical Study Report
National Transit Database reporting and related data collection and analysis
Grant application preparation
Federal Financial Status reports
Federal Milestone Status reports
DBE program preparation and reports
Safety and Security Plan update

The term of the contract is October 1, 2024, through September 30, 2026.

Fiscal Impact
The contract amount of $60,700 is included in the FY 2025 Citibus Budget. Acceptance of this contract
will result in no additional cost to the City of Lubbock.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Chris Mandrell, General Manager of Citibus
Lubbock Public Transit Advisory Board
 

Attachments
Resolution - MPO/Citibus Consultant Contract 
MPO/Citibus Consultant Contract FY 25 



































 AI# 12849 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 17. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an
amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding among the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning
Organization, the Texas Department of Transportation, and Citibus, to add reference to the Transit Asset
Management Plan and the Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan to satisfy Federal Transit
Administration guidance.

Item Summary
The purpose of the amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) among the Lubbock
Metropolitan Planning Organization, The Texas Department of Transportation, and Citibus is to add
reference to the Transit Asset Management Plan (TAM) and the Public Transportation Agency Safety
Plan (PTASP), per Federal Transit Administration guidance. 

The MOU was first approved by the City Council in May 2018. The purpose of the MOU was to make
provisions for cooperative mutual responsibilities in carrying out the Metropolitan Planning Process and
Performance Based Planning and Programming in the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Area, and to
provide a single agreement between the State of Texas acting through the Texas Department of
Transportation (TxDOT), Lubbock MPO, and the City of Lubbock dba the Public Transportation
Operator, in accordance with current Federal Legislation as required by 23 CFR 450.314.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton.Deputy City Manager
Chris Mandrell, General Manager of Citibus
Lubbock Public Transit Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution - MOU Amendment - MPO/Citibus/TxDOT 
MOU Amendment - MPO/Citibus/TxDOT 





























 AI# 12857 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 18. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Transportation Development Credit Agreement, TxDOT Project # TDC 2501 (05), with the Texas
Department of Transportation, to reallocate Transportation Development Credits (TDCs), and to extend
the grant time period the TDCs can be used as a local match.

Item Summary
TxDOT is reallocating 4,500 Transportation Development Credits (TDCs) to the City of
Lubbock/Citibus.  The new Transportation Development Credit Agreement reallocates the remaining
TDCs that were awarded in a previous agreement, TDC-2016-LUBBOCK-00222, and extends the grant
time period that the TDCs can be used as local match for the remaining funds in the FY 2017 Federal
Section 5339(c) Low or No Emission Bus Program Grant.
 
The Transportation Development Credits are awarded at the discretion of the Texas Transportation
Commission, and are awarded to various public transportation agencies to assist with the match of
Federal funds for capital projects.  Due to the use of TDCs the remaining funds in the FY 2017 Section
5339(c) Low or No Emission Bus Program Grant will not require a local match by the City of Lubbock. 
 
The agreement becomes effective when fully executed by both parties, and will remain in effect until
December 31, 2025. 
 
TxDOT requires all grants to be executed electronically.

Fiscal Impact
Transportation Development Credits will be used as local match for a Federal grant.  Acceptance of this
agreement will result in no additional cost to the City of Lubbock.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Chris Mandrell, General Manager of Citibus
Lubbock Public Transit Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution - TDC Agreement 2501(05)- FY 17 Section 5339c 
TxDOT TDC Agreement #TDC 2501 (05) 





AGREEMENT: PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION - TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT CREDITS (TDC)
SUBRECIPIENT: Lubbock, City of
TXDOT PROJECT #: TDC 2501 (05)
NOT RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

STATE OF TEXAS                     Ä

COUNTY OF TRAVIS                Ä

TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT CREDITS (TDC)
AGREEMENT

THIS TDC AGREEMENT is made by and between the State of Texas, acting through the Texas 
Department of Transportation, called the "State" and Lubbock, City of, called the "Subrecipient".

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, on May 9, 1995, FTA published notice in the Federal Register describing innovative 
financing techniques that could be utilized to enhance the effectiveness of capital investment 
programs; and,

WHEREAS, Title 23 U.S.C. Ä120(j) permits states to use certain toll revenue expenditures generated 
and used by public, quasi-public and private agencies, to build, improve or maintain highways, 
bridges, or tunnels that serve the public purpose of interstate commerce, provided that the agencies 
have built, improved or maintained those facilities without federal funds, as credit toward the non-
federal matching share of programs authorized by Title 23 (except for the Federal Highway 
Administrationôs emergency relief program funds) and for transit programs authorized by Chapter 53 
of Title 49; and,

WHEREAS, Texas Transportation Code Chapter 455 authorizes the State to assist agencies in 
procuring aid for the purpose of establishing and maintaining public and mass transportation projects 
as defined under Texas Transportation Code Chapter 456; and,

WHEREAS, the Texas Transportation Commission approved  Minute Order Number 115291 
authorizing the Subrecipient to use TDC towards the non-federal matching share of public 
transportation projects, allowing these credits to be all or part of the required percent of local 
matching funds;

WHEREAS, the Public Transportation Division awarded TDC by letter, dated February 13, 2019, to 
the City of Lubbock for the Lubbock urbanized area for the specific project as identified in this 
application.

NOW THEREFORE, the State and Subrecipient agree as follows:

AGREEMENT 

Lubbock, City of

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION - 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT 
CREDITS (TDC)

Page 1 of 5

TXDOT PROJECT #: TDC 2501 (05)

Revised 08/26/2013



ARTICLE 1. GRANT TIME PERIOD
This TDC Agreement becomes effective when fully executed by both parties or on 09/02/2024, 
whichever is later.  This TDC Agreement shall remain in effect until 12/31/2025, unless terminated or 
otherwise modified in an Amendment. Any cost incurred before or after the contract period shall be 
ineligible to be reimbursed with TDC.

ARTICLE 2. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

A. The Subrecipient shall complete the public transportation project described in Attachment A - 
Approved Project Description.  Attachments A is attached to and made a part of this 
agreement.The Subrecipient shall complete the project in accordance with all applicable federal 
and state laws and regulations.

B. If applicable, the Subrecipient shall begin competitive procurement procedures by issuing an 
invitation for bids or a request for proposals no later than sixty (60) days after the effective date of 
this grant agreement for the purchase of the approved line items referenced in Attachment A. No 
later than sixty (60) days after the issuance of public notification, the Subrecipient shall publicly 
open all bids or privately review proposals. The Subrecipient shall enter into a binding agreement 
with a supplier no later than thirty (30) days after the opening of an acceptable bid or proposal. 
The Subrecipient shall notify the department in writing when it is necessary to exceed these 
deadlines.

ARTICLE 3.  COMPENSATION
The maximum TDC amount available under this Agreement without modification is 4,500 
Transportation Development Credits, provided that expenditures are made in accordance with the 
amounts and for the purposes authorized in Attachment A.

Invoices are to be submitted electronically through the eGrants system.

ARTICLE 4.  AMENDMENTS
Changes in the scope, objectives, cost, or duration of the project authorized in this agreement shall 
be enacted by written amendment approved by the parties before additional work may be performed 
or additional costs incurred.  Any amendment must be executed by both parties within the grant 
period specified in the above Article 1, Grant Time Period.

ARTICLE 5.  SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS
The Subrecipient binds themselves, their successors, assigns, executors and administrators in 
respect to all covenants of this agreement.  The Subrecipient shall not sign, sublet, or transfer their 
interest in this agreement without the written consent of the State.

ARTICLE 6.  SIGNATORY WARRANTY
Each signatory warrants that the signatory has necessary authority to execute this agreement on 
behalf of the entity represented.

Lubbock, City of

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION - 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT 
CREDITS (TDC)

Page 2 of 5

TXDOT PROJECT #: TDC 2501 (05)

Revised 08/26/2013



THIS AGREEMENT IS EXECUTED by the State and the Subrecipient in duplicate. 

THE SUBRECIPIENT

Signature

Title

Date

THE STATE OF TEXAS

Signature

Public Transportation Coordinator

Title

Date

List of Attachments

A - Approved Project Description

Lubbock, City of

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION - 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT 
CREDITS (TDC)

Page 3 of 5

TXDOT PROJECT #: TDC 2501 (05)

Revised 08/26/2013



ATTACHMENT A
APPROVED PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The City of Lubbock received Section 5339(c) Low or No Emission Bus Program funds for the 
Lubbock urbanized area.  The TDC award will be used as soft match at an 85/15 ratio for the Federal 
Award Amount of $30,000 distributed by FTA for vehicles.  The federal funds were awarded under 
grant number TX-2019-020.  This PGA is a re-write of TDC-2016-LUBBOCK-00222.

Lubbock, City of

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION - 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT 
CREDITS (TDC)

Page 4 of 5

TXDOT PROJECT #: TDC 2501 (05)

Revised 08/26/2013



ATTACHMENT C
ACTIVE PGAs

The information below represents federal obligations in Project Grant Agreements that are 
currently active.

Application PGA Name FAIN Begin Date End Date

Lubbock, City of

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION - 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT 
CREDITS (TDC)

Page 5 of 5

TXDOT PROJECT #: TDC 2501 (05)

Revised 08/26/2013



 AI# 12866 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 19. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a FY
2025 Section 5304 Planning Grant, TxDOT PLN 2504 (05) 039_22, Project ID 51008040525, with the
Texas Department of Transportation, for preliminary engineering, initial design and environmental work
for the administrative/maintenance facility, downtown transfer facility, and mobility hubs. 

Item Summary
Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) is allocating a FY 2025 Section 5304 planning grant in
the amount of $479,096 for preliminary engineering, initial design, and environmental work for the
administrative/maintenance facility, downtown transfer facility, and mobility hubs. The FY 2025
Section 5304 Planning Grant reallocates funds that were awarded in a previous grant agreement, TxDOT
PLN 2303 (05) 040_22, Project ID 51008030523, which was  approved in September 2022, and extends
the grant time period.
 
The preliminary engineering, initial design, and environmental work will be conducted by a consultant
that will be hired through a competitive procurement process.  The consultant will use the data from the
Facility Feasibility Study and the Comprehensive Operational Analysis to determine what is suitable for
the proposed locations of each facility. 
 
Citibus currently occupies the greater part of 2 square blocks in Downtown Lubbock with its
administrative and maintenance facilities, and bus yard. The administrative facility was renovated for
transit operation in the early 1980s, and small upgrades have been done incrementally as funding was
made available.  The bus yard was renovated in 1999 and expanded in 2009, and security enhancements
and surveillance were installed in 2009. The Citibus transfer facility was built in 1994, and is located on
a city block in the center of Downtown Lubbock. 
 
The agreement is effective when fully executed by both parties, or on September 5, 2024, whichever is
later, and shall remain in effect until August 31, 2025.
 
TxDOT requires all grants to be executed electronically.

Fiscal Impact
Acceptance of this grant will result in no additional cost to the City of Lubbock. The City of
Lubbock/Citibus has been awarded 95,819 Transportation Development Credits (TDC’s) to serve as the
local match, and the TDC’s are included in the grant agreement.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager



Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Chris Mandrell, General Manager of Citibus
Lubbock Public Transit Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution - TxDOT FY 25 Section 5304 Planning Grant 
TxDOT FY 25 Section 5304 Planning Grant 





PGA: SECTION 5304 FEDERAL-PLANNING
SUBRECIPIENT: Lubbock, City of
FAIN: TX-2022-039
CFDA #: 20.505
TXDOT PROJECT #: PLN 2504 (05) 039_22
PROJECT ID #: 51008040525
MASTER GRANT AGREEMENT #: MGA-2022-2026-LUBBOCK-046
FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION
NOT RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

STATE OF TEXAS                     Ä

COUNTY OF TRAVIS                Ä

FEDERAL PLANNING PROGRAM
FISCAL YEAR 2025

PROJECT GRANT AGREEMENT

THIS PROJECT GRANT AGREEMENT (PGA) is made by and between the State of Texas, acting 
through the Texas Department of Transportation, called the "State" and Lubbock, City of, called the 
"Subrecipient".

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, 49 United States Code Section 5304, Planning, provides that eligible recipients may 
receive federal funds for public transportation planning; and

WHEREAS, Texas Transportation Code Chapter 455 authorizes the State to assist the Subrecipient 
in procuring aid for the purpose of establishing and maintaining public and mass transportation 
projects and to administer funds appropriated for public transportation under Transportation Code 
Chapter 456; and

WHEREAS, the U.S. Secretary of Transportation approved the Stateôs request for funding; and

WHEREAS, the Governor of the State of Texas has designated the Texas Department of 
Transportation to receive federal funds under the Section 5304 grant program; and

WHEREAS, the Subrecipient submitted a Fiscal Year 2025 Grant Application (if applicable) for state 
financial assistance, and the Texas Transportation Commission approved the application by Minute 
Order Number(s) 116278; and,

WHEREAS, the Subrecipient must execute a Grant Application (if applicable) and Fiscal Year 
Certifications and Assurances each fiscal year grant period for consideration for new state and 
federal grants; and

WHEREAS, a Master Grant Agreement (MGA) between the Subrecipient and the State has been 
adopted and states the general terms and conditions for grant projects developed through this PGA;

Lubbock, City of

Fed 5304 Planning Page 1 of 6

Project ID #: 51008040525

Revised 08/26/2013



WHEREAS, an unused balance in funds remains in prior Project Grant Agreement PLN-2022-
Lubbock-00025, Project ID 51008050523, and it has become necessary to extend the project end 
date; 

NOW THEREFORE, the State and Subrecipient agree as follows:

AGREEMENT 

ARTICLE 1. GRANT TIME PERIOD 
This PGA becomes effective when fully executed by both parties or on 09/05/2024, whichever is 
later. This PGA shall remain in effect until 08/31/2025, unless terminated or otherwise modified in an 
Amendment. This PGA will not be considered fully executed until both parties have executed a MGA, 
and the Subrecipient has submitted the Grant Application (if applicable) and Certification and 
Assurances to the State. The time period of this PGA cannot be extended past the MGA, without 
exception. Any cost incurred before or after the contract period shall be ineligible for reimbursement. 

ARTICLE 2. PROJECT DESCRIPTION
A. The Subrecipient shall complete the public transportation project described in the Grant 

Application, the Attachment A - Approved Project Description, and the Attachment B - Project 
Budget. Attachments A and B are attached to and made a part of this agreement. The 
Subrecipient shall complete the project in accordance with all of the documents associated with 
the MGA and with all applicable federal and state laws and regulations.

B. If applicable, the Subrecipient shall begin competitive procurement procedures by issuing an 
invitation for bids or a request for proposals no later than sixty (60) days after the effective date of 
this grant agreement for the purchase of the approved line items referenced in Attachment A. No 
later than sixty (60) days after the issuance of public notification, the Subrecipient shall publicly 
open all bids or privately review proposals. The Subrecipient shall enter into a binding agreement 
with a supplier no later than thirty (30) days after the opening of an acceptable bid or proposal. 
The Subrecipient shall notify the department in writing when it is necessary to exceed these 
deadlines.

ARTICLE 3. COMPENSATION 
The maximum amount payable under this PGA without modification is $479,096 and 95,819 
Transportation Development Credits, provided that expenditures are made in accordance with the 
amounts and for the purposes authorized in the Grant Application, the Attachment A, and the 
Attachment B. 

Invoices are to be submitted electronically through the eGrants system. 

ARTICLE 4. AMENDMENTS 
Except as noted in the MGA, changes in the scope, objectives, cost, or duration of the project 
authorized in this agreement shall be enacted by written amendment approved by the parties before 
additional work may be performed or additional costs incurred. Any amendment must be executed 
by both parties within the grant period specified in Article 1, Grant Time Period. 

ARTICLE 5. INCORPORATION OF MGA PROVISIONS 
This PGA incorporates all of the governing provisions of the MGA in effect on the date of final 
execution of this PGA, unless an exception has been made in this agreement. 

Lubbock, City of

Fed 5304 Planning Page 2 of 6

Project ID #: 51008040525

Revised 08/26/2013



ARTICLE 6. SIGNATORY WARRANTY 
Each signatory warrants that the signatory has necessary authority to execute this agreement on 
behalf of the entity represented.

ARTICLE 7. ACCESS TO INFORMATION 
The Subrecipient is required to make any information created or exchanged with the state pursuant 
to this contract, and not otherwise excepted from disclosure under the Texas Public Information Act, 
available in a format that is accessible by the public at no additional charge to the state. 

THIS AGREEMENT IS EXECUTED by the State and the Subrecipient in duplicate. 

THE SUBRECIPIENT

Signature

Title

Date

THE STATE OF TEXAS

Signature

Public Transportation Coordinator

Title

Date

List of Attachments

A - Approved Project Description

B - Project Budget

Lubbock, City of

Fed 5304 Planning Page 3 of 6

Project ID #: 51008040525

Revised 08/26/2013



ATTACHMENT A
APPROVED PROJECT DESCRIPTION

This project covers plan preliminary engineering, initial design, and environmental work for the
administrative/maintenance facility, downtown transfer facility, and mobility hubs. The pending 
Facility Feasibility
Study will identify a primary and secondary location for each of the administration/maintenance 
facility, downtown
transfer facility, and multiple locations for potential mobility hubs.
The preliminary engineering, initial design, and environmental work will be conducted by a consultant 
that will be
hired through a competitive procurement process. The consultant will use the data from the Facility 
Feasibility
Study and the Comprehensive Operational Analysis (COA) to determine what is suitable for the 
proposed locations
of each facility.

Per Texas Administrative Code (TAC) 31.47, Audit and Project Close-Out Standards: The 
subrecipient shall make every reasonable effort to complete all project activities and request 
appropriate reimbursements within the time period specified in the project agreement. This PGA may 
be suspended or terminated for cause, mutual agreement, or convenience.  Upon termination for 
convenience, the PGA may be cancelled without penalty by either party by providing thirty (30) days 
written notice to the other party. TxDOT will reimburse the subrecipient for eligible expenses up to 
the date specified in the notice of cancellation. Upon termination of a subgrant, the unexpended and 
unobligated funds awarded to the subgrantee immediately revert to the department.

TxDOTôs Public Transportation Divisionôs (PTN) sets a Federal Transit Administration overall 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) goal every three years for funds expended by grantees. 
The proposed overall goal for fiscal years 2024 - 2026 is 4.15 percent. This is not a contract specific 
goal but an overall goal for annual DBE participation. PTN grantees should undertake efforts to 
include DBE business whenever practicable. The full definition of DBE program requirements is 
found in Article 24 of the Master Grant Agreement.

Lubbock, City of

Fed 5304 Planning Page 4 of 6

Project ID #: 51008040525

Revised 08/26/2013



ATTACHMENT B
PROJECT BUDGET

# Description Fuel Type # of 
Units

Award 
Amount

State 
Match

Local 
Match

In-Kind 
Match

Total 
Funds

TDC Match 
Ratio

TDC 
Amount

1 Short Range Transit 
Planning - 44.24.00  $479,096 $479,096 X 80/20 95,819

Totals: $479,096 $0 $0 $0 $479,096 95,819

Lubbock, City of

Fed 5304 Planning Page 5 of 6

Project ID #: 51008040525

Revised 08/26/2013



ATTACHMENT C
ACTIVE PGAs

The information below represents federal obligations in Project Grant Agreements that are 
currently active.

Application PGA Name FAIN Begin Date End Date

Lubbock, City of

Fed 5304 Planning Page 6 of 6

Project ID #: 51008040525

Revised 08/26/2013



 AI# 12868 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 19. 1. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Professional Services Agreement, Contract 17678, with HDR Architecture, Inc., for Architectural and
Engineering Services for the Citibus Administrative and Bus Fleet Maintenance Facility. 

Item Summary
In accordance with the contract for architectural and engineering services for the Citibus Administrative
and Bus Fleet Maintenance Facility, the architectural firm will collaborate with City of Lubbock/Citibus
in developing a 15% design that will address immediate, short term, and long term facility needs for a
new Citibus Administrative and Bus Fleet Maintenance Facility.  The HDR team will provide
architectural and engineering services for determining the space needs, aiding in site selection, provide
building(s) and site design, along with the Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) Environmental Analysis
required by the Federal Transit Administration (FTA).  Tasks and associated costs are as follows:
  
Item  Title Amount

Task 1 Project Management   $39,800
Task 2 Programming $20,500
Task 3 Site Analysis $44,700
Task 4 Site Survey $27,390
 Geotechnical $25,850
Task 5 Master Plan/Concept Design 60,100
 15% Design Package 135,650
 Financial Analysis/Estimates $15,200
Task 6 Environmental Constraints $59,600
Task 7 Traffic Impact Analysis $43,600
Task 8 Design Contingency $25,000
 TOTAL Lump Sum Fee $497,390

The City of Lubbock issued a Request for Qualifications for Architectural and Engineering Services, and
In response to RFQ 24-17678-KM, 9 firms submitted proposals, which were evaluated according to the
following criteria: 

35 points for Team Organization and Qualifications;
35 points for Experience on Relevant Projects;
25 points for Management Approach; and
5 points for Overall Responsiveness to the RFQ.



The Evaluation Committee arrived at the following ranking.
  

Proposer Total Points
HDR Architecture, Inc., Omaha, Nebraska 95.25
Wendel Companies, Williamsville, New York 92.00
The Goodman Corporation, Houston, Texas 88.75
Parkhill Smith & Cooper, Lubbock, Texas 83.25
Negrete Kolar Architects LLP, Austin, Texas 79.50
Huitt-Zollars, Inc, Dallas, Texas 74.00
MWM Architects, Lubbock, Texas 63.00
Chapman Harvey Architects LLC, Lubbock, Texas 53.50
Charles A Hoffmann AIA Architect Non-Responsive

The Evaluation Committee recommends the contract be awarded to the highest ranked proposer, HDR
Architecture, Inc., of Omaha, Nebraska, for Architectural and Engineering Services for the Citibus
Administrative and Bus Fleet Maintenance Facility.
 
The term of this Agreement commences on the Effective Date and continues without interruption for a
term of 5 years.

Fiscal Impact
Citibus will use funds from the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) FY 25 Section 5304
Planning Grant, for cost associated with Contract 17678 with HDR Architecture, Inc., for $497.390. The
planning grant and cost associated with this contract are included in the FY 2025 Citibus Budget.
Approval of this contract will result in no additional cost to the City of Lubbock. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Chris Mandrell, General Manager of Citibus
Lubbock Public Transit Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution - HDR Architectural & Engineering 
Contract - HDR Architectural & Engineering 
Project Summary - HDR Architectural & Engineering 





















































 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
RFQ 24-17678-KM 

Architectural and Engineering Services for Citibus Administrative and Bus Fleet 

Maintenance Facility 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on December 10 & December 17, 2023 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from December 8, 2023 to January 31, 2024. 

97 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 

14 vendors were notified separately.  

9 firms submitted statements of qualifications.  

 



 AI# 12867 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 20. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 2 to Contract 16537, with Swiftly, Inc., to add Operator Reports, Onboard Application,
and the Automatic Passenger Counter Connector modules, to provide real-time updates on schedule
adherence, routing, and detours along each route.

Item Summary
Citibus and Swiftly, Inc. are partnering to update the Citibus onboard hardware systems by installing an
operator-facing tablet that will give them real time updates on schedule adherence, routing, and detours
along the route. We will also be improving the ability of Citibus to count passengers accurately and
derive meaningful insights from that ridership like vehicle loads and high ridership stops.
 
Contract 16537 with Swiftly, Inc. was approved by the Lubbock City Council on May 10, 2022.  Swiftly
provides real-time vehicle tracking for the Citibus fleet through software as a service subscription and
support to assure effective management and improvements to the system’s reliability. It provides a data
platform that will provide a live-operations mapping tool for Citibus operations staff and customer
service representatives, rider alerts, real- time GTFS creation and management, and a passenger-facing
live mapping tool.  In January 2023, the City Council approved an amendment that allowed for the
addition of the GPS playback module and on-time performance module.

Fiscal Impact
Contract pricing will be:
Year 1 - $237,861.02 due 10/1/2024, is budgeted in the Citibus Fiscal Year 2024-25 Operating Budget.
Year 2 - $72,963.66 due 10/01/2025, will be requested during the budget process for FY 2025-26.
Year 3 - $75,152.56 due 10/1/2026, will be requested during the budget process for FY 2026-27.
The total amount of Contract 16537, is $385,977.24.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Chris Mandrell, General Manager of Citibus
Lubbock Public Transit Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution - Swiftly Contract Amendment #2 
Contract - Swiftly Amendment #2 
Order Form - Swiftly Contract Amendment #2 







Swiftly Order Form

Customer
Quote Date

Quote Number
Effective Date of Service

Contract Term
Billing Terms

Renewal Term Pricing

Marketing Terms

  PRODUCT NUMBER OF VEHICLES ANNUAL COST PER
VEHICLE

TOTAL COST
PER YEAR

  Connect with Staff

  Connect with Vehicles

  Connect with Partners

TOTAL ANNUAL COST $70,838.50

  PRODUCT NUMBER OF VEHICLES ANNUAL COST PER
VEHICLE

TOTAL COST
PER YEAR

  Connect with Staff

  Connect with Vehicles

  Connect with Partners

TOTAL ANNUAL COST $72,963.66

  PRODUCT NUMBER OF VEHICLES ANNUAL COST PER
VEHICLE

TOTAL COST
PER YEAR

  Connect with Staff

  Connect with Vehicles

  Lubbock Citibus
  9/9/2024 — Pricing Valid until September 30, 2024
  Lub-45544
  10/1/2024
The exact service term (the 'Initial Term'): 36 Months (10/1/2024 - 9/30/2027).
  Annually in Advance
The annual cost shall increase by up to 10% for each one year 'Renewal Term'.
Willingness to work with Swiftly to develop a case study, mutually agreeable press release,
and ability to use your agency as a reference (website, presentations, etc.).

       Operator Reports 56 $272.00 $15,232.00

       Onboard App 72 $456.00 $32,832.00
  Swiftly APC Connector 30 $260.25 $7,807.50
  Hopthru Cleanse 30 $412.50 $12,375.00

  Mobile Device Management 72 $36.00 $2,592.00

       Operator Reports 56 $280.16 $15,688.96

       Onboard App 72 $469.68 $33,816.96
  Swiftly APC Connector 30 $268.06 $8,041.73
  Hopthru Cleanse 30 $424.88 $12,746.25

       Scalefusion Mobile Device Management 72 $37.08 $2,669.76

       Operator Reports 56 $288.56 $16,159.63

       Onboard App 72 $483.77 $34,831.47
  Swiftly APC Connector 30 $276.10 $8,282.98
  Hopthru Cleanse 30 $437.62 $13,128.64

  Year 1 Fees

  Year 2 Fees

  Year 3 Fees

Doc ID: 8b8eb2d2a5a37a8b9e206e5180f8439e9e461cf7



  Connect with Partners

TOTAL ANNUAL COST $75,152.56

  SERVICE / PRODUCT QTY COST PER VEHICLE TOTAL COST

TOTAL ONE-TIME COST $167,022.52

YEAR 1 TOTAL Due 10/1/2024 $237,861.02

YEAR 2 TOTAL Due 10/2/2025 $72,963.66
YEAR 3 TOTAL Due 10/2/2026 $75,152.56

       Scalefusion Mobile Device Management 72 $38.19 $2,749.85

  Swiftly Implementation Services - Onboard
App + Operator Reports + Hopthru 56 $225.36 $12,620.00

  ATMOS Cradle Kit for TAB Active 5 w/ 4"
post KIT-FLEXII-TABACT5-ATM 79 $273.33 $21,593.07

  Iris install - Waysine AVA Audio Only 30 $600.00 $18,000.00
  Waysine AVA Hardware 30 $180.00 $5,400.00
  Iris Install - GPS Lockbox Mounts 72 $300.00 $21,600.00
  GPS Lockbox Installation Hardware 72 $55.19 $3,974.00
  Iris Project Management & Travel 1 - $16,920.00
  Samsung Tab Active 5 79 $690.00 $54,510.00
  3 Year ADH Warranty 79 $113.99 $9,005.05
  Staging Services 79 $27.60 $2,180.40
  MDM Setup 1 $350.00 $350.00

  One-Time Fees

  Billing Table   Billing Date   Amount Due

Doc ID: 8b8eb2d2a5a37a8b9e206e5180f8439e9e461cf7



Swiftly Order Form (Signature Page)

Payment Terms: 

Terms of Use: 

Pricing: 

SMS & Voice Limits:

Sales Tax:
Shipping Fees: 
Assumption of Risk: 

Due Net 30. Invoice sent separately. All fees are non-refundable and non-cancellable without Swiftly’s
written consent. If this order includes hardware, hardware will not be shipped nor installed until payment for all hardware
components and installation has been received in full.

By signing below, Customer agrees that this Order Form is subject to, and Customer is bound by, the
Swiftly SaaS Terms of Service located at: http://goswift.ly/saas-terms-of-service (the “Swiftly Terms”). Unless otherwise
specifically stated in an Addendum, in the event of a conflict between the Addendum and the Swiftly Terms, the Swiftly
Terms shall govern.

The pricing contained herein contains discounts based on number of products purchased and number of vehicle
licenses. Any subsequent change to either of these pricing parameters will result in any discount being reduced or
removed entirely.

 Up to a combined 5,000 SMS and voice calls are included per month for US customers only. Each
additional 5,000 combined SMS and voice calls per month costs $125.

 If your agency is not tax exempt, sales tax may be added to this Order Form.
Additional shipping fees may be added to the invoice for items covered under this Order Form.

When you use Swiftly's Onboard Application map data, directions, and other content, you may find
that actual conditions differ from the map results and content, so exercise your independent judgment and use Siwftly's
Onboard Application at your own risk. You’re responsible at all times for your conduct and its consequences.

  Customer:   Swiftly, Inc.

  Rob Gaffney

  CFO

  2261 Market Street #4151
  San Francisco, CA 94114

  Signature   Signature

  Name   Name

  Title   Title

  Date   Date

  Address   Address

  Billing Contact Name

  Billing Email

  Billing Phone

09 / 09 / 2024

Doc ID: 8b8eb2d2a5a37a8b9e206e5180f8439e9e461cf7



Order Details
  • We use a Software as a Service (SaaS) model with annual subscriptions per product. There are no hosting or
maintenance fees.
  • Subscriptions include unlimited users within your agency.
  • We believe in data access and availability. As long as your agency is a paying customer, you will have easy access to
download up to three years data from the modules you purchase.
  • Every time we update the platform or launch or a new feature, your agency will automatically have access to that
feature so long as you have paid for that module. Since the system is cloud-based, you will never need to download or
re-install new software. Simply login and you’ll see the new feature!
  • We pride ourselves on having the best support team in the industry. Always feel free to reach out with questions,
comments, or suggestions on how we can better serve you. We typically respond to inquiries within 24 hours.

Swiftly’s Dashboard:
  • The core Swiftly dashboard is hosted in the cloud – you do not need to install or download any software.
  • You can access the software from any computer, anywhere, anytime.
  • Swiftly works on the latest version of any browser.

Onboard App:
  • The Onboard App is an Android app that must be installed on an Android device.
  • If you do not have an Android device, you may also use Swiftly’s web-based Onboard App on iOS devices. This app is
supported by most web browsers.
  • Onboard App works on the latest versions of Android and iOS, and updates can be rolled out through the App Store
  • Please contact your Account Executive for a list of supported devices and mobile browsers for Onboard App.

Technical Requirements

Doc ID: 8b8eb2d2a5a37a8b9e206e5180f8439e9e461cf7



Lubbock_Citibus_Order Form_OR, OA APC_[10.1.24-9.30.27] -...

Lubbock_Citibus_O...1.24-9.30.27_.pdf

8b8eb2d2a5a37a8b9e206e5180f8439e9e461cf7

MM / DD / YYYY

Signed

09 / 09 / 2024

08:58:11 UTC-7

Sent for signature to Rob Gaffney (rob.gaffney@goswift.ly)

from michelle.urban@goswift.ly

IP: 73.90.25.76

09 / 09 / 2024

08:58:25 UTC-7

Viewed by Rob Gaffney (rob.gaffney@goswift.ly)

IP: 73.34.22.125

09 / 09 / 2024

08:58:36 UTC-7

Signed by Rob Gaffney (rob.gaffney@goswift.ly)

IP: 73.34.22.125

The document has been completed.09 / 09 / 2024

08:58:36 UTC-7



 AI# 12861 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 21. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Parks & Recreation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
a Subrecipient Agreement, and all related documents, with the South Plains Association of
Governments, related to funds passed through the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services to the
Texas Department on Aging and Disability Services, for an Area Agency on Aging Direct Purchase of
Services Program, to provide meals and transportation services for the City of Lubbock Senior Program.

Item Summary
The City has contracted with the South Plains Association of Governments (SPAG) for the AAA Direct
Purchase of Services Program Grant to provide services for senior citizens through the City's 5 Senior
Program sites, for over 45 years. The City's Senior Program provides any citizen 60 years of age or older
with a hot meal, transportation, and recreational and social activities. The FY 2024-2025 vendor
agreement with SPAG provides reimbursement for meals and transportation service units.

Staff anticipates serving approximately 28,000 meals and approximately 4,000 units of transportation.
The grant will reimburse approximately 19,019 eligible meal units at $12.52 per unit, for a total of
$238,117.88. The grant will also reimburse approximately 3,002 eligible transportation units at $8.35 for
a total of $25,066.70. The grant totals $263,184.58.

Monetary donations are accepted from those individuals who utilize meal and transportation services.
The recommended donation is $3 per meal for those 60 years of age and over. Those under age 60 are
required to pay $8.25 per meal. The recommended donation for transportation is $1 per one-way trip.

Fiscal Impact
This agreement will allow SPAG to reimburse the City approximately $263,184.58 for senior meal
service, transportation, and program administrative costs.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 
SPAG Agreement 























































X



X

The Honoroable Mayor

Mark McBrayer









Mark McBrayer





Mark McBrayer



 AI# 12815 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 22. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Purchase Order 33001896, with Microsoft Corporation, for a 3-year renewal of the Microsoft Enterprise
Support Services Agreement.

Item Summary
The purchase of the Microsoft Enterprise Support Services Agreement is for Designated Engineering
Services and Unified Enterprise Support Services, for the period of November 1, 2024, through October
31, 2027..  The Agreement is for advanced technical support and engineering services, including:
Enterprise Advisory Support, Azure Problem Resolution, On-Demand Assessment Setup and
Configuration Services, Problem Resolution, Reactive Support, Service Delivery Management, and
Enterprise Webcasts. These items are not included in the existing Microsoft Enterprise Licensing
Agreement. 

The purchase is made available through the State of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR)
Contract DIR-CPO-4911.

Fiscal Impact
The total amount of the 3-year renewal is $253,012.83.
Year 1 - $72,119.49 is budgeted in the Information Technology Fiscal Year 2024-25 Operating Budget. 
Year 2 - $89,285.22 due on 11-30-2025, will be requested during the budget process for FY 2025-26.
Year 3 - $91,608.12 due on 11/30/2026, will be requested during the budget process for FY 2026-27.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
James C. Brown, Chief Information Officer

Attachments
Microsoft Corporation Resolution _PO 33001896 
Microsoft Corporation PO 33001896 





 

TO: SHIP TO: 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK  
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY: 

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

1Page    -
Date    - 8/29/2024P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 33001896 OP000
Branch/Plant         3410

MICROSOFT CORPORATION CITY OF LUBBOCK
C/O BANK OF AMERICA LOCKBOX 844510 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

1314 AVENUE K - BASEMENT1950 NORTH STEMMONS FWY, SUITE 5010
DALLAS TX 75207 LUBBOCK TX 79401

Ordered .Freight8/29/2024
Taken ByRequested 9/27/2024 YBUSBY

Q #GVS12211 / DIR-CPO-4911Delivery Per J Zhine / Req #62175

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
1.000 LS 253,012.83  09/27/2024MS Enterprise Services Work Order TX DIR 

CPO-4911 

Total Order

NET 30Terms 253,012.83

This purchase order encumbers funds in the amount of $253,012.83 awarded to Microsoft Corporation of Dallas, TX,

on _________________, 2024. The following is incorporated into and made part of this purchase order by reference:

Microsoft Corporation of Dallas, TX, and DIR-CPO-4911.

Resolution #____________________ 

CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

______________________________________

Mark McBrayer, Mayor

ATTEST: 

______________________________________

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

PUR # 18303



 

TO: SHIP TO: 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK  
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY: 

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

2Page    -
Date    - 8/29/2024P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 33001896 OP000
Branch/Plant         3410

MICROSOFT CORPORATION CITY OF LUBBOCK
C/O BANK OF AMERICA LOCKBOX 844510 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

1314 AVENUE K - BASEMENT1950 NORTH STEMMONS FWY, SUITE 5010
DALLAS TX 75207 LUBBOCK TX 79401

Ordered .Freight8/29/2024
Taken ByRequested 9/27/2024 YBUSBY

Q #GVS12211 / DIR-CPO-4911Delivery Per J Zhine / Req #62175

INSURANCE REQUIRED:

Technology Errors and Omissions Requirements:

*The City of Lubbock (including its officials, employees and volunteers) shall be afforded additional insured status on a primary
and non-contributory basis on all liability policies except professional liabilities and workers' comp. *Waivers of Subrogation are
required for CGL, AL, and WC. *To Include Products of Completed Operations endorsement. *Carrier will provide a 30-day
written notice of cancellation, 10-day written notice for non-payment. *Carriers must meet an A.M. Best rating of A- or better.
*Subcontractors must carry same limits as listed above.

Commercial General Liability:
$1M of coverage is needed. 

Additional Policies: N/A

$1M occurrence / $2M aggregate (can be combined with an 
Excess Liability to meet requirement). CGL is required in ALL 
contracts. It is perhaps the most important of 
all insurance policies in a contractual relationship. It insures 
the Contractor has broad liability coverage for contractual 
activities and for completed operations.

Commercial General Liability to include Products – 
Completion/OP, Personal and Advertising Injury, Contractual 
Liability, Fire Damage (any one fire), and Medical Expenses 
(any one person). 

 $1M of coverage is needed for Cyber Liability.
Cyber Liability Requirements:

PUR # 18303

177855
Rectangle

177855
Rectangle

177855
Rectangle



��

��������	�
������	����������������������������� ����� ��!� "��

#$%&'(')*�+,*-&.&$(-�/-&0$%-(�1'&2�3&4-&���56�789�:;3<=>??�������������@A���BCDEFGHGIJ�KIIDLDMJN�JG�EGOPLNJNQ��R
 �S  T ���  �T ���  ���UVWX�YZ[\�][̂_[�̀ZaXWXbX�Zc�bV_�b_[dX�eâ�̀ZâWbWZaX�f_gZhi�eâ�bV_�j[ZkWXWZaX�Zc�bV_�lẀ[ZXZcb�leXb_[�m_[kẀ_X�no[__d_ab�[_c_[_à_�pqrstusv�i�_cc_̀bWk_�eX�Zc��wwxwyxz{zw�|bV_�}no[__d_ab}~i�bV_�j[ZkWXWZaX�Zc�bV_��_X̀[WjbWZa�Zc�m_[kẀ_X�ejjgẀefg_�bZ�bV_��[Zc_XXWZaeg�m_[kẀ_X�Ŵ_abWcW_̂�Wa�bVWX�YZ[\�][̂_[i�eâ�ea��ebbèVd_abX�Z[�_�VWfWbX�[_c_[_à_̂�Wa�bVWX�YZ[\�][̂_[i�egg�Zc�hVẀV�e[_�WàZ[jZ[eb_̂�V_[_Wa�f��bVWX�[_c_[_à_���a�bVWX�YZ[\�][̂_[����XbZd_[i����Z�i��Z[���Z�[��d_eaX�bV_��â_[XWoa_̂�̀�XbZd_[�Z[�WbX�eccWgWeb_�eâ�}lẀ[ZXZcb}i��h_i����Xi��Z[��Z�[��d_eaX�bV_��â_[XWoa_̂�lẀ[ZXZcb�eccWgWeb_�����XWoaWao�f_gZh�bV_�je[bW_X�è\aZhg_̂o_�eâ�eo[__�bZ�f_�fZ�â�bZ�bV_�b_[dX�Zc�bVWX�YZ[\�][̂_[i�bV_�no[__d_ab�eâ�egg�ZbV_[�j[ZkWXWZaX�WàZ[jZ[eb_̂�Wa�bV_d��UVWX�YZ[\�][̂_[�WX�_cc_̀bWk_�eX�Zc�bV_�̂eb_�bVeb�lẀ[ZXZcb�XWoaX�bVWX�YZ[\�][̂_[���_oe[̂g_XX�Zc�ea��b_[dX�eâ�̀ZâWbWZaX�Z̀abeWa_̂�Wa�e�j�[̀VeX_�Z[̂_[i�Wc�ea�i�bV_�b_[dX�Zc�bVWX�YZ[\�][̂_[�ejjg���:�(*'�-&���@���!���	��@��������	����������:$*��')�����'%2�
����������������@���!����	���	������������	�������������������!����	���	������������	������������
�������������������@���!���	��@��������	��!!������������������������������@������!���!!������!��@���	��@����A�������



��

��������	�
������	����������������������������� �������� �!"��

#$%&'(')*�+))$,$-*.���/���#$%&'(')*�0'&1'&-*$'2�
����������������/��� ����	���	������������	������������3������ ����	���	������������	������������
����������������  �����������������456789:;�;:<;:6:=76�>=?�@>;;>=76�7A>7�B7�?8:6�=87�;:C5B;:�<5;DA>6:�8;?:;E6F�G:�65G9B77:?�78�HBD;868I7�I8;�<>J9:=7�8I�7A:�HBD;868I7�K:;LBD:6�M::6�NB67:?�A:;:B=O��456789:;�@BNN�=87�@B7AA8N?�<>J9:=7�8I�HBD;868I7P6�B=L8BD:�?5:�78�7A:�>G6:=D:�8I�>�<5;DA>6:�8;?:;�;:I:;:=D:O�QI�=8�<5;DA>6:�8;?:;�B6�;:C5B;:?R�456789:;�9567�D89<N:7:�S456789:;�B=L8BD:�B=I8;9>7B8=S�G:N8@�>=?�:=65;:�B7�B6�>DD5;>7:�8;�;:LB6:?�B=�>�7B9:NJ�9>==:;O��M5;7A:;R�7A:�G:N8@�T456789:;�B=L8BD:�B=I8;9>7B8=U�9567�G:�D89<N:7:?�<;B8;�78V�E>F�456789:;�6BW=B=W�7AB6�X8;Y�Z;?:;[�>=?�EGF�HBD;868I7�B=L8BDB=W�456789:;O�0\(*'].&�$2̂'$%.�$2)'&]-*$'2���/��� �_�	��/���_��̀�� �a�bb����� _���������/���c������	��������	��������d�	��������������������c�
�����	��
������e����		��e������	���̀�b��������f�g������� _��������hi����e����		���
�����	j/���������bb�����g��	��_��̀��akff�_l�� 
����m����������3n�� �d�����o�phqq"h�r�p��



��

��������	�
������	����������������������������� ����� ��!�"#��

$%&'()*+�,-.(,/*�,-0(+)1',(-�2�����3��4������
����	�� ��	����2�����5�6#57���"�� 8�9����:;<<=>?�:@>ABC@D�EFG�H@@D�I@>JK�LMNOPQPRS�TUSVOWOMQV�XYWWPOS�XVOZMNVQ�[M\\�NP]]VUNV�PU�̂̂ _̂_̀àb�cSdV�eXYWWPOS�fP]]VUNV]VUS�ghSVij�hUk�[M\\�VlWMOV�PU�̂a_m̂_̀àn�cSdV�eXYWWPOS�TlWMOhSMPU�ghSVijo�p@DC>B<?B=F�=q�:@>ABC@DK�r\VhQV�OVRVO�SP�SdV�NYOOVUS�sUMRMVk�XYWWPOS�XVOZMNVQ�gVQNOMWSMPU�cesXXgij�[dMNd�[M\\�tV�MUNPOWPOhSVk�tu�OVRVOVUNV�hUk�MQ�WYt\MQdVk�tu�LMNOPQPRS�ROP]�SM]V�SP�SM]V�hS�[[[o]MNOPQPRSoNP]_YUMRMVkvQYWWPOSvQVOZMNVQvkVQNOMWSMPUo��LMNOPQPRS�]hu�YWkhSV�SdV�QYWWPOS�QVOZMNVQ�uPY�WYONdhQV�YUkVO�SdMQ�hwOVV]VUS�ROP]�SM]V�SP�SM]Vx�WOPZMkVk�SdhS�SdV�\VZV\�PR�QYWWPOS�QVOZMNVQ�uPY�WYONdhQV�[M\\�UPS�]hSVOMh\\u�kVNOVhQV�kYOMUw�SdV�NYOOVUS�yVO]o�:@>ABC@D�z{�:;<<=>?�|=CE}=F~���T���̂���gVQMwUhSVk�TUwMUVVOMUw����USYUV�v�yMVO�̀�v�̀àbv̀��������sX��v�X���v�TUSVOWOMQV��VQS����������̂̂ _̂_̀àb�v��̂a_m̂_̀à���YhUSMSu�� XVOZMNV�� XVOZMNV�yuWV��âa�dO� gVQMwUhSVk�TUwMUVVOMUw�yM]V��USYUV�� gVQMwUhSVk�XYWWPOS�TUwMUVVOMUw�b�Vh� gVQMwUhSVk�TUwMUVVOMUw�rOPhNSMZV��USYUV�� �k]MUMQSOhSMZV��UN\YkVk�� XVOZMNV�gV\MZVOu�LhUhwV]VUS�TlSVUkVk�� XVOZMNV�gV\MZVOu�LhUhwV]VUS����T���̂���sUMRMVk�TUSVOWOMQV�XYWWPOS�v�̀àbv̀��������sX��v�X���v�TUSVOWOMQV��VQS����������̂̂ _̂_̀àb�v��̂a_m̂_̀à���YhUSMSu�� XVOZMNV�� XVOZMNV�yuWV���UN\YkVk�� TUSVOWOMQV��kZMQPOu�XYWWPOS��PYOQ��QvUVVkVk�� �kZMQPOu�XVOZMNVQ�



��

��������	�
������	����������������������������� ����� ��!�"#��

$%&'()*)�� +%,*-.-/0*�12(-*�3-45'*6�7*04'(,/4%�84(-0�109%**)*)�� 3-45'*6�7*04'(,/4%�:(..4-,�$%&'()*)�� +%,*-.-/0*�;%9)*6<%)�100*006*%,�� ;%9=*6<%)�100*006*%,�$%&'()*)�� +%,*-.-/0*�;%9=*6<%)�100*006*%,�9�:*,(.�<%)�>4%?/@�:*-A/&*�109%**)*)�� ;%9=*6<%)�100*006*%,�7*64,*�$%&'()*)�� +%,*-.-/0*�;%9=*6<%)�+)(&<,/4%�� ;%9=*6<%)�+)(&<,/4%�$%&'()*)�� +%,*-.-/0*�;%'/%*�:(..4-,�34-,<'�� 1)6/%/0,-<,/A*�$%&'()*)�� +%,*-.-/0*�3-45'*6�7*04'(,/4%�84(-0�109%**)*)�� 3-45'*6�7*04'(,/4%�:(..4-,�$%&'()*)�� +%,*-.-/0*�7*<&,/A*�:(..4-,�B<%<@*6*%,�� :*-A/&*�=*'/A*-C�B<%<@*6*%,�$%&'()*)�� +%,*-.-/0*�:*-A/&*�=*'/A*-C�B<%<@*6*%,�� :*-A/&*�=*'/A*-C�B<%<@*6*%,�$%&'()*)�� +%,*-.-/0*�D*5&<0,0�109E**)*)�� D*5&<0,�$%&'()*)�� 7*<&,/A*�+%<5'*)�>4%,<&,0�� 3-45'*6�7*04'(,/4%�:(..4-,���F+17�G�H�I%/?/*)�3-4<&,/A*�:*-A/&*0�1))�4%�H�I%/?/*)�3-4<&,/A*�:A&0�+%,*-.-/0*�:*&(-/,C�9�JKJL9JM�������I:1�9�:NO�9�+%,*-.-/0*�D*0,����������GGPGPJKJL�9��GKPQGPJKJM�R(<%,/,C�� :*-A/&*�� :*-A/&*�SC.*��$%&'()*)�� :*-A/&*�=*'/A*-C�B<%<@*6*%,�+T,*%)*)�� :*-A/&*�=*'/A*-C�B<%<@*6*%,�G�*<� ;%0/,*�U/0/,�� ;%0/,*�:(..4-,��� �



��

��������	�
������	����������������������������� ����� ��!�" ��

�#$%&�'�(�)*+,-./0*1�$.-,.**2,.-�(�345,640�742�8,924+470�:*9;2,0<�=�>,*2�'�=�'?'@='A�������B:%�=�:CD�=�$.0*252,+*�E*+0����������FFGFG'?'@�=��F?GHFG'?'A�I;/.0,0<�� :*2J,9*�� :*2J,9*�><5*��F??�K2� )*+,-./0*1�$.-,.**2,.-�>,L*�345,640�742�8,924+470�:*9;2,0<�� )*+,-./0*1�:;55420�$.-,.**2,.-�M.96;1*1�� :*2J,9*�)*6,J*2<�8/./-*L*.0�$N0*.1*1�� :*2J,9*�)*6,J*2<�8/./-*L*.0�O�*/� )*+,-./0*1�$.-,.**2,.-�P24/90,J*�345,640�742�8,924+470�:*9;2,0<�� %1L,.,+02/0,J*���#$%&�'�(�B.,7,*1�$.0*252,+*�:;55420�=�'?'@='A�������B:%�=�:CD�=�$.0*252,+*�E*+0����������FFGFG'?'@�=��F?GHFG'?'A�I;/.0,0<�� :*2J,9*�� :*2J,9*�><5*��M.96;1*1�� $.0*252,+*�%1J,+42<�:;55420�Q4;2+�%+=.**1*1�� %1J,+42<�:*2J,9*+�M.96;1*1�� $.0*252,+*�%R;2*�P24S6*L�&*+46;0,4.�Q4;2+�%+=.**1*1�� P24S6*L�&*+46;0,4.�:;55420�M.96;1*1�� $.0*252,+*�T.=1*L/.1�%++*++L*.0�� T.=)*L/.1�%++*++L*.0�M.96;1*1�� $.0*252,+*�T.=)*L/.1�%++*++L*.0�=�:*0;5�/.1�34.7,-�:*2J,9*�%+=.**1*1�� T.=)*L/.1�%++*++L*.0�&*L40*�M.96;1*1�� $.0*252,+*�T.=)*L/.1�$1;9/0,4.�� T.=)*L/.1�$1;9/0,4.�M.96;1*1�� $.0*252,+*�T.6,.*�:;55420�P420/6�� %1L,.,+02/0,J*�M.96;1*1�� $.0*252,+*�P24S6*L�&*+46;0,4.�Q4;2+�%+=.**1*1�� P24S6*L�&*+46;0,4.�:;55420�M.96;1*1�� $.0*252,+*�&*/90,J*�:;55420�8/./-*L*.0�� :*2J,9*�)*6,J*2<�8/./-*L*.0�



��

��������	�
������	����������������������������� ����� ��!�"#��

$%&'()*)�� +%,*-.-/0*�1*-2/&*�3*'/2*-4�56%67*8*%,�� 1*-2/&*�3*'/2*-4�56%67*8*%,�$%&'()*)�� +%,*-.-/0*�9*:&60,0�;0<=**)*)�� 9*:&60,�$%&'()*)�� >*6&,/2*�+%6:'*)�?@%,6&,0�� A-@:'*8�>*0@'(,/@%�1(..@-,���B+;>�C�D�E%/F/*)�A-@6&,/2*�12&0�+%,*-.-/0*�1*&(-/,4�<�CGCH<CI�������E1;�<�1JK�<�+%,*-.-/0*�9*0,����������LLMLMCGCH�<��LGMNLMCGCI�O(6%,/,4�� 1*-2/&*�� 1*-2/&*�P4.*��$%&'()*)�� 1*-2/&*�3*'/2*-4�56%67*8*%,�+Q,*%)*)�� 1*-2/&*�3*'/2*-4�56%67*8*%,�L�*6� R%0/,*�S/0/,�� R%0/,*�1(..@-,���B+;>�N�D�3*0/7%6,*)�+%7/%**-/%7�D�36,6�1*&(-/,4�<�P/*-�C�<�CGCI<CT�������E1;�<�1JK�<�+%,*-.-/0*�9*0,����������LLMLMCGCI�<��LGMNLMCGCT�O(6%,/,4�� 1*-2/&*�� 1*-2/&*�P4.*��LGG�U-� 3*0/7%6,*)�+%7/%**-/%7�P/8*�36,6�1*&(-/,4�� 3*0/7%6,*)�1(..@-,�+%7/%**-/%7�$%&'()*)�� 1*-2/&*�3*'/2*-4�56%67*8*%,�+Q,*%)*)�� 1*-2/&*�3*'/2*-4�56%67*8*%,�V�*6� 3*0/7%6,*)�+%7/%**-/%7�A-@6&,/2*�36,6�1*&(-/,4�� ;)8/%/0,-6,/2*��� �



��

��������	�
������	����������������������������� ����� ��!�"#��

�$%&'�(�)�*+,-,./�%+0.121,3.�4522610�7�898:78;�������*4&�7�4<=�7�%+0.121,3.�>.30����������??@?@898:�7��?9@(?@898;�A5B+0,0C�� 4.1D,E.�� 4.1D,E.�FC2.��G+EH5/./�� %+0.121,3.�&/D,361C�4522610�I6513�&37+.././�� &/D,361C�4.1D,E.3�G+EH5/./�� %+0.121,3.�&J51.�K16LH.M�'.36H50,6+�I6513�&37+.././�� K16LH.M�'.36H50,6+�4522610�G+EH5/./�� %+0.121,3.�N+7/.MB+/�&33.33M.+0�� N+7O.MB+/�&33.33M.+0�G+EH5/./�� %+0.121,3.�N+7O.MB+/�&33.33M.+0�7�4.052�B+/�P6+-,Q�4.1D,E.�&37+.././�� N+7O.MB+/�&33.33M.+0�'.M60.�G+EH5/./�� %+0.121,3.�N+7O.MB+/�%/5EB0,6+�� N+7O.MB+/�%/5EB0,6+�G+EH5/./�� %+0.121,3.�N+H,+.�4522610�K610BH�� &/M,+,301B0,D.�G+EH5/./�� %+0.121,3.�K16LH.M�'.36H50,6+�I6513�&37+.././�� K16LH.M�'.36H50,6+�4522610�G+EH5/./�� %+0.121,3.�'.BE0,D.�4522610�RB+BQ.M.+0�� 4.1D,E.�O.H,D.1C�RB+BQ.M.+0�G+EH5/./�� %+0.121,3.�4.1D,E.�O.H,D.1C�RB+BQ.M.+0�� 4.1D,E.�O.H,D.1C�RB+BQ.M.+0�G+EH5/./�� %+0.121,3.�>.LEB303�&37S.././�� >.LEB30�G+EH5/./�� '.BE0,D.�%+BLH./�P6+0BE03�� K16LH.M�'.36H50,6+�4522610��� �



��

��������	�
������	����������������������������� ����� ��!�"#��

�$%&'�(�)�*+,-,./�012345,6.�7.16,4.8�&//�2+�)�*+,-,./�012345,6.�7648�%+5.191,8.�7.4:1,5;�<�=>=?<=@�������*7&�<�7AB�<�%+5.191,8.�C.85����������DDEDE=>=?�<��D>E(DE=>=@�F:3+5,5;�� 7.16,4.�� 7.16,4.�G;9.��H+4I:/./�� 7.16,4.�J.I,6.1;�K3+3L.M.+5�%N5.+/./�� 7.16,4.�J.I,6.1;�K3+3L.M.+5�D�.3� O+8,5.�P,8,5�� O+8,5.�7:99215���QRSSTUV�QWUXYZW[�\WW[]�Ĝ.�,5.M8�I,85./�,+�5̂.�53_I.�3_26.�1.91.8.+5�5̂.�8.16,4.8�5̂35�̀:852M.1�̂38�91.<9:14̂38./�-21�:8.�/:1,+L�5̂.�5.1M�2-�5̂,8�C21a�O1/.1b�3+/�399I,43_I.�-..8�31.�8̂2c+�,+�5̂.�53_I.�_.I2cd�K,41282-5�7:99215�7.16,4.8�31.�3�+2+<1.-:+/3_I.b�91.93,/�8.16,4.d��e.-21.�K,41282-5�42MM.+4.8�21�42+5,+:.8�9126,8,2+�2-�K,41282-5�7:99215�7.16,4.8b�K,41282-5�M:85�1.4.,6.�3�8,L+./�429;�2-�5̂,8�C21a�O1/.1�3+/�̀:852M.1f8�93;M.+5b�9:14̂38.�21/.1�21b�,-�399I,43_I.b�42M9I.5./�̀:852M.1�,+62,4.�,+-21M35,2+�3_26.d�K,41282-5�c,II�,+62,4.�̀:852M.1b�3+/�:̀852M.1�3L1..8�52�93;�K,41282-5�c,5̂,+�g��43I.+/31�/3;8�2-�5̂.�/35.�2-�K,41282-5�,+62,4.d��K,41282-5�1.8.16.8�5̂.�1,L̂5�52�3/h:85�K,41282-5�-..8�91,21�52�.+5.1,+L�,+52�3+;�4̂3+L.8�52�5̂.�K,41282-5�7:99215�7.16,4.8�21/.1./�̂.1.,+d�ijkklmn�iompqros��too�ijuuvmw� xovm�y�""z�"z���{�|�"�zg"z���#� xovm�}�""z�"z���#�|�"�zg"z���~� xovm���""z�"z���~�|�"�zg"z����� �lnv��������	�����������
����� �
��~�����~����� �
��~�����~����� �
��~�����~����� �
������ ��  �������������	�������	�!�����!���� �
��##��g���#���
��##��g���#���
��##��g���#�� �
��"~���"�� #������	�����	�� ��
����� �������� ��
��"~���������� ��
��"~���������� ��
��~"�g"{������



��

��������	�
������	����������������������������� �������� �!"��

#$%&'()*+,�-./0(1(2)�34.2.56� 3#7�89:;<=>=?�3#7�@=:AB9>=?��3#7�@=:AB9>=?�� 3#7�BA?:=A?>;?������������
������	�C��D��� E
F��GHI�J����E
F��IHK!��GI� E
F�!��H!�K�K�� E
F����H"JG�!I�C�L�	�M���	�� �E
F��JHG"J�JI�� �E
F��!H"JG����� �E
F���H"GK�IG�� �E
F�IKHJGI�!K��#$%)()*+�N66&O41� 3#7�<=:8P=>?P�3#7�9?:8<9>89�3#7�99:?=A>B9� 3#7�888:BA<>=;�Q��R�C���S����� �E
F��"H�������� �E
F��"H�������� �E
F��"H�������� �E
F�T"H��������UVWXY�Z[[\�][̂_Ỳabcd�WX̂[\e� fgh�ijkllmnom� fgh�pmkjpqnjj� fgh�mlkrspnlj� fgh�jqtksljnpt��uvw��x����	� ��E�� ���� ��	���	���y����y��������y�	��������������������	���������������S��w��w��������������z{|}�~z{������������z�����{����~���|z��z���|���z�|�{��~��z�z{�z��{����z�z�{��~�{�{��{��z���|������������|����{���|������z���|z������|���������{����z�����z��������z�����������}�����������z���|���z|���z�~���}z������{��z�������|����z��������|{�|��{�z�������z������|�������E�� ���� ��	� ����w��t��[X�\�
�������v��M������������z{|}�|����{|��{����z��{�~�����}z�������������z�|z�z����{�z��������z��������{��z�������|��
�����S����y����D����������� ����w������M������������� ������¡��������z���������|����z�����|�z{�z����z���}z���z������¢£�����}�����|��{�������|����z������~�������w���¤b¥[�¦[�_[cW�]q§e��y�����w��C�����	�����������
�����	w�S�� ����w��� ��������w��
�������
������	�Q���
�MM�� ���y����y���H�x����	� ��S�����������������w���		��������x����	� ��E�� ���� ��	� ����w������M������������� ������vw���������������x����	� ��E�� ���� ��	�S����y��y�	�������w��C��������������
����������w��E�� ��������	���	��������w��̈����v�y���y���S��x����	� ��S�������������w����	��M��� ����w����  �������y��S�����w����D����������������������w�����������	�w�������x����	� ��E�� ���� ��	�	�yD������ ��M��w��
�������
������	�Q���
�MM�� ���y����y������©�	��M��������	������ �x����	� ��	��w�������������M����	�S��w���ts�|{�z��{���{~������}z��{�z������|��������������|zª�����	��������w��� �������� ��� M�������x����	� ��M� ���	�������	�������	�	���	�������������	��©�	��M���M� ��������������������Q��R�C���S�����Sw��w�M� �y������������S���	���S�����������	������	H���w������	������	�����	�������	�	������	H����«�����	��M�����������	������	���
w�����©�	��M��� �����������������w��Q��R�C���S���������������w������������������	�� H�x����	� ��M� ����� ��w�������������Q��R�C���S�������S���	���S�����������������	���



��

��������	�
������	����������������������������� ����� ���!� "��

������
����������

#$%&'(')*�+,$)$-.�/�01*-�2134-��5,*-&6&$(-�61%718-� 9-&:-&�� +(-&�� ;<=&-��>-1&�?�@$(%'=,*-.�01*-�A� BC�� "��"C�� BC��>-1&�D�@$(%'=,*-.�01*-�A� BC�� "��"C�� BC��
;66&1$(-.�E&'.=%*�96-,.�3F�G1*-8'&F�� 9-&:-&� +(-&� ;<=&-� 2H2;I�>-1&�J� K
L� �MN�����O� K
L�"M�NPOQ��O� K
L��"NB���B�� K
L�Q��N��Q����>-1&�?� K
L� �MN�����O� K
L�"M�NPOQ��O� K
L��"NB���B�� K
L�Q��N��Q����>-1&�D� K
L� �MN�����O� K
L�"M�NPOQ��O� K
L��"NB���B�� K
L�Q��N��Q����



��

��������	�
������	����������������������������� �����  ��!� "��

���#$%%$&'�()*+,-%+�� #$%%$&'�./0+�123,344445� 6++�7(.�����8�9����:9����   ; ;���<� =�>  ��<������8�9����:9����   ; ;���"� ?�>�?"��������8�9����:9����   ; ;���@� � >@�?� ��AB0/%�6++C�1+D)%-,$&'�0/D+C5� EFGHIJEKLG��MNOPQRST�UVRSW�MQXPVYPZO[\��]̂_�̀ab̂cde�fg�fad�̂bhdi�̀ĝfb̀fe�eagjki�ld�ejlhmffdi�fg�nm̀ogegpf�qĝfb̀fr����9���!�s�	��9���
�������
�������t�9���	���������������u�
�����	���
������t����		���s��:��!�v�ww���� x <�t������y� s��������z{����t����		����
�����	|9���������ww�����}��	���s��:���v�ww������ 
����;�����������8~� ��������?�@z=="z�x�@��s�����:����������
����	� ��	����s������=�<� z�@�@�� ��}�������OS��Q�XSTO�����TSOPT�Y�QXO�VXW�T���PO\��TQWNYPO\���ogij̀f��hdb̂e�bkk��ogij̀fe�mid̂fmpmdi�m̂�fad��ogij̀f��dohe��ej̀a�be�bkk��gpf�bod���̂ km̂d��do�m̀de�b̂i�gfado��dl�lbedi�edo�m̀de��m̂̀ kjim̂c��od�odkdbed�go�ldfb��doemĝer��ogij̀f�b�bmkblmkmf_�hb_��bo_�l_�odcmĝr���ogij̀f��dohe��hdb̂e�fad�m̂pgohbfmĝ�blgjf�nm̀ogegpf�



��

��������	�
������	����������������������������� ����� ���!� "��

#$%&'()*�+,&�#$%-.**/%,+0�1.$2/(.*�+2+/0+30.�)4$%'54�2%0'6.�0/(.,*/,57�84.�#$%&'()�8.$6*�+$.�9'30/*4.&�%,�)4.�:%0'6.�;/(.,*/,5�1/).�+,&�/*�'9&+).&�-$%6�)/6.�)%�)/6.7�<:%0'6.�;/(.,*/,5�1/).=�6.+,*�4))9>??@@@76/($%*%-)7(%6?0/(.,*/,5?(%,)$+()*�%$�+�*'((.**%$�*/).7�A00�9$%&'()*�+,&�$.0+).&�*%0')/%,*�9$%2/&.&�',&.$�)4/*�B%$C�D$&.$�@/00�3.�0/(.,*.&�+((%$&/,5�)%�)4.�).$6*�%-�)4.�0/(.,*.�+5$..6.,)�9+(C+5.&�@/)4�%$�%)4.$@/*.�+990/(+30.�)%�*'(4�9$%&'()7�E'*)%6.$�/*�$.*9%,*/30.�-%$�9+F/,5�+,F�0/(.,*/,5�-..*�+**%(/+).&�@/)4�#$%&'()*7�GHIJKL�<M/N.*=�6.+,*�#$%&'()�-/N.*O�6%&/-/(+)/%,*O�.,4+,(.6.,)*O�%$�)4./$�&.$/2+)/2.*O�)4+)�P/($%*%-)�./)4.$�$.0.+*.*�5.,.$+00F�Q*'(4�+*�*.$2/(.�9+(C*RO�%$�)4+)�P/($%*%-)�9$%2/&.*�)%�E'*)%6.$�@4.,�9.$-%$6/,5�#$%-.**/%,+0�1.$2/(.*�Q+00�*'99%$)O�90+,,/,5O�(%,*'0)/,5�+,&�%)4.$�9$%-.**/%,+0�*.$2/(.*�%$�+&2/(.O�/,(0'&/,5�+,F�$.*'0)/,5�&.0/2.$+30.*�9$%2/&.&�)%�E'*)%6.$�',&.$�)4/*�B%$C�D$&.$O�)%�+&&$.**�+�*9.(/-/(�/**'.7�<#$%-.**/%,+0�1.$2/(.*=�6.+,*�#$%&'()�*'99%$)�*.$2/(.*�+,&�P/($%*%-)�(%,*'0)/,5�*.$2/(.*�9$%2/&.&�)%�E'*)%6.$�',&.$�)4/*�B%$C�D$&.$7�<#$%-.**/%,+0�1.$2/(.*=�%$�<*.$2/(.*=�&%.*�,%)�/,(0'&.�D,0/,.�1.$2/(.*O�',0.**�*9.(/-/(+00F�,%).&7�M/N.*�+$.�0/(.,*.&�+((%$&/,5�)%�)4.�0/(.,*.�).$6*�+990/(+30.�)%�)4.�#$%&'()�)%�@4/(4�)4%*.�M/N.*�$.0+).7�S-�)4.�M/N.*�+$.�,%)�9$%2/&.&�-%$�+�*9.(/-/(�#$%&'()O�+,F�%)4.$�'*.�).$6*�P/($%*%-)�9$%2/&.*�@/)4�)4.�M/N.*�@/00�+990F7�TUJVJIHKWXY�Z[U\L�]#$.̂.N/*)/,5�B%$C]�6.+,*�+,F�(%69').$�(%&.�%$�%)4.$�@$/)).,�6+).$/+0*�&.2.0%9.&�%$�%)4.$@/*.�%3)+/,.&�/,&.9.,&.,)�%-�)4/*�B%$C�D$&.$7�A00�$/54)*�/,�#$.̂.N/*)/,5�B%$C�*4+00�$.6+/,�)4.�*%0.�9$%9.$)F�%-�)4.�9+$)F�9$%2/&/,5�)4.�#$.̂.N/*)/,5�B%$C7�_+(4�9+$)F�6+F�'*.O�$.9$%&'(.�+,&�6%&/-F�)4.�%)4.$�9+$)F̀*�#$.̂.N/*)/,5�B%$C�%,0F�+*�,..&.&�)%�9.$-%$6�%30/5+)/%,*�$.0+).&�)%�#$%-.**/%,+0�1.$2/(.*7�aJUbHcJK�dJeHbJUfgeJKL�<1.$2/(.*�h.0/2.$+30.*=�6.+,*�+,F�(%69').$�(%&.�%$�6+).$/+0*O�%)4.$�)4+,�#$%&'()*�%$�M/N.*�)4+)�P/($%*%-)�0.+2.*�@/)4�E'*)%6.$�+)�)4.�(%,(0'*/%,�%-�P/($%*%-)i*�9.$-%$6+,(.�%-�#$%-.**/%,+0�1.$2/(.*7�j9%,�9+F6.,)�/,�-'00�-%$�)4.�#$%-.**/%,+0�1.$2/(.*O�P/($%*%-)�5$+,)*�E'*)%6.$�+�,%,̂.N(0'*/2.O�,%,̂)$+,*-.$+30.�9.$9.)'+0O�-'00F�9+/&̂'9�0/(.,*.�)%�$.9$%&'(.O�'*.�+,&�6%&/-F�)4.�1.$2/(.*�h.0/2.$+30.O�*%0.0F�/,�)4.�-%$6�&.0/2.$.&�)%�E'*)%6.$�+,&�*%0.0F�-%$�E'*)%6.$i*�/,).$,+0�3'*/,.**�9'$9%*.*O�*'3k.()�)%�)4.�).$6*�+,&�(%,&/)/%,*�%-�)4/*�B%$C�D$&.$7�l[XVmHcU[K[n�K[nofUJ�fXp�qJcrX[e[YsL�E'*)%6.$�/*�*%0.0F�$.*9%,*/30.�-%$�+,F�,%,̂P/($%*%-)�*%-)@+$.�%$�).(4,%0%5F�)4+)�/)�/,*)+00*�%$�'*.*�@/)4�)4.�#$%&'()*O�M/N.*O�%$�1.$2/(.*�h.0/2.$+30.*7�



��

��������	�
������	����������������������������� ����� !��"� #��

$%&'()*+,�-'./)+�01223435678�975:;�5:<�47=54�7:636<�6>56�?@:6A@4;B�3;�?@:6A@447C�D<B�@A�6>56�3;�E:C7A�?@99@:�?@:6A@4�F36>�5�G5A6<H�0I@:6A@48�975:;�@F:7A;>3G�@2�9@A7�6>5:�5�JKL�3:67A7;6�@2�M@63:=�;7?EA3637;�3:�5:�7:636<�@A�6>7�G@F7A�6@�C3A7?6�6>7�95:5=797:6�5:C�G@43?37;�@2�5:�7:636<H�IE;6@97A�95<�;ED43?7:;7�6>7�A3=>6;�?@:653:7C�3:�6>3;�;7?63@:�A74563:=�6@�N7AM3?7;�O743M7A5D47;�6@�36;�122343567;B�DE6�IE;6@97AP;�122343567;�95<�:@6�;ED43?7:;7�6>7;7�A3=>6;�5:C�IE;6@97AP;�122343567;P�E;7�9E;6�D7�?@:;3;67:6�F36>�6>7�43?7:;7�67A9;�?@:653:7C�3:�6>3;�Q@AR�SAC7AH�T*+)-'UVWX+�WX�Y+*Z�IE;6@97A�9E;6�:@6�[5:C�3;�:@6�43?7:;7C�6@\�[]\�A7M7A;7�7:=3:77AB�C7?@9G347�@A�C3;5;;79D47�5:<�Â@CE?6B�_3̀B�@A�N7AM3?7;�O743M7A5D47a�[b\�3:;6544�@A�E;7�:@:cd3?A@;@26�;@26F5A7�@A�67?>:@4@=<�3:�5:<�F5<�6>56�F@E4C�;EDe7?6�d3?A@;@26P;�3:67447?6E54�GA@G7A6<�@A�67?>:@4@=<�6@�5:<�@6>7A�43?7:;7�67A9;a�@A�[f\�F@AR�5A@E:C�5:<�67?>:3?54�43936563@:;�3:�5�̂A@CE?6B�_3̀�@A�N7AM3?7;�O743M7A5D47�@A�A7;6A3?63@:;�3:�̂A@CE?6�C@?E97:6563@:H�g̀?7G6�5;�7̀GA7;;4<�G7A93667C�3:�6>3;�Q@AR�SAC7A�@A�Â@CE?6�C@?E97:6563@:B�IE;6@97A�9E;6�:@6�[5:C�3;�:@6�43?7:;7C�6@\�[]\�;7G5A567�5:C�AE:�G5A6;�@2�5�̂A@CE?6�@A�_3̀�@:�9@A7�6>5:�@:7�C7M3?7B�EG=A5C7�@A�C@F:=A5C7�G5A6;�@2�5�̂A@CE?6�@A�_3̀�56�C3227A7:6�6397;B�@A�6A5:;27A�G5A6;�@2�5�̂A@CE?6�@A�_3̀�;7G5A5674<a�@A�[b\�C3;6A3DE67B�;ED43?7:;7B�A7:6B�475;7B�47:C�5:<�̂A@CE?6;B�_3̀7;B�@A�N7AM3?7;�O743M7A5D47;B�3:�F>@47�@A�3:�G5A6B�@A�E;7�6>79�6@�@227A�>@;63:=�;7AM3?7;�6@�5�6>3AC�G5A6<H�T*+*-h(VWX�Wi�-'./)+Z�Â@CE?6;B�_3̀7;B�5:C�N7AM3?7;�O743M7A5D47;�5A7�GA@67?67C�D<�?@G<A3=>6�5:C�@6>7A�3:67447?6E54�GA@G7A6<�A3=>6;�45F;�5:C�3:67A:563@:54�6A75637;H�d3?A@;@26�A7;7AM7;�544�A3=>6;�:@6�7̀GA7;;4<�=A5:67C�3:�6>3;�5=A7797:6H�j@�A3=>6;�F344�D7�=A5:67C�@A�39G437C�D<�F53M7A�@A�7;6@GG74H�k3=>6;�6@�5??7;;�@A�E;7�N@26F5A7�@:�5�C7M3?7�C@�:@6�=3M7�IE;6@97A�5:<�A3=>6�6@�39G4797:6�d3?A@;@26�G567:6;�@A�@6>7A�d3?A@;@26�3:67447?6E54�GA@G7A6<�3:�6>7�C7M3?7�36;742�@A�3:�5:<�@6>7A�;@26F5A7�@A�C7M3?7;H�l'U-W+Wm�n-Wi*++'WX(&�o*-h'U*+�p()(�n-W)*UVWX�$qq*XqYr�(Xq�sWXtq*XV(&')uZ��0̂A@27;;3@:54�N7AM3?7;�O5658�975:;�544�C565B�3:?4EC3:=�544�67̀6B�;@E:CB�M3C7@B�395=7�2347;B�@A�;@26F5A7B�6>56�5A7�GA@M3C7C�6@�d3?A@;@26�D<B�@A�@:�D7>542�@2B�IE;6@97A�[@A�6>56�IE;6@97A�5E6>@A3v7;�d3?A@;@26�6@�@D653:�2A@9�5:�S:43:7�N7AM3?7\�@A�@6>7AF3;7�@D653:7C�@A�GA@?7;;7C�D<�@A�@:�D7>542�@2�d3?A@;@26�6>A@E=>�5:�7:=5=797:6�F36>�d3?A@;@26�6@�@D653:�̂A@27;;3@:54�N7AM3?7;H�w>7�C565�GA@67?63@:�67A9;�5GG4<3:=�6@�̂A@27;;3@:54�N7AM3?7;�3:�7227?6�@:�6>7�7227?63M7�C567�@2�6>3;�Q@AR�SAC7A�5:C�5M5345D47�56�>66G;xyy5R5H9;y7;F@CG5�5A7�3:?@AG@A567C�>7A73:�D<�6>3;�A727A7:?7H�_@A�435D3436<�5A3;3:=�@E6�@2�736>7A�G5A6<z;�?@:23C7:635436<�@D43=563@:;�A74563:=�6@�̂A@27;;3@:54�N7AM3?7;�O565�GA@M3C7C�E:C7A�6>3;�Q@AR�SAC7AB�75?>�G5A6<z;�95̀39E9B�5==A7=567�435D3436<�6@�6>7�



��

��������	�
������	����������������������������� ����� !��"� #��

$%&'(�)*�+),)%'-�%$�-)('.%�-/,/0'*�1)2/++3�/4/(-'-�)2�/2�/,$52%�2$%�%$�'6.''-�%&'�/,$52%*�75*%$,'(�8/)-�1$(�%&'�/88+)./9+'�:($1'**)$2/+�;'(<).'*�52-'(�%&)*�=$(>�?(-'(@��ABCDEFEG�HEIJKCJ�75*%$,'(�.$2%/.%�1$(�L5'*%)$2*�/2-�2$%).'*�/9$5%�%&)*�=$(>�?(-'(@��M����	�"��N���������O����P�	����Q�	��������R���������� N��������SM����T����		����S�"�	���UO����	�"����O����� �



��

��������	�
������	����������������������������� ����� !��"� !��

�#$$%&'()�#�*+�,-�./0�1233,4.�5,660780607.�9:.0;�<0=,>�?+�:�=?+.�,-�@,24�A08=:40A�=?807+?7B�074,==607.+�:7A�:B400607.+�-,4�>/?8/�C?84,+,-.�>?==�34,D?A0�+233,4.�+04D?80+�:+�A0-?70A�>?./?7�./?+�E,4F�G4A04H��IJKLMNOP�QRNO� STUOVKTVW�XPMWPRN� STUOVKTVW�YVPMZZNOVL[\WPOONOVL�QJN]OP[̂TZZTVW�\UUMJVL�_̀�abcd��e�fghh�ai� ��������	��j� kjlm�n�n��



 AI# 12858 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 23. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - GIS and Data Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Consultant Contract between the City of Lubbock and the Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization
(LMPO), to provide Geographic Information System services to LMPO, for FY 2024-25 and FY 2025-26.

Item Summary
This contract is an agreement between the City of Lubbock and Lubbock Metropolitan Planning
Organization (LMPO), to provide Geographic Information System (GIS) services to LMPO.

The purpose of the project is to enhance the ongoing update of the City of Lubbock Land Use Data
Files, in order to provide more accurate data input to the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT)
Travel Demand Model, for forecasting future travel volumes within the Transportation Analysis Zones
(TAZ). This project will result in spatial and tabular datasets, including geographic and demographic
information for areas inside the Metropolitan Area Boundary (MAB) and the Transportation Analysis
Zones (TAZ).

The term of the agreement is from October 1, 2024, through September 30, 2026. The
maximum revenue received by the City under this contract is not to exceed $53,700 per year.

Fiscal Impact
Revenue to the GIS and Data Services Department for services provided to LMPO, will not exceed
$53,700 per year.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
James C. Brown, Chief Information Officer

Attachments
Resolution - LMPO and GIS Consultant 
LMPO Contract GIS Services 









































 AI# 12863 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 24. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Lease and
Maintenance Agreement, and all related documents, with Wild West Harley-Davidson, for Police
Motorcycles for the Lubbock Police Department.

Item Summary
The motorcycle lease agreement will allow the Lubbock Police Department (LPD) to continue
motorcycle traffic enforcement and police escort services. The police motorcycle squads are integral
parts of the department’s enforcement of traffic laws, due to their maneuverability in congested traffic
conditions, and their ability to enforce traffic laws in areas not accessible to other police vehicles.
Additionally, police motorcycle units provide escort services for funerals, parades, dignitaries, and other
related functions.

The City issued an Invitation to Bid (ITB) for leasing 12 Police Motorcycles and related equipment, due
to the current lease expiring.

In response to ITB 24-18236-KM, Wild West Harley-Davidson, the sole bidder, submitted a bid of $455
per motorcycle, per month, for a 36-Month Lease. The yearly cost per motorcycle will be $5,460. The
annual cost for all 12 motorcycles will be $65,520, and the total cost of the 36-Month Lease will be
$196,560.
 
Wild West Harley-Davidson will provide LPD with 12 Electra Glide Standard Police Motorcycles.
Maintenance will not be a recurring monthly cost, but rather a scheduled service determined by mileage
and need.
 
The Fleet staff recommends awarding this contract to Wild West Harley-Davidson for $196,560.

Fiscal Impact
The annual cost of $65,520 for this lease is appropriated in the Lubbock Police Department's Operating
Budget- Rental/Lease Account 5735.8407.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
Dominic Esperat, Director of Fleet Operations

Attachments
Resolution - Lease for Motorcycles 
Agreement - Wild West Harley-Davidson Motorcycles 



Project Summary - ITB 18236 





Motorcycle Agreement, City of Lubbock & Wild West Harley-Davidson  
 1  

 

Contract 18236 
 

City of Lubbock, TX 
Lease and Maintenance Agreement for Police Motorcycles 

Motorcycle Lease Agreement 

Wild West Harley-Davidson (referred to as “Lessor”) agrees to lease to the City of 
Lubbock (referred to as “Lessee”) and Lessee agrees to lease from Lessor the 
motorcycles and equipment described in the attached Appendix A (referred to as leased 
property) under the following terms and conditions. 

 
1. Lease Term 

 
The term of this lease shall begin on the first day after delivery of the new bikes and 
continue for a period of thirty-six (36) consecutive months. The property leased under 
this agreement must be used solely for police and related law enforcement activities. 
Only one rider per motorcycle is permitted at one time. 

 
2. Payment Period 

 
Lessee shall pay to Lessor a monthly lease payment of $455 per motorcycle, with CPI 
annual increase not to exceed 5%. The first payment is due and payable at Lessor’s place 
of business, Wild West Harley-Davidson, 5702 58th St, Lubbock, TX 79424, on the 
first day of March 2025 or the first day of month after delivery of the new motorcycles, 
whichever comes first and each subsequent payment will be due on the first day of each 
subsequent month during the term of the lease. 

 
3. Insurance 

 
Lessee shall maintain at its own expense insurance against casualty, bodily injury, 
property damage, and loss caused by or arising from the use and operation of the leased 
property. Coverage shall be pursuant to Resolution 2672 dated October 22, 1987, Section 
IV, item E, “the City of Lubbock Liability Self Insurance Program”. Lessee also shall 
maintain insurance sufficient to reimburse Lessor for $25,000.00 as per Section 7 of this 
agreement. Certificates or other satisfactory evidence of insurance will be furnished to 
Lessor by Lessee upon execution of this lease. 

 
4. Liens 

 
Lessee shall not directly or indirectly create, incur, grant or cause to be attached any 
mortgage, pledge, lien, charge, encumbrance or claim on or with respect to the leased 
property without the Lessor’s prior written approval. Lessee shall immediately, at its  
own expense, take such action as may be necessary to duly discharge any such mortgage, 
pledge, lien, charge, encumbrance or claim if same shall arise at any time due to the 
Lessee’s action or inaction. 



Motorcycle Agreement, City of Lubbock & Wild West Harley-Davidson  
 2  

 

5. Taxes and Fees 
 

Lessee shall pay all appropriate taxes or fees or similar charges imposed by virtue of 
Lessee’s ownership, possession or use of the leased property during the term of this 
agreement. This section shall not require Lessee to pay taxes, fees or charges from which 
Lessee is exempt pursuant to its status as a municipal corporation. 

 
6. Care and Use of Equipment 

 
Lessee agrees to maintain at its own expense the leased property in accordance with the 
manufacturer’s standard preventive maintenance contract and /or recommendations if 
any. All repairs shall be made at Wild West Harley-Davidson, 5702 58th St, Lubbock, 
TX 79424. Lessee, at its own expense, shall deliver the leased property to Wild West 
Harley-Davidson at regular Maintenance intervals set up by Lessor in accordance with 
the service schedule attached as Exhibit B. However, the repair and replacement of tires, 
regardless of reason, as well as purchase and use of gasoline and petroleum products will 
be the sole responsibility and expense of Lessee. 

 
Lessee shall use reasonable care to protect the leased property from loss, theft, damage or 
deterioration, other than reasonable wear and tear. Lessee shall use the leased property  
for reasonable and customary police activities only, without abuse, and shall not make 
modifications, alterations of additions to the leased property without the written consent 
of Lessor, which shall not unreasonably be withheld. 

 
Lessor shall have the right, immediately after notifying Lessee during regular business 
hours, to enter upon the premises where the leased property is located to inspect, observe 
or protect the Lessor’s interest. Lessee shall afford the Lessor reasonable opportunity to 
do so. 

 
7. Damage or Deterioration of Property 

 
In the event the leased property is damaged or destroyed by anyone, regardless of fault, 
while in the possession, custody or control of Lessee, the Lessee shall immediately have 
the leased property repaired and restored to its original condition, less reasonable wear 
and tear, at Lessee’s own expense. 

 
In the case of theft or total loss of the leased property, Lessee shall immediately pay 
Lessor the replacement value of the leased property, which shall be $25,000.00 each. 

 
8. Rider Responsibility and Privileges 

 
Lessee shall be responsible for keeping the motorcycles clean and shall immediately 
report any needed repairs to the Lessor. Lessee may allow riders to use the leased 
property to travel to and from work provided that the leased property is fully insured as 
herein required and that the distance to and from work is no more than 50 miles each 
way. 



Motorcycle Agreement, City of Lubbock & Wild West Harley-Davidson  
 3  

 

9. Events of Default and Remedies 
 

Lessee shall be deemed to be in default under this agreement upon the happening of any 
of the following events: 

 
A. Lessee fails to make any periodic payment or fails to make any other 

payment required hereunder, or, 
B. Lessee breaches or fails to perform any term, covenant, condition or 

provision of this agreement. 
 

Upon occurrence of any event of default as specified above, and should Lessee fail to 
remedy such event of default within a period of thirty (30) days after default occurs, 
Lessor shall have the right, after mailing written notice to Lessee of Lessor’s intent to 
pursue any of the following remedies: 

 
1. To repossess the leased property, which includes the right to sell or lease 

the property for the account of the Lessee, or to hold the Lessee liable for 
all accrued and unsacred payments under the lease term. Lessor may, at its 
option, hold lessee responsible for the difference between payments 
payable under this agreement and the amount received, if any by Lessor 
for re-leasing property upon repossession.  However, Lessor has no duty 
to re-lease property. 

 
2. To initiate any action at law or in equity as may appear necessary in 

Lessor’s sole discretion, or 
 

3. To pursue and obtain any other remedy allowed in law or in equity. Lessor 
shall be deemed to be in default under this agreement upon the happening 
of any of the following events: 

 
1.  Lessor fails to effect repairs to the leased property under Section 7 

of this agreement within a reasonable time after delivery to Lessor. 
2. Lessor breaches or fails to perform any term, covenant, condition 

or provision of this agreement. 
 

Upon the occurrence of any event of default as specified in paragraphs 1 or 2 above, and 
should Lessee fail to remedy such event default within a reasonable time after default 
occurs, Lessee shall have the right, after mailing written notice to the Lessor, to cancel 
this agreement without incurring any further liability or obligations hereunder. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



Motorcycle Agreement, City of Lubbock & Wild West Harley-Davidson  
 4  

 

10. Termination 
 

This agreement may be terminated by either party at the end of the third budget year of 
the Lessee during the term of the contract. Lessor, however, shall be entitled to all lease 
payments due or accrued to the date of such termination. Written notice of Lessee’s 
intent to terminate must be sent to the Lessor at Lessor’s business address at least thirty 
(30) days before the agreement is terminated. 

 
 

11. Maintenance and Equipment 
 

Lessee shall furnish its own radios and all equipment necessary to operate said radios. 
Maintenance and installation of said radios shall be the sole responsibility of Lessee. 

 
12. Sub-Lease or Assignment 

 
This agreement may not be assigned by either Lessor or Lessee. Neither Lessor nor 
Lessee may effect the sub-leasing of the leased property 

 
13. Purpose 

 
Lessee represents, and Lessor expressly relies upon the representation in entering this 
contract, that the leased property is necessary to preserve or protect the public health and 
safety of Lubbock, Texas residents. 

 
14. Ownership 

 
The parties to this lease agree that ownership of the leased property shall remain, at all 
times, in the Lessor’s possession. This document represents a lease, not a lease-purchase 
agreement. 

 
15. Invalidity Clause 

 
Should any term, condition, or provision of this contract be deemed or held invalid for 
any reason, all other terms, conditions and provisions shall, nevertheless, remain fully 
enforceable. The entire contract shall not be rendered void. 

 
16. Venue and Jurisdiction 

 
This contract is performable in Lubbock County, Texas. Furthermore, the laws of Texas 
will control its interpretation and the resolution of all disputes arising under and related to 
it. 

 
17. Entire Agreement 

 
This contract constitutes the entire agreement between parties. Any prior or 
contemporaneous representations or promises are not binding unless expressly included 
herein. Furthermore, this agreement cannot be modified except in writing signed by both 
parties. 



Motorcycle Agreement, City of Lubbock & Wild West Harley-Davidson  
 5  

 

18. Non–Arbitration 
 

The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy available to it by law, contract, 
equity, or otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of 
relief in a court of competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any 
arbitration process prior to exercising its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The 
remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised 
concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another provision 
in, or related to, this document, this provision shall control. 

 
19. Non-Appropriation 

 
All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an 
annual appropriation for this purpose by the City. In the event of non-appropriation of 
funds by the City Council of the City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided 
under the contract, the City will terminate the contract, without termination charge or 
other liability, on the last day of the then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation 
made for the then-current year for the goods or services covered by this contract is spent, 
whichever event occurs first. If at any time funds are not appropriated for the continuance 
of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the Seller on 30 days prior written 
notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall not be 
obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination. 

 
20. Lessor Acknowledges 

 
Lessor acknowledges by supplying any Goods or Services that the Lessor has read, fully 
understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the 
descriptive material contained herein and any additional associated documents and 
Amendments. The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by the Lessor unless 
agreed upon in writing by the parties. In the event of conflict between these terms and 
conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Lessor, the terms and conditions 
provided herein shall prevail. The terms and conditions provided herein are the final 
terms agreed upon by the parties, and any prior conflicting terms shall be of no force or 
effect. 

 
21. Texas Government Code Section 2252.152 

 
Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist 
Organization Prohibited. Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, 
prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a vendor that is identified by The 
Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or service 
with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization. 



Motorcycle Agreement, City of Lubbock & Wild West Harley-Davidson  
 6  

 

22. Texas Public Information Act 
 

The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, may apply to this 
contract and the Lessor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the Lessor or vendor 
knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. To the 
extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code applies to this agreement, Lessor 
agrees to: (1) preserve all contracting information related to the contract as provided by 
the records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body for the duration 
of the contract; (2) promptly provide to the governmental body any contracting 
information related to the contract that is in the custody or possession of the entity on 
request of the governmental body; and (3) on completion of the contract, either: (A) 
provide at no cost to the governmental body all contracting information related to the 
contract that is in the custody or possession of the entity; or (B) preserve the contracting 
information related to the contract as provided by the records retention requirements 
applicable to the governmental body. 

 

23. Texas Government Code Section 2274.002 
 

By entering into this Agreement, Contractor verifies that: (1) it does not, and will not for 
the duration of the contract, have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that 
discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association or (2) the verification 
required by Section 2274.002 of the Texas Government Code does not apply to the 
contract. 
If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement 
has a value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas 
Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or 
directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and will 
not discriminate during the term of the contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade 
association. 
Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of 
the contract, boycott energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 
2274.002 of the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract. 
If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement 
has a value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas 
Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not boycott energy companies; and will not 
boycott energy companies during the term of the Agreement. This verification is not 
required for an agreement where a governmental entity determines that these 
requirements are inconsistent with the governmental entity’s constitutional or statutory 
duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of debt obligations or the 
deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Motorcycle Agreement, City of Lubbock & Wild West Harley-Davidson  
 7  

 

24. Texas Government Code Section 2271.002 
 

Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, a) This section applies 
only to a contract that: (1) is between a governmental entity and a company with 10 or 
more full-time employees; and (2) has a value of $100,000 or more that is to be paid 
wholly or partly from public funds of the governmental entity. (b) A governmental entity 
may not enter into a contract with a company for goods or services unless the contract 
contains a written verification from the company that it: (1) does not boycott Israel; and 
(2) will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract. 

 
 

25. Confidentiality 
 

The Lessor shall retain all information received from or concerning the City and the 
City's business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to third 
parties without prior written consent of the City, unless otherwise required by law. 

 
26. Indemnity 

 
The Lessor shall indemnify and save harmless the City of Lubbock and its elected 
officials, officers, agents, and employees from all suits, actions, losses, damages, claims, 
or liability of any kind, character, type, or description, including without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, all expenses of litigation, court costs, and attorney's fees, for 
injury or death to any person, or injury to any property, received or sustained by any 
person or persons or property, to the extent arising out of, related to or occasioned by, the 
negligent acts of the Lessor, its agents, employees, and/or sublessors, related to the 
performance, operations or omissions under this agreement and/or the use or occupation of 
city owned property. The indemnity obligation provided herein shall survive the expiration 
or termination of this agreement. 





Motorcycle Agreement, City of Lubbock & Wild West Harley-Davidson  
 9  

 

Exhibit B 
Minimum Required Maintenance Schedule 

Harley-Davidson FLHP 
 

First Scheduled Maintenance…..1,000 Mile interval service 
(Additional service at 5000 mile intervals as indicated) 
5,000 Mile interval service 

10.00 Mile interval service 
15,000 Mile interval service 

• Change engine oil and filter 
• Inspect air cleaner and service as required 
• At 1,000, 5,000, and 10,000 mile intervals: change primary chain case lubricant; 

adjust primary chain; adjust clutch; change transmission lubricant and clean magnetic 
drain plugs. 

• Check/adjust drive belt. 
• Lube the foot shift/brake lever bearings 
• Inspect brake pads and discs for wear 
• Check brake fluid reservoir levels and condition 
• Inspect oil lines and brake system for leaks 
• Lubricate the following: 

1. Front brake hand lever 
2. Throttle control cables 
3. Throttle 
4. Clutch control cable and hand lever 
5. Jiffy stand 

• Inspect fuel lines and fittings for leaks 
• Check/adjust tire pressure and inspect tread and state any safety concerns on RO 
• Check battery and clean battery connections 
• Check operation of all electrical equipment and switches 
• Check air suspension-pressure, operation and leakage 
• Check stabilizer links and engine mounts 
• Check tightness of all critical fasteners: 

1. Hand controls 
2. Brake system 
3. Axle nuts 
4. Front fork components 
5. Riser and handlebar fasteners 

• Check engine idle speed adjustment 
• Inspect spark plugs 
• Change spark plugs (10,000 Mile) 
• Lubricate hinges, latches, fuel door, tour pak and saddlebags 
• Lubricate and adjust steering head bearings/as needed 
• Repack fork bearings/as needed 
• Road test 



Motorcycle Agreement, City of Lubbock & Wild West Harley-Davidson 
10

APPENDIX A 

LEASED PROPERTY: 

Up to Twelve (12) Harley-Davidson FLHTP ELECTRA GLIDE police motorcycles 
with standard equipment, ABS brakes, siren, front pursuit lamps, engine guard strobe 
lights, and Tour-Paks with integrated LED/strobe lights.



 
 
 
 

Purchasing and Contract Management  
 

Project Summary 
 

ITB 24-18236-KM 
Lease and Maintenance Agreement for Police Motorcycles Motorcycle Lease 

 
Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on August 4 & August 11, 2024. 
Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 
Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  
Notice was published on Bonfire.com from August 4 to August 22, 2024. 
13 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 
3 vendors were notified separately.  
1 vendor submitted a bid. 

 



 AI# 12845 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 25. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase Order 10027796,
with North American Rescue, LLC, for the purchase of Medical Supply Kits for the Lubbock Police
Department.

Item Summary
The Medical Supply Kits for the Lubbock Police Department are being purchased through Buy
Board Contract 704-23.  This purchase is for Medical Supply Kits, which have been specifically created
for the Lubbock Police Department and includes items our officers have been trained to use. The kits
have emergency trauma dressings, quick clot z fold combat gauze, large shears, combat application
tourniquet and Hyfin vent chest seals in headrest mounted bag. These kits will be dispersed among the
Lubbock Police Officers.

Fiscal Impact
Purchase Order 10027796, for $98,091.00 will be funded by Lubbock Police Academy Medical Supply
Funds.

Staff/Board Recommending
Seth Herman, Chief of Police
 

Attachments
Resolution- North American Rescue LLC 
Purchase Order- North American Rescue LLC 





 

TO: SHIP TO: 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK  
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY: 

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

1Page    -
Date    - 9/3/2024P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 10027796 OP000
Branch/Plant         5713

NORTH AMERICAN RESCUE LLC CITY OF LUBBOCK
35 TEDWALL COURT POLICE DEPARTMENT

916 TEXAS AVENUEGREER SC 29650
LUBBOCK TX 79401

Ordered .Freight9/3/2024
Taken ByRequested 9/30/2024 YBUSBY

PUR 18287/BUYBOARD 704-23Delivery PER L PEDERSON REQ 62158

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
Kit Headrest Lubbock PD TX 450.000 217.9800 EA 98,091.00 9/30/2024

85-4690

Freight 1.000 550.0000 EA 550.00 9/30/2024
Total Order

NET 30Terms 98,641.00

If you have any questions contact Lisa Pederson:  LPederson@mylubbock.us  Phone 806-775-2765

This purchase order encumbers funds in the amount of $98,641.00 awarded to North American Rescue LLC of Greer, 
SC, on _________________, 2024. The following is incorporated into and made part of this purchase order by reference: 

Quote dated August 20, 2024, from North American Rescue LLC of Greer, SC, and BuyBoard Contract 704-23.

Resolution #____________________ 

CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

______________________________________

Mark McBrayer, Mayor

ATTEST: 

______________________________________

Courtney Paz, City Secretary



  REV. 3/2022     

    Rev. 3/2022 
 

Seller and Buyer agree as 
follows: 

PURCHASE ORDER                                                                                        
TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

ACCEPTANCE OF THIS PURCHASE ORDER:  

CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES, by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully 

understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive material contained herein 

and any additional associated documents and Amendments.  The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by 

the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by the parties.  In the event of conflict between the City’s terms and 

conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein shall 

prevail.  The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the parties, and any prior 

conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

 

1. SELLER TO PACKAGE GOODS.   Seller will package goods in accordance with good commercial practice.   

Each shipping container shall be clearly and permanently marked as follows  (a)  Seller’s name and address, (b) 

Consignee’s name, address and purchase order or purchase release number and the supply agreement number if 

applicable, (c) Container number and total number of containers, e.g. box 1 of 4 boxes, and (d) the number of the 

container bearing the packing slip. Seller shall bear cost of packaging unless otherwise provided. Goods shall be 

suitably packed to secure lowest transportation costs and to conform with requirements of common carriers and any 

applicable specifications.  Buyer’s count or weight shall be final and conclusive on shipments not accompanied by 

packing lists. 

2. SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED.  Seller is not authorized to ship the goods under 

reservation and no tender of a bill of lading will operate as a tender of goods. 

3. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to Buyer until Buyer actually 

receives and takes possession of the goods at the point or points of delivery. 

4. NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER.  Every tender of delivery of goods must fully comply with all 

provisions of this contract as to time of delivery, quality and the like. If a tender is made which does not fully conform, 

this shall constitute a breach and Seller shall not have the right to substitute a conforming tender, provided, where the 

time for performance has not yet expired, the Seller may reasonably notify Buyer of his intention to cure and may 

then make a conforming tender within the contract time but not afterward. 

5. INVOICES & PAYMENTS. a. S e l l e r  shall submit separate invoices, in duplicate, one each purchase order or 

purchase release after each delivery.  Invoices shall indicate the purchase order or purchase release number and 

the supply agreement number if applicable.  Invoices shall be itemized and transportation charges, if any, shall be 

listed separately.  A copy of the bill of lading, and the freight waybill when applicable, should be attached to the 

invoice. Mail To: Accounts Payable, City of Lubbock, P. O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457.  Payment shall not 

be due until the above instruments are submitted after delivery. 

6. GRATUITIES.  The Buyer may, by written notice to the Seller, cancel this contract without liability to Seller if 

it is determined by Buyer that gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise, were offered or given by the 

Seller, or any agent or representative of the Seller, to any officer or employee of the City of Lubbock with a view to 

securing a contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or amending, or the making of any 

determinations with respect to the performing of such a contract.  In the event this contract is canceled by Buyer 

pursuant to this provision, Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover or withhold 

the amount of the cost incurred by Seller in providing such gratuities. 

7. SPECIAL TOOLS & TEST EQUIPMENT.  If the price stated on the face hereof includes the cost of any special 

tooling or special test equipment fabricated or required by Seller for the purpose of filling this order, such special 

tooling equipment and any process sheets related thereto shall become the property of the Buyer and to the extent 

feasible shall be identified by the Seller as such. 

8. WARRANTY-PRICE. a. The price to be paid by the Buyer shall be that contained in Seller’s bid which 

Seller warrants to be no higher than Seller’s current process on orders by others for products of the kind and 

specification covered by this agreement for similar quantities under similar of like conditions and methods of purchase.  

In the event Seller breaches this warranty, the prices of the  items  shall  be  reduced  to  the  Seller’s  current  prices  

on  orders  by others, or  in  the alternative.  Buyer may cancel this contract without liability to Seller for breach 

or Seller’s actual expense. b. The Seller warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to 

solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or understanding for commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 

fee excepting bona fide employees of bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Seller for 

the purpose of securing business.  For breach of viciation of this warranty the Buyer shall have the right in addition to 

any other right of rights to cancel this contract without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise 

recover without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, 

percentage, brokerage or contingent fee. 

9. WARRANTY-PRODUCT.  Seller shall not limit or exclude any implied warranties and any attempt to do so shall 

render this contract voidable at the option of the Buyer.  Seller warrants that the goods furnished will conform to the 

specification, drawings, and descriptions listed in the bid invitation, and to the sample(s) furnished by the Seller, if any. 

In the event of a conflict or between the specifications, drawings, and descriptions, the specifications shall govern. 

Notwithstanding any provisions contained in the contractual agreement, the Seller represents and warrants fault-free 

performance and fault-free result in the processing date and date related data (including, but not limited to calculating, 

comparing and sequencing) of all hardware, software and firmware products delivered and services provided under 

this Contract, individually or in combination, as the case may be from the effective date of this Contract. The 

obligations contained herein apply to products and services provided by the Seller, its sub- Seller or any third party 

involved in the creation or development of the products and services to be delivered to the City of Lubbock under this 

Contract.  Failure to comply with any of the obligations contained herein, may result in the City of Lubbock 

availing itself of any of its rights under the law and under this Contract including, but not limited to, its right pertaining 

to termination or default. The warranties contained herein are separate and discrete from any other warranties 

specified in this Contract, and are not subject to any disclaimer of warranty, implied or expressed, or limitation of the 

Seller’s liability which may be specified in this Contract, its appendices, its schedules, its annexes or any document 

incorporated in this Contract by reference. 

10. SAFETY WARRANTY.  Seller warrants that the product sold to the Buyer shall conform to the standards 

promulgated by the U. S. Department of Labor under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970.  In the event the 

product does not conform to OSHA standards, Buyer may return the product for correction or replacement at the 

Seller’s expense.  In the event Seller fails to make the appropriate correction within a reasonable time, correction 

made by Buyer will be at the Seller’s expense. 

11. NO WARRANTY BY BUYER AGAINST INFRINGEMENTS.  As part of this contract for sale Seller agrees 

to ascertain whether goods manufactured in accordance with the specifications attached to this agreement will give 

rise to the rightful claim of any third person by way of infringement of the like.  Buyer makes no warranty that the 

production of goods according to the specification will not give rise to such a claim, and in no event shall Buyer be 

liable to Seller for indemnification in the event that Seller is sued on the grounds of infringement of the like.  If Seller 

is of the opinion that an infringement or the like will result, he will notify the Buyer to this effect in writing within two 

weeks after the signing of this agreement.    If  Buyer  does  not  receive  notice  and  is  subsequently  held  liable  for  

the infringement or the like, Seller will save Buyer harmless.  If Seller in good faith ascertains the production of the 

goods in accordance with the specifications will result in infringement or the like, the contract shall be null and void. 

12. NON APPROPRIATION. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an 

annual appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of nonappropriation of funds by the City Council of the 

City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City will terminate the contract, without 

termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for 

the then-current year for the goods or services covered by this contract is spent, whichever event occurs first.  If at any 

time funds are not appropriated for the continuance of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the Seller on 

thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall not be 

obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination. 

13. RIGHT OF INSPECTION.  Buyer shall have the right to inspect the goods at delivery before accepting them. 

14. CANCELLATION.  Buyer shall have the right to cancel for default all or any part of the undelivered portion of 

this order if Seller breaches any of the terms hereof including warranties of Seller or if the Seller becomes insolvent or 

commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of cancellation is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies which 

Buyer may have in law or equity. 

15. TERMINATION. The performance of work under this order may be terminated in whole, or in part by the Buyer 

in accordance with this provision.  Termination of work hereunder shall be effected by the delivery of the Seller of 

a “Notice of Termination” specifying the extent to which performance of work under the order is terminated and the 

date upon which such termination becomes effective. Such right or termination is in addition to and not in lieu of the 

rights of Buyer set forth in Clause 14, herein. 

16. FORCE MAJEURE.    Neither party shall be held responsible for losses, resulting if the fulfillment of any 

terms of provisions of this contract is delayed or prevented by any cause not within the control of the party whose 

performance is interfered with, and which by the exercise of reasonable diligence said party is unable to prevent. 

17. ASSIGNMENT-DELEGATION.  No right or interest in this contract shall be assigned or delegation of any 

obligation made by Seller without the written permission of the Buyer.  Any attempted assignment or delegation by 

Seller shall be wholly void and totally ineffective for all purpose unless made in conformity with this paragraph. 

18. WAIVER. No claim or right arising out of a breach of this contract can be discharged in whole or in part by a 

waiver or renunciation of the claim or right unless the waiver or renunciation is supported by consideration and is in 

writing signed by the aggrieved party. 

19. INTERPRETATION-PAROLE EVIDENCE. This writing, plus any specifications for bids and performance  

provided  by  Buyer  in  its  advertisement for  bids,  and  any  other  documents provided by Seller as part of his bid, 

is intended by the parties as a final expression of their agreement and intended also as a complete and exclusive 

statement of the terms of their agreement.   Whenever a term defined by the Uniform Commercial Code is used in this 

agreement, the definition contained in the Code is to control. 

20. APPLICABLE LAW.  This agreement shall be governed by the Uniform Commercial Code. Wherever the term 

“Uniform Commercial Code” is used, it shall be construed as meaning the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in 

the State of Texas as effective and in force on the date of this agreement. 

21. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE.  Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other 

party’s intent to perform he may demand that the other party give written assurance of his intent to perform.  In the 

event that a demand is made and no assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat this 

failure as an anticipatory repudiation of the contract. 

22. INDEMNIFICATION.  Seller shall indemnify, keep and save harmless the Buyer, its agents, officials and 

employees, against all injuries, deaths, loss, damages, claims, patent claims, suits, liabilities, judgments, costs and 

expenses, which may in anywise accrue against the Buyer in consequence of the granting of this Contract or which 

may anywise result therefrom, whether or not it shall be alleged or determined that the act was caused through 

negligence or omission of the Seller or its employees, or of the subSeller or assignee or its employees, if any, and the 

Seller shall, at his own expense, appear, defend and pay all charges of attorneys and all costs and other expenses 

arising therefrom of incurred in connection therewith, and, if any judgment shall be rendered against the Buyer in any 

such action, the Seller shall, at its own expenses, satisfy and discharge the same Seller expressly understands and 

agrees that any bond required by this contract, or otherwise provided by Seller, shall in no way limit the 

responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless and defend the Buyer as herein provided. 

23. TIME.   It is hereby expressly agreed and understood that time is of the essence for the performance of this 

contract, and failure by contract to meet the time specifications of this agreement will cause Seller to be in default 

of this agreement. 

24. MBE.  The City of Lubbock hereby notifies all bidders that in regard to any contract entered into pursuant to 

this request, minority and women business enterprises will be afforded equal opportunities to submit bids in response 

to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, sex or natural origin in 

consideration for an award. 

25. NON-ARBITRATION. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or 

otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of competent 

jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising its unrestricted 

right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised 

concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, 

this provision shall control. 

26. RIGHT TO AUDIT. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized 

audit representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves the right to 

audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City under this Contract. In the event such 

an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount 

of such overpayments within thirty (30) days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to 

deduct such amounts owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 

27. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without written consent from 

the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management. 

28. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or service 

with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

29. Texas Government Code. Section 2252.908 requires a business entity entering into certain contracts with a 

governmental entity or state agency to file with the governmental entity or state agency a disclosure of interested parties 

at the time the business entity submits the signed contract to the governmental entity or state agency.  Instructions for 

completing Form 1295 are available at: http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-

websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information 

30. No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent certifies that 

either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2271.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Israel and will not boycott 

Israel during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that make it 

exempt from the boycott certification in its Response.  

31. No Boycott of Energy Companies.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent 

certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Energy 

Companies and will not boycott Energy Companies during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. 

Respondent shall state any facts that make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

32. No Boycott of a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas 

Government Code, Respondent certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it 

does not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association and will not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm 

Trade Association during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that 

make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

33.  Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or 

service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

34. TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, 

may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the contractor or 

vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

35. Pursuant to Section 552.301(c) of the Texas Government Code, the City of Lubbock has designated the following 

email address for which public information requests may be made by an emailed request: orr@mylubbock.us. Please 

send this request to this email address for it to be processed

http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
mailto:orr@mylubbock.us


QUOTE

Q96204
Quote Date: 08/20/2024

35 Tedwall Court Greer SC 29650
(864) 675-9800
(864) 675-9880

Phone:
Fax:

Lubbock Police Academy

BILL TO: M319090

LUBBOCK POLICE ACADEMY

SHIP TO: FLOOD82024PO #:

508 DAVIS DR
LUBBOCK, TX 79416-2112

Jared Flood
508 DAVIS DR
LUBBOCK, TX 79416-2112
P: (806) 438-7944

Contact Name Contact Phone Contact Email

Jared Flood JFlood@mylubbock.us

Shipping Method FOB Type Payment Terms Master # Exp. Date

970-BESTWAY ORIGIN CREDIT CARD 861862 09/19/2024

Quantity UOM Item Number Item Description
Item 

Weight
Ext. 

Weight Unit Price
Extended 

Price

450 EA 85-4690 KIT, HEADREST - LUBBOCK PD - TX 0.00 0.00 $217.98 $98,091.00
BUYBOARD: 704-23

Payment Remittance:

North American Rescue, LLC
PO Box 360320
Pittsburgh, PA 15251-6320

North American Rescue, LLC 
Routing #:  043000261
Account #:  9089953
SWIFT #: IRVTUS3N

NAR TAX ID:  27-1024029
NAR DUNS:  832426782
CAGE CODE:  06ST7

Please visit us at www.narescue.com

Subtotal $98,091.00
Discount $0.00

Freight $550.00
Tax $0.00

Total $98,641.00

Subject to NAR's Terms & Conditions. For details, please visit: https://www.narescue.com/legal/terms-and-conditions.

The ARMOR product is controlled by the Export Administration Regulations (EAR). It may not be exported, sold, transferred, transported, or 
shipped outside of the U.S., either in its original form or after being incorporated into other items, without first obtaining approval from the U.S. 
government or as authorized by U.S. law and regulations.    



 AI# 12841 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 26. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an agreement, by
and between the City of Lubbock and the State of Texas, acting through the Texas Department of
Transportation, for the temporary closure of state right-of-way during the 2024 United Supermarkets
Lubbock Marathon.

Item Summary
The Mayor's Fitness Council is hosting the 2024 United Supermarkets Lubbock Marathon in the City of
Lubbock on Sunday, October 27, 2024. Organizers anticipate 1,500 athletes will participate in this
one-day event.

A 1-mile Kids Fun Run will be held for runners under the age of 8. Other events are a 5k (3.1 miles), a
10k (6.2 miles), a half-marathon (13.1 miles), and a full marathon (26.2 miles). The races will begin and
end downtown at the Buddy and Maria Elena Holly Plaza where there will be food trucks, local vendors,
and a festive atmosphere for spectators.    

The proposed resolution authorizes the Mayor to execute an agreement with the State of Texas acting
through the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT), for the temporary closure of state
right-of-way. This agreement is in the best interest of public safety and welfare of the citizens of
Lubbock, to expedite all other traffic matters related to the 2024 United Supermarkets Lubbock
Marathon.  The following intersections would be temporarily impacted upon approval of this agreement:

Intersection of IH 27 and Broadway
Intersection of US 62 (E19th Street / Idalou Road) and Cesar Chavez Drive
Intersection of US 82 (Parkway Drive) and Cesar Chavez Drive
Intersection of IH 27 and Cesar Chavez Drive
Intersection of Marsha Sharp Freeway Frontage Road and Buddy Holly Ave
Intersection of US 84 (Avenue Q) and Glenna Goodacre Boulevard

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 
TXDOT Agreement 







Agreement No.________________ 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 

AGREEMENT FOR THE TEMPORARY CLOSURE 
OF STATE RIGHT OF WAY 

THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the State of Texas, acting by and through the 
Texas Department of Transportation, hereinafter called the “State,” and the City  
of         Lubbock, TX                      , a municipal corporation, acting by and through its duly 
authorized officers, hereinafter called the “local government.” 

W I T N E S S E T H 

1. WHEREAS, the State owns and operates a system of highways for public use and
benefit, including

, in  Lubbock  , County; and 
WHEREAS, the local government has requested the temporary closure of Intersection of US 62/SH 
114 (East 19th) and Canyon Lakes Drive 

Intersection of IH 27 and Broadway
Intersection of US 62 (E19th Street / Idalou Road) and Cesar Chavez Drive
Intersection of US 82 (Parkway Drive) and Cesar Chavez Drive
Intersection of IH 27 and Cesar Chavez Drive
Intersection of Marsha Sharp Freeway Frontage Road and Buddy Holly Ave
Intersection of US 84 (Avenue Q) and Glenna Goodacre Boulevard

___________________________________________________ for the purpose of 
conducting a portion of the 26.2 mile run of the United Market Street Lubbock  
Marathon_________to ________as described in the attached “Exhibit A,” hereinafter 
identified as the “Event;” and 

WHEREAS, the Event will be located within the local government’s incorporated area; and 

WHEREAS, the State, in recognition of the public purpose of the Event, wishes to cooperate 
with the City so long as the safety and convenience of the traveling public is ensured and that 
the closure of the State’s right of way will be performed within the State’s requirements; and 

WHEREAS, on the __________   the  __Lubbock City Council passed Resolution / Ordinance 
No.___________, attached hereto and identified as “Exhibit B,” establishing that 

Traffic Closure Incorporated (TEA30A) Page  of  Rev. 02/22/20191 9



Agreement No.________________ 
the Event serves a public purpose and authorizing the local government to enter into this 
agreement with the State; and 

WHEREAS, 43 TAC, Section 22.12 establishes the rules and procedures for the temporary 
closure of a segment of the State highway system; and 

WHEREAS, this agreement has been developed in accordance with the rules and 
procedures of 43 TAC, Section 22.12; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants and 
agreements of the parties hereto, to be by them respectively kept and performed as 
hereinafter set forth, it is agreed as follows: 

A G R E E M E N T 

Article 1. CONTRACT PERIOD 
This agreement becomes effective upon final execution by the State and shall terminate upon 
completion of the Event or unless terminated or modified as hereinafter provided. 

Article 2. EVENT DESCRIPTION 
The physical description of the limits of the Event, including county names and highway 
numbers, the number of lanes the highway has and the number of lanes to be used, the 
proposed schedule of start and stop times and dates at each location, a brief description of 
the proposed activities involved, approximate number of people attending the Event, the 
number and types of animals and equipment, planned physical modifications of any man-
made or natural features in or adjacent to the right of way involved shall be attached hereto 
along with a location map and identified as “Exhibit C.” 

Article 3. OPERATIONS OF THE EVENT 
A. The local government shall assume all costs for the operations associated with the Event,
to include but not limited to, plan development, materials, labor, public notification, providing
protective barriers and barricades, protection of highway traffic and highway facilities, and all
traffic control and temporary signing.
B. The local government shall submit to the State for review and approval the construction
plans, if construction or modifications to the State’s right of way is required, the traffic control
and signing plans, traffic enforcement plans, and all other plans deemed necessary by the
State.  The State may require that any traffic control plans of sufficient complexity be signed,
sealed and dated by a registered professional engineer.   The traffic control plan shall be in
accordance with the latest edition of the Texas Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.  All
temporary traffic control devices used on state highway right of way must be included in the
State’s Compliant Work Zone Traffic Control Devices List.  The State reserves the right to
inspect the implementation of the traffic control plan and if it is found to be inadequate, the
local government will bring the traffic control into compliance with the originally submitted
plan, upon written notice from the State noting the required changes, prior to the event.  The
State may request changes to the traffic control plan in order to ensure public safety due to
changing or unforeseen circumstances regarding the closure.
C. The local government will ensure that the appropriate law enforcement agency has
reviewed the traffic control for the closures and that the agency has deemed them to be

Traffic Closure Incorporated (TEA30A) Page  of  Rev. 02/22/20192 9



Agreement No.________________ 
adequate.  If the law enforcement agency is unsure as to the adequacy of the traffic control, it 
will contact the State for consultation no less than 10 workdays prior to the closure. 
D. The local government will complete all revisions to the traffic control plan as requested
by the State within the required timeframe or that the agreement will be terminated upon
written notice from the State to the local government.  The local government hereby agrees
that any failure to cooperate with the State may constitute reckless endangerment of the
public and that the Texas Department of Public Safety may be notified of the situation as soon
as possible for the appropriate action, and failing to follow the traffic control plan or State
instructions may result in a denial of future use of the right of way for three years.
E. The local government will not initiate closure prior to 24 hours before the scheduled Event
and all barriers and barricades will be removed and the highway reopened to traffic within 24
hours after the completion of the Event.
F. The local government will provide adequate enforcement personnel to prevent vehicles
from stopping and parking along the main lanes of highway right of way and otherwise
prevent interference with the main lane traffic by both vehicles and pedestrians.  The local
government will prepare a traffic enforcement plan, to be approved by the State in writing at
least 48 hours prior to the scheduled Event.  Additionally, the local government shall provide
to the State a letter of certification from the law enforcement agency that will be providing
traffic control for the Event, certifying that they agree with the enforcement plan and will be
able to meet its requirements.
G. The local government hereby assures the State that there will be appropriate passage
allowance for emergency vehicle travel and adequate access for abutting property owners
during construction and closure of the highway facility.  These allowances and accesses will
be included in the local government’s traffic control plan.
H. The local government will avoid or minimize damage, and will, at its own expense, restore
or repair damage occurring outside the State’s right of way and restore or repair the State’s
right of way, including, but not limited to, roadway and drainage structures, signs, overhead
signs, pavement markings, traffic signals, power poles and pavement, etc. to a condition
equal to that existing before the closure, and, to the extent practicable, restore the natural
and cultural environment in accordance with federal and state law, including landscape and
historical features.

Article 4. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 
Upon completion or termination of this agreement, all documents prepared by the local 
government will remain the property of the local government.  All data prepared under this 
agreement shall be made available to the State without restriction or limitation on their further 
use. At the request of the State, the Local Government shall submit any information required 
by the State in the format directed by the State. 

Article 5. TERMINATION 
A. This agreement may be terminated by any of the following conditions:

(1) By mutual written agreement and consent of both parties.
(2) By the State upon determination that use of the State’s right of way is not

feasible or is not in the best interest of the State and the traveling public.
(3) By either party, upon the failure of the other party to fulfill the obligations as set
forth herein.
(4) By satisfactory completion of all services and obligations as set forth herein.

B. The termination of this agreement shall extinguish all rights, duties, obligations, and
liabilities of the State and local government under this agreement.  If the potential termination

Traffic Closure Incorporated (TEA30A) Page  of  Rev. 02/22/20193 9



Agreement No.________________ 
of this agreement is due to the failure of the local government to fulfill its contractual 
obligations as set forth herein, the State will notify the local government that possible breach 
of contract has occurred.  The local government must remedy the breach as outlined by the 
State within ten (10) days from receipt of the State’s notification.  In the event the local 
government does not remedy the breach to the satisfaction of the State, the local government 
shall be liable to the State for the costs of remedying the breach and any additional costs 
occasioned by the State. 
 
Article 6. DISPUTES 
Should disputes arise as to the parties’ responsibilities or additional work under this 
agreement, the State’s decision shall be final and binding. 
 
Article 7. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES 
The State and the Local Government agree that neither party is an agent, servant, or 
employee of the other party and each party agrees it is responsible for its individual acts and 
deeds as well as the acts and deeds of its contractors, employees, representatives, and 
agents. 
 
Article 8. INSURANCE 
A. Prior to beginning any work upon the State’s right of way, the local government and/or its 
contractors shall furnish to the State a completed “Certificate of Insurance” (TxDOT Form 
1560, latest edition) and shall maintain the insurance in full force and effect during the period 
that the local government and/or its contractors are encroaching upon the State right of way. 
B. In the event the local government is a self-insured entity, the local government shall 
provide the State proof of its self-insurance.  The local government agrees to pay any and all 
claims and damages that may occur during the period of this closing of the highway in 
accordance with the terms of this agreement. 
 
Article 9. AMENDMENTS 
Any changes in the time frame, character, agreement provisions or obligations of the parties 
hereto shall be enacted by written amendment executed by both the local government and 
the State. 
 
Article 10. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
The local government shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local environmental 
laws, regulations, ordinances and any conditions or restrictions required by the State to 
protect the natural environment and cultural resources of the State’s right of way. 
 
Article 11. LEGAL CONSTRUCTION 
In case one or more of the provisions contained in this agreement shall for any reason be 
held invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or 
unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions hereof and this agreement shall be 
construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained 
herein. 
 
Article 12. NOTICES 
All notices to either party by the other required under this agreement shall be delivered 
personally or sent by certified U.S. mail, postage prepaid, addressed to such party at the 
following respective addresses: 
  

Traffic Closure Incorporated (TEA30A) Page  of  Rev. 02/22/20194 9



Agreement No.________________ 

All notices shall be deemed given on the date so delivered or so deposited in the mail, unless 
otherwise provided herein.  Either party hereto may change the above address by sending 
written notice of such change to the other in the manner provided herein. 

Article 13. SOLE AGREEMENT 
This agreement constitutes the sole and only agreement between the parties hereto and 
supersedes any prior understandings or written or oral agreements respecting the within 
subject matter. 

Local Government: 

_____City of Lubbock_______ 
_____Attn: City Manager________ 

____1314 Ave K _________ 

_____Lubbock, Texas 79401_____ 

State: 

Texas Department of Transportation 

__Steve Warren______ 

__135 Slaton Road________ 

___Lubbock, Texas  79404-5201______ 

Traffic Closure Incorporated (TEA30A) Page  of  Rev. 02/22/20195 9



Agreement No.________________ 

Each party is signing this agreement on the date stated beside that party’s signature.

THE CITY OF ___LUBBOCK______ 
Executed on behalf of the local government by: 

By_________________________________    Date__________________________ 
City Official 

Typed or Printed Name and Title _________________________________________ 

 _________________________________________ 

THE STATE OF TEXAS  
Executed for the Executive Director and approved for the Texas Transportation Commission 
for the purpose and effect of activating and/or carrying out the orders, established policies or 
work programs heretofore approved and authorized by the Texas Transportation Commission. 

By_________________________________    Date__________________________ 
District Engineer 

Traffic Closure Incorporated (TEA30A) Page  of  Rev. 02/22/20196 9



Agreement No.________________ 

Exhibit A 

Traffic Closure Incorporated (TEA30A) Page  of  Rev. 02/22/20197 9



Agreement No.________________ 
Exhibit B 

Traffic Closure Incorporated (TEA30A) Page  of  Rev. 02/22/20198 9



Agreement No.________________ 
Exhibit C 

Traffic Closure Incorporated (TEA30A) Page  of  Rev. 02/22/20199 9



The required paperwork and plan development and execution have been submitted to TXDOT by 
Marti Greer as of 6/26/2023.  



July 22, 2024

Jeremy Dearing & Steve Warren
Texas Department of Transportation
135 Slaton Rd.
Lubbock, Texas  79404

Mr. Dearing and Mr. Warren,

The Lubbock Police Department will provide traffic control for the United 
Supermarkets Lubbock Marathon on 10/27/2024. 

Sincerely,

Lt. Eric Quijada

36 E Lakeshore Dr. Ransom Canyon, Texas 79366 
www.buffalospringslaketriathlon.com



June 26, 2022

Jeremy Dearing and Steve Warren
Texas Department of Transportation
135 Slaton Rd.
Lubbock, Texas  79404

Mr. Dearing and Mr. warren,

We are preparing for the United Supermarkets Lubbock Marathon on 
10/27/2024. The letter sent to Lt. Eric Quijada of the Lubbock Police Department 
is enclosed. Please let me know if this information is sufficient.

Thank you for all your help.

Sincerely,

Marti Greer

Marti Greer
806.438.0893
IM703lbk.marti@gmail.com

36 E Lakeshore Dr. Ransom Canyon, Texas 79366 
www.buffalospringslaketriathlon.com



July 22, 2024

Lt. Eric Quijada
PO Box 10536
Lubbock, Texas 79408

Lt. Quijada,

Thank you so much for your help in supporting the United Supermarkets Lubbock 
Marathon.   

Enclosed please find a letter to be signed by you and forwarded to the Texas Dept. of 
Transportation. Your men are great. Thank you for allowing them to serve in this 
position. 

I have also enclosed a copy of the map of the run for your convenience.

Please let me know if you need anything further from me.  I look forward to working with 
you.

Sincerely,

Marti Greer
36 East Lakeshore Dr.
Ransom Canyon, Texas 79366
IM703lbk.marti@gmail.com
cell: 438.0893



 AI# 12886 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 27. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Council: Consider a resolution approving a contract amendment to American Rescue
Plan Act (ARPA) Agreement No. 17174, between the City of Lubbock and YWCA of Lubbock, for job
training services.

Item Summary
On February 28, 2023, the City Council approved an agreement with the YWCA of Lubbock for job
training services.  The agreement was in the amount of $420,000 and the term set forth in the agreement
is through September 30, 2024.

The YWCA of Lubbock conducts classes to train students in a child care professional accelerator
program.  Students enrolled in the program receive a minimum of 120 hours of instruction and 480 hours
of work experience over a 15-18 week period.  The program includes working with children, in order to
qualify for a Child Development Assistant (CDA) certification, and job placement support services.  As
part of the program, background checks and fingerprinting are completed by each participant, so that
immediately upon graduation, the graduate will be ready to be hired and serve as a qualified and
well-prepared early childhood professional. 

The agreement funds up to $3,000 per student, per class, for an amount not to exceed $420,000, with the
agreement expiring September 30, 2024.  The agreement funds program expenses, including staffing,
trainers, and supplies.  YWCA of Lubbock has utilized $156,000 of the $420,000 in the agreement and
they are requesting an extension.  The proposed amendment would extend the original term of the
agreement to December 31, 2026, but will not add any additional funds to the amount already allocated
through the original agreement.

Fiscal Impact
This amendment is an extension of the original term of the agreement, and has no fiscal impact.

Staff/Board Recommending
Christy Martinez-Garcia, Mayor Pro Tem, District 1
Gordon Harris, Councilman, District 2

Attachments
Resolution 
Amendment 









 AI# 12848 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 1. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Secretary: Consider a resolution to nominate board members to serve as Appraisal
District Directors for the Lubbock Central Appraisal District.

Item Summary
Section 6.03 of the Texas Property Tax Code establishes the selection process for taxing unit
appointments of five appraisal district directors. To be valid, nominations must be made by Resolution of
the Governing Body (City Council) and submitted to the Chief Appraiser before October 15, 2024.

The City of Lubbock currently has five directors serving on the board: 
Sonny Garza
Brady Goen
Greg Jones
Bobby McQueen
Noe Reynolds

All of the aforementioned members are eligible for reappointment.

SB2, passed during the 88th Legislature 2nd Special Session, states that appointed district directors shall
serve staggered four-year terms. In the past, the directors served two-year terms. Last year during the
selection process, directors were appointed to serve a one-year term beginning on January 1, 2024, and
ending on December 31, 2024, to comply with SB2. The five directors appointed during the 2024
selection process will serve staggered terms, with two terms ending on December 31, 2025, and three
terms ending on December 31, 2027. Thereafter, all appointed directors will serve four-year terms with
the nomination process in every other odd numbered year.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Attachments
LCAD Nomination Resolution 
LCAD Letter - 2024 











 AI# 12882 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 2. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution amending the Gateway Street Projects Fund to define the
scope of revenues from franchise fees to be included in the Fund.

Item Summary
On February 19, 2004, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2004-R0099, establishing the Gateway
Streets Projects Fund, in order to provide a source of construction funding for street projects designed to
spur development, growth, and redevelopment in Lubbock.  The resolution set forth a dedicated revenue
source of 40% of the franchise fees, or access line fees paid by the outside utilities and Lubbock Power
and Light, beginning with the Fiscal Year 2004-05 Adopted Budget.  On February 14, 2021, the City
Council adopted Resolution 2021-0345 amending the Gateway Streets Projects Fund to expand the
qualifying roadway projects for Arterial Roadways, in order to enlarge existing roadways to increase
capacity, rebuild existing roadways to improve safety, and/or construct new roadways.

The City of Lubbock, starting in FY 2024-25, will begin receiving a new source of franchise fee revenue
from Lubbock Power and Light for the Transmission Cost of Service (TCOS) lines.  This amendment
defines the scope of the types of revenues from franchise fees to be included in the Fund.  Beginning
with the FY 2024-25 City Budget, the revenue of forty percent (40%) of franchise fees and access line
fees, not including the Transmission cost of service (TCOS) franchise fees, collected for each public
utility that pays those fees, shall be deposited into the Fund.

Fiscal Impact
Gateway Fund will continue to receive the franchise fee revenue that it currently receives.  The
amendment clarifies that the franchise fee revenue for the Transmission Cost of Service (TCOS) lines, is
not included in the Gateway funding.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Gateway Streets Project Fund Resolution 







 AI# 12802 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 3. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 2): Consider a request for Zone Case 1531-B, a request of Judith
Struggs for a Historic Preservation Overlay District (HPO) to designate a property with a Local Historic
Designation, on property zoned Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) per Sections 39.02.009 and
2.03.662, at 2002 Cedar Avenue, located south of East 20th Street and west of Cedar Avenue, T.E.
Wheelock’s Second Addition, Block 15, Lots 11 and 12, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Urban Design and Historic
Preservation Commission heard this case on July 16, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by
a vote of 6-0-0. The Planning and Zoning Commission heard this case on September 5, 2024, and
recommended denial of the request by a vote of 2-5-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Urban Design and Historic Preservation Commission
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 1531-B 
Zone Case 1531-B Staff Report 
Documentation 1531-B 







Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report                                              Zone Case 1531-B  
City Council Meeting  September 24, 2024 

 
Applicant Judith Struggs 

 

Property Owner  Judith Struggs 

 

Council District   2 

 

Recommendations 

 Staff recommends approval of the request.  

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

 February 8, 1921, Ordinance No. 197: The subject property was annexed into City limits. 

 March 13, 1941, Ordinance No. 661: The subject property was zoned Multi-Family District (E). 

 April 6, 1955, Ordinance No. 1695: The subject property was rezoned from District E to Multi-Family 

District (R-3).  

 August 8, 1968, Zone Case 1531, Ordinance No. 5471: The subject property was rezoned from R-3 to 

Single Family District (R-1).  

 May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned 

from R-1 to Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code. 

 July 16, 2024: The Urban Design and Historic Preservation Commission recommended approval for a 

Historic Preservation Overlay District (HPO), by a vote of 6-0-0. 

 September 5, 2024, Zone Case 1531-B: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended denial of a 

request for an HPO by a vote of 2-5-0. 

Notification Summary 

 Notifications Sent: 45 

 Received In Favor: 5 

 Received In Opposition: 0 

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property, addressed as 2002 Cedar Avenue, was platted on May 6, 1909, as T.E. Wheelock’s Second 

Addition, Block 15, Lots 11 and 12.  The lot is developed with a single-family residence constructed in 1949 by 

the property owner, Mr. E.C. Struggs. 

  

Adjacent Property Development  

The properties to the east and south are zoned SF-2 and are developed with residential homes. The property to 

the west is zoned High Density Residential District (HDR) and is developed with a church. To the north, the 

property is zoned Heavy Commercial District (HC) and is developed with a Funeral Home.   

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The applicant is requesting a Historic Preservation Overlay District (HPO) to designate the property with a Local 

Historic Designation. There are thirteen different criteria, which make a property eligible for a Local Historic 

Designation. The applicable criterion in this case is “Identification with a person or persons who significantly 

contributed to the culture and development of the city, state, or the United States.” 

 

  



Page 2 of 2 

 

Current zoning:  Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) 

 

Requested overlay: Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) with a Historic Preservation Overlay 

District (HPO) 

 

Intent Statements 

The purposes of the Historic Preservation Overlay (HPO) district are to: 

 

1. History. Protect, enhance, and perpetuate historic landmarks and areas that represent or reflect 

distinctive and important elements of the City's and State's architecture, landscape architecture, 

archeology, culture, social, economic, ethnic, and political history, and to develop appropriate settings 

for such places; 

2. Heritage. Safeguard the City's historic and cultural heritage, as embodied and reflected in such historic 

landmarks by appropriate regulations; 

3. Property Values. Stabilize and improve property values in such locations; 

4. Civic Pride. Foster civic pride in the beauty and accomplishments of the past; 

5. Tourism. Protect and enhance the City's attractions to tourists and visitors and provide incidental support 

and stimulus to business and industry; 

6. Economy. Strengthen the economy of the City; 

7. Utilization of Districts. Promote the use of historic landmarks and historic preservation districts for the 

culture, prosperity, education, and general welfare of the citizens and visitors to the City; 

8. Education. Provide educational opportunities to increase public appreciation of the City's unique 

heritage. 

 

CRITERIA FOR HISTORIC LANDMARK DESIGNATION (11) Identification with a person or persons who significantly 

contributed to the culture and development of the city, state, or the United States.  

 

E.C. Struggs – (1900-1979) Educator, School Administrator. Mr. Struggs served as a teacher and principal of 

Dunbar High School from 1930 to 1965. He was the first principal of Dunbar High School with a college degree. 

Struggs Junior High School was named in his honor in 1965, was later renamed Dunbar-Struggs High School from 

1979 to 1993, and later repurposed as Struggs Learning Center. Mr. Struggs was the longest-serving principal of 

Dunbar High School (1930-1965). In 1930, enrollment at Dunbar High School was 100 students. In 1965, the year 

Mr. Struggs retired as principal; Dunbar High School employed 55 teachers and enrolled over 1,000 students. Mr. 

Struggs also served on the board for Carver Heights Nursery and the Southeast Lubbock Development Agency. He 

was an active member of Bethel A.M.E. Church.  

  

Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 

C. Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E. Zoning Map 

F. Photos 

G. Application and supporting documentation 

H. Notification Responses  

 

Staff Contacts 

Ashley Padilla    Victor Escamilla 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2107    806-775-3029 

ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us   vescamilla@mylubbock.us  

 

 

 

mailto:ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 

Case Information: Zone Case 1531-B 

Allowable Uses:    Historic Preservation Overlay District (HPO) 

Transportation:  The property has points of access from East 20th Street and Cedar Avenue. 

Thoroughfare Existing Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

East 20th Street, 
Local Street, 
Completed  

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

Cedar Avenue, 
Local Street, 
Completed 

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

 

Engineering Comments:  No comments.  

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Approved Urban Design and Historic Preservation Commission Minutes 

4.1 Request of Judith Struggs    
  
Consider a request for a Historic Preservation Overlay District (HPO) to designate a property with a Local 
Historic Designation, on property zoned Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) per Sections 39.02.009 
and 2.03.0662, at: 

 2002 Cedar Avenue, located south of East 20th Street and west of Cedar Avenue, T.E. Wheelock’s 
Second Addition, Block 15, Lots 11 and 12. 

PLANNER ASHLEY PADILLA gave a brief description of the request and answered questions from the Commission. 

APPLICANT was not present. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition of the request. 

In the matter of the local historic designation request of Judith Struggs, a motion was made by RANDY HENSON 
and seconded by TAMRA WALTER to approve the request as presented and the Commission members voted six 
(6) in favor to zero (0) in opposition to approve the motion.  



Zone Case 1531-B 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 2 

3.1 Zone Case 1531-B: Judith Struggs, request for a Historic Preservation Overlay District (HPO) to 
designate a property with a Local Historic Designation, on property zoned Low Density Single-Family 
District (SF-2) per Sections 39.02.009 and 2.03.662, at: 

 
 2002 Cedar Avenue, located south of East 20th Street and west of Cedar Avenue, T.E. 

Wheelock’s Second Addition, Block 15, Lots 11 and 12. 

PLANNER ASHLEY PADILLA gave a presentation and answered questions from the Commission. Staff 
recommended approval of the request. 

APPLICANT JUDITH STRUGGS was unable to attend due to health reasons. 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 
 
In the matter of Zone Case 1531-B, a motion was made by BRANDON HARDAWAY and seconded by ZACH 
SAWYER to approve the request as presented. The Commission voted 2 (in favor) to 5 (in opposition) to approve 
the motion. The case is denied by the Planning and Zoning Commission but will be forwarded to City Council for 
consideration. 
 
JORDAN WHEATLEY and SCOTT GLOYNA cast the votes in favor. 





-

/ 

E 20TH ST 
I 

0 

' 

• 

' 
w "" 

� 
> 
<t: 

r-,.....__ 
J: 0:: 
u 0 0:: 
en 

w 

u 

� 

�� 

' 

\' 
� 

r\ 

y 
/ 

w 

__,, � 
w 
I-

c§ 

I ' I 

0 105 210 

� 
r--

t--

t--

r---

PZC Mailout 

Notifications Received 

N 

i 
Legend 

O LocatorPnt1531_B 

c:J Mailou t8uffer1531_B_200ft 

c:J Mailou t8uffer1531_B_ 400ft 

LJ <all other values>

Notification Result 

c:J1nFavor 

D No Feedback 

c:Jopposed 

Created by Planning Depar tment 
Date: 9/9/2024 

420 Feet 























































1

Kristen Sager

From: Ashley Padilla
Sent: Monday, September 16, 2024 8:01 AM
To: Kristen Sager
Subject: FW: Struggs Historical Home

This is another email she sent. 
 
From: Judith Struggs  
Sent: Friday, September 13, 2024 6:15 PM 
To: Shane Spencer  
Cc: Ashley Padilla  
Subject: Re: Struggs Historical Home 

 

WARNING: This message was sent from outside the City of Lubbock's email system. 

It could contain harmful attachments or links to harmful web pages. 

 

Typo third line insert home 
 
On Fri, Sep 13, 2024, 6:13 PM Judith Struggs <struggs40@gmail.com> wrote: 
Dear Sir and Ma'am, 
 
Rest assured, I am working very hard on this project to get my parents restored and preserved for future 
generations to have a visual of the beginnings of Black education in Lubbock. My parents worked hard to build 
this home and left it to me. Before I die, my last wish is to preserve a portion of their legacy by making sure 
that this home will never be torn down or bulldozed over. As was asserted in your meeting, this project has 
nothing to do with personal gain. It will benefit the community and city in many ways. 
If there is any way I can do this again, please let me know. 
I am privileged to have an advocate working with me who was appointed by the CEO of the Texas State 
Historical Association. 
Her name is Mimi McDaniel. I have tried to forward a letter from her. Please let me know if you have received 
it. 
Thank you for your time and consideration in this matter. 
 
Judith Struggs  
struggs40@gmail.com 
806 224-788# 



1

Kristen Sager

From: Ashley Padilla
Sent: Monday, September 16, 2024 7:59 AM
To: Kristen Sager
Subject: FW: Business proposal for the restoration and preservation of Struggs Historical Home.

I have never seen this email…. 
 
From: Judith Struggs  
Sent: Friday, September 13, 2024 5:54 PM 
To: Shane Spencer  
Cc: Ashley Padilla  
Subject: Re: Business proposal for the restoration and preservation of Struggs Historical Home. 

 

WARNING: This message was sent from outside the City of Lubbock's email system. 

It could contain harmful attachments or links to harmful web pages. 

 

See 
On Fri, Sep 13, 2024, 5:32 PM Judith Struggs <struggs40@gmail.co  
 
On Fri, Sep 13, 2024, 4:39 PM Judith Struggs <struggs40@gmail.com> wrote: 
Here is a copy of my business proposal which was not read at the meeting 
On Fri, Aug 30, 2024, 7:54 PM Judith Struggs <struggs40@gmail.com> wrote: 

Business Proposal for the Restoration and Preservation of Struggs Historical Home 

Executive Summary 

This proposal outlines a comprehensive plan for the restoration and preservation of the Struggs Historical 
Home, a significant landmark in Lubbock, Texas . The restored home will serve as a visitors space, 
promoting historical awareness and economic development. 

Project Description 

The Struggs Historical Home restoration project will encompass: 

 Structural repairs and stabilization 
 Exterior and interior restoration 
 Preservation of historical features 
 Upgrading utilities and safety systems 
 Development of educational exhibits 

Project Benefits 



2

 Preserves local history: The restored Struggs home will serve as a tangible link to the past of Afro 
American education in Lubbock. 

 Enhances education: Educational exhibits will provide visitors with insights into local history and 
culture. 

 Promotes community development: The project will revitalize the surrounding area. 

Our Team 

Our team comprises experienced professionals in historic restoration, and project management. We are 
passionate about preserving history and committed to delivering a high-quality project. 

Call to Action 

We invite you to partner with us in restoring the Struggs Historical Home. Your contribution will ensure the 
preservation of this important landmark for future generations. 

Next Steps 

We are eager to discuss this project further and answer any questions you may have. Please contact us to 
schedule a meeting. 

Judith Struggs  

struggs40@gmail.com  

806-224-7882 



 AI# 12803 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 4. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 4): Consider a request for Zone Case 2161-M, a request of
HFA for Lubbock Commercial Buildings, for a zone change from Neighborhood Commercial District
(NC) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at 2731 82nd Street, located south of 82nd Street and
east of Elgin Avenue, on approximately 1.25 acres of unplatted land out of Block E-2, Section 13, and
consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 5, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote of 7-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
 None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 2161-M 
Staff Report 2161-M 
Documentation 2161-M 







Exhibit "A"





Page 1 of 2 

 

 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report  Zone Case 2161-M 
City Council Meeting September 24, 2024 

 

Applicant HFA   

 

Property Owner  Lubbock Commercial Buildings 

 

Council District   4 

 

Recommendations   

 Staff recommends approval of the request. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

 September 11, 1958, Ordinance No. 2535: The northern portion of the subject property was annexed 
into City limits. 

 June 11, 1959, Zone Case, 769, Ordinance No. 2813: The northern portion of the subject property was 
zoned Single Family District (R-1). 

 October 28, 1971, Ordinance No. 6201: The remainder of the subject property was annexed into City 
limits and zoned Single-Family District (R-1). 

 May 8, 1986, Zone Case 2161-B, Ordinance No. 8917: The subject property was rezoned from R-1 to 
Local Retail District (C-2). 

 May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned 

from C-2 to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) with the adoption of the Unified Development 

Code. 

 September 5, 2024, Zone Case 2161-M: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of 

a zone change from NC to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), by a vote of 7-0-0. 

Notification Summary   

 Notifications Sent: 87 

 Received In Favor: 0 

 Received In Opposition: 2 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property is currently vacant undeveloped land.  

 

Adjacent Property Development  

Properties to the north, east, and west are zoned for a mix of NC and Office District (OF) land uses. The eastern 

property is developed with a fast food restaurant, while the properties to the west and north feature various 

office spaces. To the south, the area is zoned Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) and is developed with 

single-family homes. 

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed at 2731 82nd street, located south of 82nd Street and east of Elgin Avenue. The 

applicant requests a zone change from Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) to Auto-Urban Commercial District 

(AC).   

 

Current zoning:  Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) 

 

Requested zoning:  Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

Intent Statements 
The purpose of the Neighborhood Commercial (NC) zoning district is “to provide for small-scale retail and 

moderate density residential uses located away from major intersections (nodes), with building and site design 

standards that are compatible and have adjacent residential uses.” 

The intent of the proposed Auto-Urban Commercial (AC) zoning district is “to provide for a broad range of 

single-use and multi-tenant centers that vary in scale, and that provide for retail, service, and office uses 

typically with on-site surface parking. The district may be located along major thoroughfares or at nodes with 

increased intensity.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The proposed zone change is along 82nd Street. The Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018 designates 82nd Street as a 

principal arterial. Arterial streets are continuous routes whose function is to serve the high-volume needs of local 

traffic and regional traffic.   

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development.   

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for “Commercial Uses”. The proposed zone change to AC would be 

in conformance with the Commercial designation. This request would be appropriate next to adjacent lower 

intensity commercial land uses, and fronting an Arterial Street.    

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The properties are located along an 

arterial, and the requested zoning district is appropriate adjacent to the nearby commercial land uses. 

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed use and will not need any additional public improvements.   

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 

C. Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E. Zoning Map 

F. Future Land Use Map 

G. Photos 

H. Application and supporting documentation 

I. Notification Replies 

 

Staff Contacts 

Cassie Bermea     Victor Escamilla 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2096    806-775-3029 

cassiebermea@mylubbock.us    vescamilla@mylubbock.us  

mailto:cassiebermea@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2161-M 

 

Allowable Uses:    Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from 82nd Street.  

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

82nd Street, 
Principal Arterial, 

Completed  

R.O.W. 90 feet, seven-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 62 feet, seven-lane, 
undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.  

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 4 

3.2 Zone Case 2161-M: HFA for Lubbock Commercial Buildings, request for a zone change from 

Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at:  

 2731 82nd Street, located south of 82nd Street and east of Elgin Avenue, on approximately 

1.25 acres of unplatted land out of Block E-2, Section 13. 

PLANNER CASSIE BERMEA gave a presentation and answered questions from the Commission. Staff 

recommended approval of the request. 

APPLICANT HAYDEN BOCCHI, 1705 S Walton Boulevard, in Bentonville, Arkansas, was available for questions. 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 

In the matter of Zone Case 2161-M, a motion was made by JORDAN WHEATLEY and seconded by TERRI MORRIS 

to approve the request as presented. The Commission voted 7 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx?secid=580&keywords=auto-urban%2Cauto%27s%2Cautoed%2Cautoes%2Cautoing%2Cautos%2Cautos%27%2Cauto%2Curban%2Ccommercial%27s%2Ccommercials%2Ccommercials%27%2Ccommercial#secid-580












2161-M

South View –Subject PropertyNorth View.

East View.West View.











 

HFA-AE, Ltd.    
www.hfa-ae.com  Page 1 of 1 

 

 
July 31, 2024  
 
City of Lubbock, TX 
 
RE:  Rezone Request   
 Valvoline Instant Oil Change  
 7231 82nd Street  
 
 
Dear City of Lubbock,   
 
On behalf of Valvoline Instant Oil Change, interested in developing the 1.25-acre site at 2731 82nd Street with a two-bay oil change 
facility, we are requesting a Rezone from NC (Neighborhood Commercial), to AC (Auto-Urban Commercial). We hope to develop this 
site with minor automotive repair to allow Valvoline Instant Oil Change to operate. Please see our included site plan and building 
elevations which show how we would propose to develop this site if this request is approved.  
 
Valvoline Instant Oil Change has a business model where customers remain in their vehicles while minor automotive repair services 
are performed, usually taking 15-20 minutes per vehicle. No major repair services will be offered. The business model for Valvoline is 
such that vehicles enter the bay for their services. The services are completed through the basement component of the building. 
Additional vehicles await service in the stacking spaces behind the bays.  
 
We believe Valvoline will provide a valuable service to the residents of Lubbock, TX, and the aesthetics of our building will suit the 
area well. Additionally, we also believe our business model to be above the standard auto shop in that no vehicles remain on site for 
extended periods of time, as Valvoline is a low traffic producer due to our services.  
 
If our request is approved, Valvoline and HFA will work together to create a formal plan submittal adhering to the City of Lubbock 
code.  
 
If additional information is needed, or if questions arise associated with this request or Valvoline business operations, please contact 
me.   
 
Sincerely,  
 
Kelsey Kreher 
Team Lead 
HFA 
479.273.7780 ext. 355 
kelsey.kreher@hfa-ae.com 









 AI# 12805 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 5. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 4): Consider a request for Zone Case 3267-A, a request of
Spindlebock Properties, LLC for a zone change from Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) to Heavy
Commercial District (HC), at 3202, 3204, 3206, 3208, 3210, and 3212 118th Street and 3215, and 3217
116th Street, located between 116th Street and 118th Street and east of Indiana Avenue, Triple C
Business Park Addition, Tracts A through H, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 5, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote of 7-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 3267-A 
Staff Report 3267-A 
Documentation 3267-A 







Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report Zone Case 3267-A 
City Council Meeting September 24, 2024 

 

Applicant Spindlebock Properties, LLC 
 

Property Owner Taylor Carmona 
 

Council District 4 

 
Recommendations 

 Staff recommends approval of the request. 

 
Prior Board or Council Action 

 December 7, 2006, Ordinance No. O0121: The subject properties were annexed into City limits and 
zoned Transition District (T). 

 December 17, 2015, Zone Case 3267, Ordinance No. O0127: The subject properties were rezoned from T 
to Local Retail District (C-2). 

 May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject properties were 
rezoned from C-2 to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) with the adoption of the Unified 
Development Code. 

 August 1, 2024, Zone Case 3267-A: The Planning and Zoning Commission voted to postpone a request to 
rezone the subject property from NC to Heavy Commercial District (HC) to September 5, 2024 by a vote 
of 8-0-0. 

 September 5, 2024, Zone Case 3267-A: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 

zone change from NC to HC, by a vote of 7-0-0. 

Notification Summary 

 Notifications Sent: 25 

 Received In Favor: 3 

 Received In Opposition: 0 

 
Site Conditions and History 

The subject properties were originally platted as Triple C Business Park Addition, Tracts A through H on May 21, 
2024. The property is currently undeveloped, vacant land.  

 
Adjacent Property Development 

The properties to the north and south are zoned with a combination of HC, NC and Low Density Single-Family 
District (SF-2). To the east, there is a mini self-storage facility zoned HC. The property to the west is zoned SF-
2, built with a church. 

 

Item Summary 

The subject properties are addressed as 3202, 3204, 3206, 3208, 3210, and 3212 118th Street and 3215, and 3217 

116th Street, located between 116th Street and 118th Street, and east of Indiana Avenue, Triple C Business Park 

Addition, Tracts A through H. The applicant is requesting to rezone the properties from Neighborhood 

Commercial District (NC) to Heavy Commercial District (HC).    

 
Current zoning: Neighborhood Commercial District (NC)  

 
Requested zoning: Heavy Commercial District (HC) 

 
  



Page 2 of 2 
 

Purpose Statements 
The purpose of the Neighborhood Commercial (NC) zoning district “is to provide for small-scale retail and 
moderate density residential uses located away from major intersections (nodes), with building and site design 
standards that are compatible and have adjacent residential uses.”  
 
The purpose of the Heavy Commercial (HC) zoning district “is to provide or development of heavy vehicle repair, 
wholesale trade, warehousing and freight movement uses that typically are characterized by outside storage of 
materials or merchandise. The district should be located away from residential areas or, if unavoidable, should 
be heavily buffered.”  
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The location is between 116th Street and 118th Street, which are designated as local streets by the Master 
Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Local streets typically provide access to smaller, destination oriented areas, such as 
neighborhoods, subdivisions or local business districts.  

 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The subject properties are surrounded by commercially zoned districts. The zoning change to Heavy Commercial 

District (HC) will not change the surrounding area or the character of the existing development.     

 

Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The future land use map designates this property for commercial land uses. The proposed zone change to HC 

would be in conformance with the Future Land Use Plan and the Comprehensive Plan Principles.  

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance.  

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed zoning of HC, and will not need any additional public improvements as 
the property has recently been platted.  

 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Map 

C. Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E. Zoning Map 

F. Future Land Use Map 

G. Photos 

H. Application and supporting documentation 

I. Notification Replies 

 
Staff Contacts 

Cassie Bermea Victor Escamilla 

Planner Planning and Zoning Manager  

Planning Department Planning Department 

806-775-2096 806-775-3029 

cassiebermea@mylubbock.us vescamilla@mylubbock.us 

  
 
 
 
 

mailto:cassiebermea@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3267-A 

 

Allowable Uses:    Heavy Commercial District (HC) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 116th Street and 118th 

Street.    

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

116th Street, 
Local Street, 
Completed  

R.O.W. 62 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 62 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

118th Street, 
Local Street, 
Completed 

R.O.W. 62 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 62 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved    

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.  

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 4 

3.4 Zone Case 3267-A: Spindlebock Properties, LLC, request for a zone change from Neighborhood 

Commercial District (NC) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at:  

 3202, 3204, 3206, 3208, 3210, and 3212 118th Street and 3215, and 3217 116th Street, 

located between 116th Street and 118th Street and east of Indiana Avenue, Triple C Business 

Park Addition, Tracts A through H. 

PLANNER CASSIE BERMEA gave a presentation and answered questions from the Commission. Staff 

recommended approval of the request. 

APPLICANT TAYLOR CARMONA, 6309 Indiana Avenue, Suite B, gave comments and answered questions from the 

Commission. 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3267-A, a motion was made by ZACH SAWYER and seconded by JORDAN WHEATLEY 

to approve the request as presented. The Commission voted 7 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx?secid=1620&keywords=heavied%2Cheavies%2Cheavies%27%2Cheavy%27s%2Cheavying%2Cheavy%2Ccommercial%27s%2Ccommercials%2Ccommercials%27%2Ccommercial#secid-1620












3267-A

East View.

North View. South View from 116th Street of all Subject Properties.

West View.

















 AI# 12869 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 6. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Wastewater Utility: Consider an ordinance amending the City of Lubbock
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 22, "UTILITIES", to provide for establishing new definitions, delineating
sewer line repair and maintenance responsibilities, amending the regulation for City-participation for
large mains, and repealing certain inapplicable provisions. 

Item Summary
City staff is recommending amendments to Chapter 22 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances
based on discussions from budget work sessions related to the replacement of private sewer lateral lines
located within public right-of-way (Street or Alley). The proposed changes discussed during the budget
work sessions are as follows. 

City crews will perform the work.
The Property Owner will pay a standard cost to the City Water Department of $1,000 per repair.
A payment plan is available for owner-occupied properties.  

The payment plan cannot exceed 365 days or 12 monthly billing cycles.
An assistance program for low income residents will be developed by the City Staff.

The proposed ordinance addresses the changes referenced above, and authorizes staff to establish the
appropriate policies to support the program, as well as to establish an assistance program.

Fiscal Impact
$300,000 is appropriated in the FY 2024/2025 Budget for the establishment of an Assistance Program. 
Expenditures for the private sewer lateral repairs are funded by Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
92747 - Sewer Tap Replacements.
The sewer lateral repair cost of $1,000 paid for by the owner will cover the average material and labor
costs associated with each repair and will reimburse the expenditures in the CIP. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Sewer Lateral Ordinance - Executed 















 AI# 12819 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 7. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution making findings that the Highland Oaks
Public Improvement District (PID) meets the requirements of Chapter 372 of the Texas Local
Government Code; accepting the Highland Oaks PID petition, which covers a portion of an area in
Lubbock County, Texas, generally bounded by 146th Street to the north, Slide Road to the east,
Woodrow Road to the south, and Frankford Avenue to the west; and calling for a public hearing to
receive public comment on the formation of a public improvement district in the area depicted and
described. 

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock received a petition from property owners requesting that the City of Lubbock
establish a Public Improvement District (PID) for the Highland Oaks development area. The area covers
approximately 374.74 acres. PID establishment can only be initiated by a petition of property owners
meeting two tests outlined in the statute. The petition must be signed by: 

(a) Owners of taxable real property representing more than 50% of the appraised value of the taxable
real property liable for assessment; and 
(b) Record owners of property liable for assessment under the PID petition who: 

Constitute more than 50% of all the record owners of property liable for assessment under the
proposal: or

1.

Own taxable real property that constitutes more than 50% of the area of all taxable real property
that is liable for assessment under the proposal. 

2.

The petition received by the City of Lubbock was signed by 58.04% of the record owners of property
liable for assessment, and property owners representing 62.48% of the total appraised value for the
area contained in the proposed PID. The petition has been examined, verified, and found to meet the
requirements of Section 372.005(b) of the Texas Local Government Code and to be sufficient for
consideration by the City of Lubbock. 

The Highland Oaks PID is a defined assessment area providing specific types of services for a given
area. The purpose of the Highland Oaks PID will be:

i. To fund a capital improvement project to engineer, procure, and construct water infrastructure
throughout the subdivision. 
ii. To fund costs associated with developing and financing the public improvements listed in subdivision
(i) including costs of establishing, administering and operating the District.

The owners of the property submitting the petition paid the application fee of $5,000, which should
cover the cost of creating the Public Improvement District, with any remaining money reimbursed to the
Home Owner's Association. If the cost of creating the Public Improvement District exceeds $5,000, the
Home Owner's Association will reimburse the City for the remaining cost. 



One of the statutory requirements for establishing the Public Improvement District is that the City
Council hold a Public Hearing regarding the advisability of creating the District. If the City Council
approves this resolution calling the public hearing, a notice of public hearing will be published in the
Lubbock Avalanche Journal and notices will be mailed to the property owners before the 15th day
before the public hearing as required by the statute. 

The creation of the Highland Oaks PID is dependent on annexation into the City of Lubbock. An
election for annexation will be held on November 5, 2024. Should the property owners elect not to
annex this area into the City limits of the City of Lubbock, the City Council will not take further action
on creation of the PID. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Business Development Director 

Attachments
Resolution 
Exhibit 1 
Exhibit 2 





































































































































































































































































































































































 AI# 12825 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 8. 
09/24/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution accepting a petition to create a tax
increment reinvestment zone pursuant to Texas Tax Code Sec.311.005(a)(4) to be called Tax Increment
Financing District No. 4, located in the North Park Development area, approximately described as the
area east of Frankford Avenue, south of Erskine Street, north of West Loop 289 and west of N. Winston
Avenue and set a public hearing regarding same. 

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock received a petition from property owners requesting that the City of Lubbock
establish a Tax Increment Financing District (TIF) for the proposed North Park Development area. The
area covers approximately 332.8 acres. 

The petition received by the City of Lubbock was signed by property owners of at least fifty percent
(50%) of the total appraised value for the area. The petition has been examined, verified, and found to
meet the requirements of Chapter 311 of the Texas Tax Code, and to be sufficient for consideration by
the City of Lubbock. 

Before consideration of an Ordinance to create the TIF District, the City Council must hold a public
hearing on the creation of the zone, and its benefits to the City and to the property proposed in the
zone. This resolution calls for the public hearing to be held on October 8, 2024. If the City Council
approves this resolution, a notice of public hearing will be published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal 
before the 7th day before the public hearing, as required by the statute. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Business Development Director 

Attachments
Resolution 
Petition 









September 16
















	Agenda
	1.04.__Executive Session Board Appointments
	4.01.__Minutes
	       ATT_8.27.2024
	       ATT_9.3.2024 S
	5.01.__Street Use License - Cavender Real Estate of Lubbock V
	       ATT_Resolution - Cavender RE of Lubbock V
	       ATT_Street use License - Cavender RE of Lubbock V
	       ATT_GIS Map - Cavender RE of Lubbock V
	5.02.__Street Use License - Chris and Jinna Norman
	       ATT_Resolution - Norman 21st and Slide
	       ATT_SUL - Norman 21st and Slide
	       ATT_GIS Map - Norman 21st and Slide
	5.03.__Real Estate Sales Contract Lots 3A & 3B, Tech Gardens Addition
	       ATT_Resolution Tech Gardens Lot 3a and 3b
	       ATT_Real Estate  Sales Contract Signed
	       ATT_GIS Map Tech Gardens Lot 3a and 3b
	       ATT_CIP 92834 Budget Detail
	5.04.__Right of Way Deed Upland Avenue: 4th to 19th Parcel 17
	       ATT_Parcel 17 - Resolution
	       ATT_Parcel 17 - Dedication Deed
	       ATT_Parcel 17 - GIS Map
	       ATT_CIP 92812 Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP 92812 Project Detail
	5.05.__Right of Way Deed Upland Avenue: 34th to 50th Parcel 16
	       ATT_Parcel 16 - Resolution
	       ATT_Parcel 16 - Dedication Deed
	       ATT_Parcel 16 - GIS Map
	       ATT_9.24.24  CIP Spreadsheet 92815
	Worksheets
	Project Cost Detail


	       ATT_92815 - Upland Ave from 34th St to 50th St - 22B (1)
	5.06.__ROW Deed 82nd St., Parcel 10
	       ATT_Resolution - 82nd St. Parcel 10
	       ATT_P10_Deed_Signed
	       ATT_GIS map - 82nd St. Parcel 10
	       ATT_CIP 92825 Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Project Detail
	5.07.__CIAC Semi-Annual Report Fall 2024
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_CIAC Semi-Annual Report Fall 2024
	5.08.__Waterline Construction - East 4th Street - Deerwood Const.
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract 18263
	       ATT_LEDA Commitment 
	       ATT_LocationMap
	       ATT_CIP 92702 Budget Detail
	CIP

	       ATT_CIP 92702 Project Detail
	Budget Sheet Leprino Waterline
	92805 Budget Sheet

	       ATT_Project Summary Sheet
	5.09.__Demo of Water Tower at 74th and Genoa - Trifecta Services
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract
	       ATT_Location Exhibit
	       ATT_CIP Spreadsheet
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary
	5.10.__UDC Amendments
	       ATT_UDC Amendments Ordinance
	       ATT_Amendments
	5.11.__Zoning Analysis
	       ATT_Resolution - Zoning Map Analysis
	       ATT_Contract - Zoning Map Analysis
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	8664_CIP_Detail
	92706_CIP_Detail

	5.12.__Shallowater Wholesale Water Contract Renewal
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract
	5.13.__Lease Facilities Renewal 401-405 34th St. and 530 36th St.
	       ATT_Resolution Lease Extension 34th St
	       ATT_Lease Extension Contract 34th St
	       ATT_Lease Agreement 401-405 34th St.
	       ATT_Resolution Lease Extension 36th St
	       ATT_Lease Extension 36th St
	       ATT_Lease Agreement 530 36th St.
	5.14.__Interlocal Agreement with StarCare Specialty Health System
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Interlocal Agreement
	5.15.__DSHS Grant Agmt. - Amend No. 1, CHEP & Response Grant Program
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract
	HHS001439500038-cover_letter-A1-FY25.docx
	HHS001439500038-attachment_A1-sow.docx
	HHS001439500038-signature_page-A1-FY25.docx
	The following Attachment is attached to this Amendment and incorporated and made a part of the Contract for all purposes:


	5.16.__Consultant Contract - MPO, COL, and Citibus FY 25
	       ATT_Resolution - MPO_Citibus Consultant Contract
	       ATT_MPO_Citibus Consultant Contract FY 25
	5.17.__Amendment to MOU between MPO, Citibus and TxDOT
	       ATT_Resolution - MOU Amendment - MPO_Citibus_TxDOT
	       ATT_MOU Amendment - MPO_Citibus_TxDOT
	5.18.__TxDOT Transportation Development Agreement - Project # TDC 2501(05)
	       ATT_Resolution - TDC Agreement 2501(05)- FY 17 Section 5339c
	       ATT_TxDOT TDC Agreement _TDC 2501 (05)
	5.19.__TxDOT FY 2025 Section 5304 Planning Grant
	       ATT_Resolution - TxDOT FY 25 Section 5304 Planning Grant
	       ATT_TxDOT FY 25 Section 5304 Planning Grant
	5.19.1.__Preliminary Engineering & Design - Citibus Facilities
	       ATT_Resolution - HDR Architectural and Engineering
	       ATT_Contract - HDR Architectural and Engineering 
	       ATT_Project Summary - HDR Architectural and Engineering 
	5.20.__Swiftly Contract Amendment - September 2024
	       ATT_Resolution - Swiftly Contract Amendment _2
	       ATT_Contract - Swiftly Amendment _2
	       ATT_Order Form - Swiftly Contract Amendment _2
	5.21.__South Plains Association of Governments- Senior Meal Contract
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_SPAG Agreement
	5.22.__Microsoft Corporation for Enterprise Support
	       ATT_Microsoft Corporation Resolution _PO 33001896
	       ATT_Microsoft Corporation PO 33001896
	5.23.__LMPO and GIS Consultant Contract
	       ATT_Resolution - LMPO and GIS Consultant
	       ATT_LMPO Contract GIS Services
	5.24.__Lubbock Police Department Motorcycle Lease
	       ATT_Resolution - Lease for Motorcycles
	       ATT_Agreement - Wild West Harley-Davidson Motorcycles
	Contract 18236
	1. Lease Term
	2. Payment Period
	3. Insurance
	4. Liens
	5. Taxes and Fees
	6. Care and Use of Equipment
	7. Damage or Deterioration of Property
	8. Rider Responsibility and Privileges
	9. Events of Default and Remedies
	10. Termination
	11. Maintenance and Equipment
	12. Sub-Lease or Assignment
	13. Purpose
	14. Ownership
	15. Invalidity Clause
	16. Venue and Jurisdiction
	17. Entire Agreement
	18. Non–Arbitration
	19. Non-Appropriation
	20. Lessor Acknowledges
	21. Texas Government Code Section 2252.152
	22. Texas Public Information Act
	23. Texas Government Code Section 2274.002
	24. Texas Government Code Section 2271.002
	25. Confidentiality
	26. Indemnity
	Exhibit B
	APPENDIX A

	       ATT_Project Summary - ITB 18236
	5.25.__PO 10027796 - North American Rescue LLC
	       ATT_Resolution- North American Rescue LLC
	       ATT_Purchase Order- North American Rescue LLC
	5.26.__2024 Lubbock Marathon Agmt with TXDOT 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_TXDOT Agreement
	AGREEMENT FOR THE TEMPORARY CLOSURE
	W I T N E S S E T H
	A G R E E M E N T


	5.27._12886
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_Amendment 
	6.01.__LCAD Board of Directors Nominations
	       ATT_LCAD Nomination Resolution
	       ATT_LCAD Letter - 2024
	6.02.__Gateway
	       ATT_Gateway Streets Project Fund Resolution
	6.03.__ZC 1531-B
	       ATT_Ordinance 1531-B
	       ATT_Zone Case 1531-B  Staff Report
	       ATT_Documentation 1531-B
	6.04.__ZC 2161-M
	       ATT_Ordinance 2161-M
	       ATT_Staff Report 2161-M
	       ATT_Documentation 2161-M
	Slide Pics.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	Elevations.pdf
	Sheets
	RE-1 - 2BAY FLAT ROOF - BRICK / EIFS          NO REAR TOWER
	RE-3 - 2BAY FLAT ROOF - BRICK / BRICK           NO REAR TOWER
	RE-2 - 2BAY FLAT ROOF - BRICK / EIFS          NO REAR TOWER
	RE-4 - 2BAY FLAT ROOF - BRICK / BRICK           NO REAR TOWER



	6.05.__ZC 3267-A
	       ATT_Ordinance 3267-A
	       ATT_Staff Report 3267-A
	       ATT_Documentation 3267-A
	Council District 4
	Prior Board or Council Action
	 December 7, 2006, Ordinance No. O0121: The subject properties were annexed into City limits and zoned Transition District (T).
	 December 17, 2015, Zone Case 3267, Ordinance No. O0127: The subject properties were rezoned from T to Local Retail District (C-2).
	 May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject properties wwere rezoned from C-2 to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code.
	Notification Summary
	Site Conditions and History
	Adjacent Property Development
	Current zoning: Neighborhood Commercial District (NC)
	Attachments
	Staff Contacts
	Slide Pics.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	3267-A staff report-Cassie Updated_VE Edit SEPT.pdf
	Council District 4
	Prior Board or Council Action
	 December 7, 2006, Ordinance No. O0121: The subject properties were annexed into City limits and zoned Transition District (T).
	 December 17, 2015, Zone Case 3267, Ordinance No. O0127: The subject properties were rezoned from T to Local Retail District (C-2).
	 May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject properties were rezoned from C-2 to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code.
	 August 1, 2024, Zone Case 3267-A: The Planning and Zoning Commission voted to postpone a request to rezone the subject property from NC to Heavy Commercial District (HC) to September 5, 2024 by a vote of 8-0-0.
	Notification Summary
	Site Conditions and History
	Adjacent Property Development
	Current zoning: Neighborhood Commercial District (NC)
	Attachments
	Staff Contacts


	6.06.__Chapter 22- Ordinance Update
	       ATT_Sewer Lateral Ordinance - Executed
	6.07.__Highland Oaks PID Petition 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Exhibit 1
	DOC006.pdf
	DOC007.pdf

	       ATT_Exhibit 2
	6.08.__North Park TIF Notice of Intent 
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_Petition 

